PISEH@

PPS International (Holdings) Limited
HEREZERARAT

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(RNRSHESEMRINERAR)

(Stock Code A& {n 155 : 8201)

2025

ANNUAL REPORT
F ik



CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE?”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the main board of the Stock Exchange and
no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of PPS International
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually accept
full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEE & & 57

BUSINESS OVERVIEW
Environmental and Cleaning Services

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of environmental
services in Hong Kong and the PRC, which include the provision of
cleaning and related services for (i) public area and office cleaning
services which involve cleaning of public areas, carpets, floors, toilets,
changing rooms, lifts and escalators and emptying of garbage bins at
commercial buildings and their tenants, residential complexes, shopping
arcades, hotels and public transport facilities such as airport, ferries,
ferry terminal, cargo and logistics centre and depots; (ii) overnight
kitchen cleaning services mainly at private club and hotels; (i) external
wall and window cleaning services; (iv) stone floor maintenance and
restoration services; (v) pest control and fumigation services; (vi) waste
management and disposal solutions which mainly involve collection,
transportation and disposal of household waste, construction waste and
trade waste and sales of recyclable waste such as paper, metal and
plastic waste collected during our operations; (vii) housekeeping services
where we provide housekeeping services to carry out professional daily
housekeeping and cleaning services at local boutique hotels, hostels
and serviced apartments; (vii) secure and confidential waste destruction
for commercial clients; (ix) sanitation solution for yacht; (x) cleaning and
waste management solution for renovated apartment; and (xi) airline
catering support services.

Money Lending Business
The Group conducts its money lending business in Hong Kong under the
money lenders licences and in the PRC.

Investments in Financial Assets

The Group invested in financial assets classified as the financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss which composed of only the shares of
companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS S E&wm &k o

BUSINESS REVIEW
Environmental and Cleaning Services in Hong Kong

Compared to the revenue of approximately HK$467.5 million for the year
ended 30 June 2024, the Group’s revenue from the environmental and
cleaning services in Hong Kong increased by approximately HK$12.3
million to approximately HK$479.8 million for the year ended 30 June
2025.

Revenue by Service Sector

The following table sets forth the breakdown of our revenue by different

FBEE
BEERBRERERE
BEZE-T_NMFEXA=THEFENRS

#47467,500,000/8 LML - AEEHZE-F
CTHERNAZTHLEFEREBTBIRERGE
2 AR 7% 19 UK #= 42 H0 49 12,300,000 & T E 4
479,800,000/ 7T °

BHR# 77 BF &7 9 K 25
TREVETRTE(ERREBRERER

sectors which reflect the target clients of our environmental and cleaning ~ ARFEH BIZEF )& D ayUk R R4 -
services in Hong Kong:
Year ended Year ended
30 June 2025 30 June 2024
BE-Z-AfF HE-_ZT-mOF
NA=THILEE NAZTHIEFE
HK$’000 % HK$’000 %
FET FET
Commercial [EES 155,484 148,872 31.8
Residential F= 137,346 134,525 28.8
Hospitality BIE 15,105 14,441 3.1
Transportation B 90,433 91,975 19.7
Government B 75,156 68,715 14.7
Others EAth 6,248 8,934 1.9
479,772 467,462 100.0

Most commercial contracts are for the provision of cleaning and related
services at commercial buildings where customers traditionally demand a
higher service quality and are also willing to pay a premium price. Aimost
all of the commercial contracts enable the Group to provide additional
services for the tenants in the tenanted area of the buildings with
contracts on a regular, ad-hoc or one-off basis which further enhance our
revenue stream. The Group succeeded in renewing and securing several
new service contracts in the commercial sector during the year which
contributed additional amount of revenue for the year.

Services contracts from the residential sector represented the second
largest service sector in the environmental and cleaning services in
Hong Kong. The Group succeeded in renewing several significant
service contracts for premium private housing estates which contributed
additional amount of revenue for the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEE & & 57

During the year, the services contracts from the hospitality sector
remained stable.

The Group was providing hygiene and related services to several
respectable transportation operators, including airline services, bus
transportation services, in Hong Kong. During the year, services contracts
from the transportation sector remained stable for the year.

During the year, the Group has allocated more resources to gain
services contracts from the government of Hong Kong. The Group
succeeded in obtaining several service contracts for public markets from
the government of Hong Kong which contributed significant amount of
revenue for the year.

Most of the revenue from other sector is recurring and service price is
reviewable on an annual basis.

Results

For the year ended 30 June 2025, the environmental and cleaning
business in Hong Kong achieved a net profit of HK$6.9 million as
compared to the net profit of HK$5.4 million for the year ended 30 June
2024. The increase is mainly due to (i) new services obtained during the
year; and (i) decline in the prices from some customers upon renewal of
their services contracts.

Environmental and Cleaning Services in Shanghai, the PRC

During the year, the Shanghai Operations recorded a slightly decrease
in the revenue by approximately HK$0.1 million to approximately
HK$17.8 million for the year ended 30 June 2025 (2024: approximately
HK$17.9 million). And the Shanghai Operations recorded a net loss
of approximately HK$0.2 million for the year ended 30 June 2025
as compared to the net loss of approximately HK$0.2 million for the
year ended 30 June 2024. During the year, the Shanghai Operations
successfully secured existing services contracts and maintained their
profit margins level. However, the Shanghai Operations still could not
obtain new services contracts due to fierce competition in the low price
bidding for the cleaning services contracts in Shanghai.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &8 B % o4

Money Lending Business

The Group through its wholly owned subsidiaries conducts the money
lending business in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) with the aim of increasing the return of capital of the Group and to
generate revenue for the shareholders of the Company.

The Group mainly targets to provide terms loans, loan facilities and
mortgage loans to individual customers and corporate customers
located in Hong Kong and the PRC which are mainly introduced by the
management of the Group and the existing borrowers. In determining
the terms of the loans granted by the Group to the existing borrowers
and potential borrowers, the Group has taken into accounts the loan
amount, the financial capabilities and the reputation of borrowers and/
or guarantors, the securities provided by borrowers and/or guarantors,
history of the repayment of loan and/or interests, the businesses in which
borrowers and/or guarantors principally engage and similar offers of loans
provided by competitors.

The Group finance its money lending businesses by using its internal
resources.

During the year, the Group continued to focus on conducting its money
lending business by providing both secured and unsecured loans to
customers, including individuals and corporations, in Hong Kong and the
PRC. A cautious and prudent approach is the key direction of our money
lending strategies that only borrowers with sound financial abilities would
be considered and approved by the Group. The Company had currently
adopted the credit risk assessment for the potential customers by taking
the following steps:

(i)  The Group will conduct the “know-your-client” procedure, which
consists of (i) background check; (ii) obtaining and review of
identification documents (such as identity card, business registration
and/or the certificate of incorporation, public searches).

(i) The Group will conduct an anti-money laundering risk assessment
based on the information obtained under the point (i) above and
the recommended anti-money laundering policies published by the
government bureaus.

8 PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2025
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEE & & 57

(i) The Group will then assess the creditworthiness of the customers by
taking into account the customer’s occupation, financial condition,
asset portfolio and credit history.

(@) For personal customers, the Group will assess their financial
capabilities by reviewing their asset portfolio (such as
securities investment and/or properties owned) as well as their
background and public reputation (such as position in well-
known organization).

(b) For corporate customers, the Group will assess their financial
capabilities by reviewing their financial statements, business
potential (such as material operating contracts) and/or asset
portfolio (such as securities investment and/or properties
owned).

(c) The Group will also consider the financial capabilities of the
guarantor, if any.

(d) For mortgage loan customers, the Group will principally assess
the market value of the mortgaged properties, any existing
mortgages/charges on the mortgaged properties.

After completion of the “know-your-client” procedure and credit risk
assessment, the loan application will be reported to the management of
the Company for approval. After the obtaining of the aforesaid approval,
the relevant loan documents will be executed.

For post-loan monitoring, the Group will closely monitor payment of the
monthly interests on the scheduled dates and repayment of the loan
principal amount on maturity dates. In general, the Group will arrange call
with the existing borrowers regularly to understand if there is any material
deterioration in the client’s financial capabilities. Any delay in payments
will be immediately reported to the management of the Company, which
will determine what action should be taken.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS S E&wm &k o

In the event that there is delay in payment of interests or loan principal,
the Group will contact the borrowers and issue the demand letters to the
borrowers immediately. The management of the Group will discuss in
details with the borrowers for the reasons of late payment and plans for
repayment. After considering all circumstances available to the Group,
with limitation to reasons for late repayment, recent financial capabilities
of the borrowers, the market conditions, the attitudes of the borrowers,
subsequent repayments made by the borrowers, the management of
the Company will determine whether it constitute a delinquent loan
and whether the Group should take further legal actions against the
borrowers.

Size and Diversity of Borrowers

As at 30 June 2025, there were total 8 outstanding loans with an
aggregate principal amount of approximately HK$85.4 million granted
by the Group between 2019 and 2024, out of which (i) approximately
HK$22.2 million were granted to 1 corporate borrower located in Hong
Kong with personal guarantees; (i) approximately HK$28.5 million were
granted to 2 individual borrowers located in Hong Kong with personal
guarantees and/or mortgage charge on the properties owned by the
borrower; (iii) approximately HK$34.7 million were granted to 5 individual
borrowers located in the PRC without securities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEE & & 57

Set out below is the summary of the 8 outstanding loans as at 30 June WA TAR_ZE_R&EXA=-+HSEXREEE
2025: REVEE
% to
Net  total net
Outstanding outstanding outstanding  Interest
Name of principal principal  principal  rates per Collaterals/
borrower Identity Location Contract date Due date amount Impairment  amount  amount annum  guarantees Note
hAEE
1858
*fEE AEE  #E2
BRAZE 5 k3 L] 5%A i3 WE AeEE sk EAE EA/ER i3
HK$000  HKS000  HK$000
Tir TR TEx
Borrower B Indlvidual PRC 31 May 2022 30 May 2025 10,952 (7,118 3,834 13.3% 7.0% Ni 1,284
&3 AB fEA hE i 3 ki3 B
BA=T-H RA=FA
Borrower G Indiividual Hong Kong 19 May 2023 16 December 2024 6,500 - 6,500 22.5% 15.0% Mortgage charge over the
BHAC A v k- Sabt 2 “5-RE properties owned the
#ATHA TZA+A7A borrower
ERABENEER
vt
Borrower D Inclividual PRC 2 June 2022 1 June 2025 5476 - 5476 18.9% 70% Ni 186
[ERAD fEA e S 5CRf 8
~AZA ~A-H
Borrower E Individual PRC 13 August 2020 12 August 2023 5,082 (5,082) - 0.0% 6.0% Ni 285
[BHAE (EVN HE 3 ZRICE B
NA+=R NA+ZA
Borrower F Inaivicual Hong Kong 13 September 2019 12 March 2020 22,000 22,000) - 0.0% 20.0%  Personal quarantees 283
fE3AF fEA 3 EhE ka3 AR
hAT=A ZA+zA
Borrower G Corporate Hong Kong 10July 2019 11 November 2019 22,200 (22,200) - 0.0% 20.0%  Personal quarantees 243
[ERAG % EE ZF-hE Z5hE AAER
At T-A+-A
Borrower | Individual PRC 15 Apri 2024 14 April 2027 3,286 6) 3,280 1.3% 18.0% Ni
A fEA HE k13 ka3 i
mA+EA mA+EA
Borrower J Indiviclual PRC 3 January 2024 2 January 2027 9,856 27 9,829 34.0% 240% Ni
fEaAl fEA ] i 13 TRtk B
-A=H —-AZA
85,362 56,433 28919
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Notes:

Having taken into consideration the below factors, the Group specifically
agreed to grant relatively lower interest rates for these PRC loans:
(i) assisting these borrowers in maintaining their businesses during
the temporary downturn in the PRC economy due to the outbreak
of COVID-19 and the Sino-US tension in the past 2 years; and
(iiy similar loan offers provided by competitors.

During the time of initial accepting and every renewing these loans, the
Group was satisfied with the creditworthiness of these borrowers and
these guarantors by reviewing (i) their personal assets portfolio with related
supporting documents; (i) personal credit report from respective official
recognized organizations; (i) public search by their name and identification
documents of any existing legal disputes from the respective courts’ records
and their background and public reputation from online websites; and (iv)
payment history of their monthly loan interest in the past.

However, the economy in Hong Kong and the PRC have been challenging
for all businesses after the prolonged downturn in the property-related
markets and the prolonged Sino-US trade tensions. Amid such negative
factors, these borrowers and guarantors have been severely affected and
are in financial difficulties, and therefore have defaulted on repayment of their
loans and interests on schedules. Under the Group’s ECL policy, impairment
loss on their loans has been made.

The Group has taken legal proceedings in Hong Kong against these
borrowers and these guarantors to collect the loans. As at the date of this
report, the Company successfully obtained default judgement orders against
the Borrower F and the Borrower G from the High Court of The HKSAR
pursuant to which these borrowers and the guarantors are ordered to repay
the outstanding loan principal amount with related interest and recovery
costs incurred. The Company is (i) still taking demanding actions; (ii) trying
to contact the borrower and the guarantors; and (jii) considering applying for
winding-up of the borrower and the guarantors.

The Group has taken legal proceedings in the PRC against the Borrower B
to collect the loan. As at the date of this report, the Company successfully
obtained default judgement orders against the Borrower B from the relevant
PRC court pursuant to which the Borrower B was ordered to repay the
outstanding loan principal amount with related interest and recovery costs
incurred. As at the date of this report, the Borrower repaid 35% of the
outstanding loan principal amount (i.e. RMB3,500,000) and agreed to repaid
the remaining outstanding amount during the year 2025. Nevertheless, the
Company is (i) still taking demanding actions; and (i) applying for charging
the assets of the Borrower B to pursue the full recovery of the loan.
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5. The Group has taken legal proceedings against the Borrower E to collect the
loan. As at the date of this report, the Company successfully obtained default
judgement orders against the Borrower E from the relevant PRC court
pursuant to which the Borrower E was ordered to repay the outstanding
loan principal amount with related interest and recovery costs incurred. But
the Borrower E is applying for appeal. However, the Company is (i) still taking
demanding actions; and (i) applying for charging the assets of the Borrower E.

6.  Theloan was fully repaid by the Borrower D after the year end date.

The Group’s average gross loan balance slightly increased from
approximately HK$84.6 million as at 30 June 2024 to approximately
HK$85.4 million as at 30 June 2025 as set out in the below table.

w

REE DR B ERAERBUERFL
WEER - RABREES - AR TﬁXUﬂ%*E
EﬁﬁF BUEBT R B RAERNRFE HIRS - 15

CERAERSSEEREEERLSER
$EE§7FIJ§ AR FRES MR BIARA - HEERA
EIEALRR M E5F - AT - AR BMDOIIERERH
R ¢ ()R BHERAENBEEETHC
AFI B EER -

ERADERFEAFT AR BEEER

BT RTH - AEENFHERESRAES
ZZT P45 A =+ H4984,600,0005 7T E
#ENE —F ~ AF N A =1 H485,400,000/%5

TE o
2025 2024
“ECERE S5
Gross Net Gross Net
Interest  outstanding ECL outstanding Interest  outstanaing ECL  outstanding
rates range balances  allowance balance rates range balances  allowance balance
AEESR  BEEE AEE AEREH  EHEE RER
Sl A%  FRER  AREE flEgE fF  BRER  &BEE
% HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 % HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000
TER Tén TER FEn TR TEL
In Hong Kong: REE:
Secured by mortgage loan BIRBER A 15% 6.0% 10 11.4% 7,500 - 7500
B.0%Z11.4%
Personal/corporation quarantees A /A EERE: 18% to 24% : (44,200) 20.0% 44,200 (44.200) -
loans 18%Z24%
(44,200) 51,700 (44,200) 7,500
In the PRC: R
Unsecured loans BERER 6% to 24% ! (12,233) 6.0%to 24.0% 32,907 (5.278) 27,629
6%Z224% 6.0%Z£24.0%
(12,233) 32907 (5,278 27,629
Total it ; (56,433) 84,607 (49478) 3,129
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Loans to the top borrower and top five borrowers constituted balance
34.0% and 100% (2024: 30.2% and 97.2%) of the Group’s net loans
receivables respectively as at 30 June 2025 as set out below:

R-ZZE-RFNA=Z+H RARKEFALT
KERAZERD FIBRAEEERERF
EHFA T 34.0% K% 100% ( = =04 : 30.2% &
97.2%) » #HWT ¢

As at 30 June
RA<B=+H
2025 2024
—ECRE T4
Net Net
outstanding outstanding
balances % to total balances % to total
REERE LB REE fhigza 2
HEerEE Bkt EERERR Botk
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Borrower B fERAB 10,565 30.2%
Borrower C fERAC 6,500 18.5%
Borrower D fEAD 5,282 15.0%
Borrower | EEON 2,142 6.1%
Borrower J FEFRAJ 9,640 27.4%
34,129 97.2%

The credit quality of loans and interest receivables has been assessed
individually based on their probability of default and exposure of default
with reference to historical credit loss experience, adjusted by current
and forward-looking factors. Further details on the Group’s expected
credit losses (“ECL”) on the loan receivables are set out in note 24(a)(ii)
to the consolidated financial statements. The economy in Hong Kong
and the PRC have been challenging for all businesses with the prolonged
Sino-US trade tensions and the significant downturn in trading of the
properties in Hong Kong and the PRC. Amid such negative factors, some
of our borrowers under the money lending business have been severely
affected and are in financial difficulties, and therefore have defaulted on
repayment of their loans and/or interests on schedules. Therefore, the
Group specifically recognized full impairment loss on these past due
loan receivables (i.e. loan receivables under the stage 3) during the year
ended 30 June 2025. Nevertheless, the Group has been taking actions,
including but not limited to legal proceedings against these borrowers, to
recover the loan principals, interests and all other related recovery costs
incurred.
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An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL allowances is as

HEENFEREEEEREEBOMET

follows:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E-BR ERE E=RE @st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT FHL FHL FET
At 1 July 2023 Eéfg: F+H—H 234 8,832 46,046 55,112
Changes due to financial IB’\ =F+A—AE®
instruments recognised Z%mﬁlﬂﬁ'ﬁ A5
as at 1 July 2023:
— Impairment loss recognised —BHERREEE 82 - - 82
— Impairment loss reversed —BREREESE @) (6,780) - (6,782)
— Transfer — B (55) - 55 -
— Impact of year ended ECLs —FREREE 2 BRTERE
of exposure transferred Y FLIBREEER
between stages during )7
the year - - 5,193 5,193
— Written-off — 55 - (2,052) - (2,052)
New loans originated MEEER 36 - - 36
Exchange realignment b 5 3R 3 - (16) (13)
At 30 June 2024 and 1 July 2024 Eé:%:@iﬁﬂ =t+HE=
—MELA—A 298 - 51,278 51,576
Changes due to financial RZZ-WF+A—BE
instruments recognised ﬁE uZJZé mITEmES) :
as at 1 July 2024:
— Impairment loss reversed —-BRERERSE - - (90) (90)
— Transfer — R (266) - 266 -
— Impact of year ended ECLs —FRERE
of exposure transferred Fsgis B $ 45
between stages during BHEEBEN
the year 2E - - 7,913 7,913
Exchange realignment e i, S 2 2 - 128 130
At 30 June 2025 RZZE_RFA=TH 34 - 59,495 59,529
By class at 30 June 2025 RZE-REXA=1H
®RERE S
~ Loans receivable — R ER 33 - 56,400 56,433
— Interest receivables —EHE 1 - 3,095 3,096
34 - 59,495 59,529
By class at 30 June 2024 R-ZZE-MEXA=1H
RERE S
~ Loans receivable — R ER 294 - 49,184 49,478
- Interest receivables — R B 4 - 2,094 2,098
298 - 51,278 51,576

The interest income and operating profit (excluding the ECL allowance)
from the money lending business for the year ended 30 June 2025
amounted to approximately HK$4.9 million and approximately
HK$3.1 million respectively (2024: approximately HK$2.7 million and
approximately HK$1.1 million). The increase is mainly attributable to the
increase in the average loans balance granted by the Group throughout
the year ended 30 June 2025 and the increase in the average interest
rates upon renewal of some loans during the year.

REBEZ_Z-_AFA=Z1+HILFE  WEXE
BHFBWARKELRZF(TREEREEE
1BIHE ) o Rl A#14,900,00058 7T K 493,100,000
B (ZEZMF ¢ 42,700,000 7% 7T & 49
1,100,000/870) ° BNy EZHR AN E B R E
ECE_RHAFAAZTHIEFEEZFROMF
BHERESREINEFERNEELD ERE T
RZF -
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Properties in Hong Kong

As at 30 June 2025, the market prices and sentiment of the commercial
properties in Hong Kong has been gradually declining since 2023.
As a result, a revaluation loss of approximately HK$5.7 million (2024:
approximately HK$10.8 million) on the Group’s commercial properties is
recorded based on the independent valuation as at 30 June 2025.

Investments in Financial Assets

The Group’s investment strategy is to review the investment portfolio
continuously and make appropriate adjustments (by acquisition or
disposal) according to the market situation, with an aim to generate
reasonable returns. During the year ended 30 June 2025, the Group
recorded net unrealised fair value gain amounting to approximately
HK$144,000 (2024: approximately HK$37,000) and did not dispose of
any investments in the financial assets (2024: HKE$Nil).

As at 30 June 2025, the Group had investments in financial assets
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$548,000 (2024: HK$405,000) which composed of
only the shares of companies listed on the Stock Exchange as set out

ERYE

RIZE-RFENA=TH UREBHNEEY
EMBEEREELES_ZFUREEST
ol BER-_ZE-_AFA=ZTHH
BYAE AEEREVESSEGHEERY
5,700,000 7T.( —Z = PU4E : 4910,800,000/%
T °

REESHMEE
NEENKEFRIEAFEEMREAETRE
MREREE ARCEAWESRHE)  EHEE
HEERY - HE T -_RAF A= +Eﬁ$
B AEBEBGSRESHEEZAERAF
B R EE 41440008 70 ( —F U4 : 4

:Wm@mwﬂlﬁﬁﬁ B & EE A E%
B(ZZEZE : TBT) o

RZBE-_RAFXNA=1+H "EEAEHD
548,000/ 7L( =& ZP44F : m5mw%ﬂ2i
BMEERBESBEARAFESABENSR
BE HESERBSHA EMHARZBRME

below: T
Percentage
of
shareholding Percentage to
in the net assets
Name of stock Number of investee Investment value of the
(Stock code) Principal business shares held company cost Market value Group
RERENA HAKEEE
R EB(ROAR) TEXH FERAEE 2REBI REBK mE  HEZESM
HKS HKS
BT BT
Alibaba Group Holding Limited Internet and direct 300 <0.001% 42,330 32,940 0.017%
(9988) marketing retall
MEEEEEEREMARQS) HEHEREHETE
Meituan (3690) E-commerce and internet 100 <0.001% 14,020 12,530 0.007%
services
%8 3690) ETHEREMBRY
Tencent Holdings Limited (700) [t mainly provides various 1,000 <0.001% 216,820 503,000 0.264%

global Internet-related
services and products
in different fields such
as entertainment,
artificial intelligence
and technology, social
networking, finance,
information, tools and
platforms
FRRHRE  ATER
M 42 28t
Bl TAMYRET
REgEEE ﬁmm
EREHERBNER

BERABRAR(700)
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Information on the performance of the Group’s financial assets at fair

(E_T_RFANA=ZTHLEFE  AEEER

value through profit or loss during the year ended 30 June 2025 is set NHEFABEZ EMEE KR AT
out as below: ECR
Unrealised
fair value gain
Name of stock (Stock code) on financial assets
SREERER
R B8 (R RER) AFERE S (EE)
HK$
BT
Alibaba Group Holding Limited (9988) 11,790
b 2 B B S BEA A IR 2 7](9988)
Meituan (3690) 1,420
£ [E(3690)
Tencent Holdings Limited (700) 130,600
BRI A A BR 22 B1(700)
OUTLOOK RIS
Environmental and Cleaning Services in Hong Kong EBRERFARE
Labor market competition in Hong Kong has intensified with the BEBWEATHEIE([AERETE|  H

implementation of The Statutory Minimum Wage (the “SMW?”) which was
adjusted upward on 1 May 2025 and is set to be reviewed in June 2026.
The Group is also facing higher labor turnover rate in the environmental
and cleaning services industry as more labor tend to work in other less
laborious industries such as the security guard service industry under
the same SMW rate. To offset the increase in labor costs, the Group is
striving to transfer most of the increased labor costs to our customers
and implement more efficient working flows and stringent cost control
procedures. The Group is closely monitoring the labor turnover rate and
regularly reviews our remuneration package in order to maintain sufficient
labor force and cope with the changing environment. We would continue
to enhance the quality of services by providing training to our front line
staff.

ER-_ZE-_RAFRA—HBLA TEHER-Z
ZRNFENAETRF)NANENKR  BELE
NHHBNHRFINE - REB I EAHIRERE
BRBENSS T REAR  DHREZLTHE
ERVAE &R TE L& T AR E SR E R

TR PIIRZEFREE - /WS T
FRAREIEIN - AEE NS RE D EIZ Mg T

RABETEP AU EEE A M TIERRENE
R R AESIE T - NREBRYERYE TIRK
& NE e BAPTROFBNET &) - AR R R
L8 NI R TE B IRE - RPISHESER
BRBIARE TIREFIIRERGEE -
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The economy in Hong Kong has been challenging and in extreme difficult
for the businesses in the transportation and the hotel sectors as well as
the commercial sector with the worldwide spreading of COVID-19. Our
customers from these sectors have been reducing their service requests
and asking for the prices reduction. We believe that both of our service
income and profit margin from these sectors must remain low. To mitigate
such downturn effect, we would strengthen our marketing effort in hope
to expand our market shares in the commercial and the residential
sectors and continue to consolidate our resources to focus on high value
customers to bring in additional revenue by cross-selling other cleaning
and waste management services to our existing customers. We believe
this strategy may not only improve our revenue per customer but also
increase our profit margin as we could leverage our existing manpower
to perform services at location where we already have presence. We
would explore other new environmental and cleaning services to expand
our service scope to enable customers to use the Group as a one-stop
cleaning contractor. We would continue to streamline our operations in
order to simplify and improve our operation efficiency. We believe that our
success in serving different sectors will further build up the confidence for
new clients to select our cleaning services in the coming future.

Environmental and Cleaning Services in the PRC

The Shanghai Operations are not expected to be significantly improved
in the coming fiscal year with the above-mentioned negative factors
affecting nearly all sectors of businesses in Shanghai. However, the
management of the Shanghai Operations has refined its marketing
strategies in order to attract more new customers to utilize our cleaning
services and implemented more efficient working flows and stringent cost
control procedures to reduce all unnecessary expenditures.

Money Lending Business

With the increasing threat of a downturn of the economy in Hong Kong
and the PRC as a result of the above-mentioned negative factors, the
Group continues its effort in strengthening its risk management policy
and streamlining our existing loan portfolio mix with an aim to reduce our
exposure on high risk loans. A cautious and prudent approach is the key
direction of our money lending strategies that only borrowers with sound
financial abilities would be considered and approved by the Group in the
future.

Investments in Financial Assets

A cautious and prudent approach is continued to be the key direction
of our investment strategies that only companies listed on the Stock
Exchange with valuable prospects would be considered and invested by
the Group in the future.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 30 June 2025, the Group reported a total revenue of
approximately HK$502.4 million (2024: approximately HK$488.1 million),
representing an increase of approximately 2.9%. The increase is mainly
due to the net effect of (i) increase in the revenue from the environmental
and cleaning services business in Hong Kong by approximately HK$12.3
million to approximately HK$479.8 million for the year ended 30 June
2025 (2024: approximately HK$467.5 million) as a result of several service
contracts in the commercial sectors and the Government awarded by the
Group; and (i) increase in the interest income of approximately HK$2.2
million from the money lending business after decline in the average loans
balances and the average interest rates granted by the Group during the
year.

Other Income, Other Gains and Other Losses and
Impairment

Other income, other gains and other losses and impairment of the Group
mainly consisted of (i) the revaluation loss of approximately HK$5.7
million (2024: approximately HK$10.8 million) on the Group’s commercial
properties based on the independent valuation; and (i) the impairment
loss of approximately HK$7.8 million (2024: net reversal of impairment
loss of approximately HK$1.5 million) made for the loans and interests
receivables under the Group’s money leading business.

Selling, Marketing Expenses and Administrative Expenses

The Group’s selling, marketing and administrative expenses increased
by approximately HK$1.0 million to approximately HK$28.3 million
(2024: approximately HK$27.3 million) for the year ended 30 June 2024.
The increase was mainly due to increase in the selling, marketing and
administrative expenses, including but not limited to, advertising and
promotion expenses, travelling expenses and general office expenses, of
the Group’s headquarters.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 30 June 2025.

Capital Structure and Fund Raising Activities

The shares of the Company are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange. The Company’s share capital comprises only ordinary shares.

B 5 [0 B
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the year ended 30 June 2024, the Group had financed its
operations and capital requirements through operating cash flows.

As at 30 June 2025, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$110.9 million (2024: approximately HK$103.2 million).
The increase is mainly due to net cash inflows from the Group’s operating
activities.

As at 30 June 2025, the Group had net current assets of approximately
HK$135.5 million (2024: approximately HK$131.0 million) and current
ratio of approximately 2.3 times (2024: approximately 2.3 times) which
remain strong and healthy.

The Group monitors its capital by reference to the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as total interest-bearing borrowings (including lease
liabilities) divided by total equity. The gearing ratio at the end of the
reporting period was as follows:

RBESRUBER

HE-_Z-_WNFA=THILFE K&
peEReRERANEERESTK -

i3

RZEBE-RAFAA=Z+H AEER2EES

Z£EY#)5110,900,000/8 TT( ZZEZMH4E : 4

103,200,000/ 7T) - BN EERNASE
BEEEHELENRESRAFEE -

RZE-_RFENA=1TH AEELRHEE
SF{E 4 A135,500,000/8 L ( T —WU4F : 4
131,000,000/ 70) * MBI E L) H2.3F(ZF
TV 492.3(F) - RN RS RIBEKTF o

AEBNEERBHLREREEN KTy
R SEERR(BREEERE) RARSNEE
ATE - RIREHRNEERBLENT ¢

2025 2024

—ERF ZEUF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Bank loans |ITEN 19.366

Lease liabilities HEAE 1,575

Total interest-bearing borrowings FTEEERE 20,941
Total equity (inclusive of non-controlling IR 4B RE (B AR SR A )

interests) 190,633 196,809

Gearing ratio BEBELE 10.83% 10.64%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements.

The Board is of the opinion that the Group is in a strong and healthy
financial position and has sufficient resources to support its operations
and meet its foreseeable capital expenditures and expansions.

Charges on the Group’s Assets

As at 30 June 2025, the Group had bank deposits of approximately
HK$5.8 million (2024: approximately HK$5.9 million) pledged to banks
as security for bankers’ guarantees on performance bonds issued and
banking facilities granted to the Group.
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As at 30 June 2025, the Group had properties with carrying values of
approximately HK$35.7 million (2024: approximately HK$42.4 million)
charged to the bank as security for the bank loans, bankers’ guarantees
on performance bonds issued and banking facilities granted to the
Group.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

During the period, major portion of the Group’s operations are located
mainly in Hong Kong with most of the Group’s transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. The Group is exposed to
foreign currency risk due to the exchange rate fluctuation of RMB against
HK$ arising from the environmental and cleaning services business
and money lending business in the PRC. The results of our operations
in the PRC are translated from RMB into HK$ at the exchange rates
approximating the rates ruling at the dates of the transactions while their
financial items are translated from RMB into HK$ at the closing rate ruling
at the end of the reporting period, the resulted exchange differences are
recognised as other comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the translation reserve of the Company and will be reclassified
to profit or loss until the disposal of interests in such operations.
Fluctuation of RMB against HK$ is moderate to the Group during the
period. The Group will review and monitor its currency exposure from
time to time, and when appropriate hedge its currency risk.

Information on Employees

The Group had 1,262 employees (2024: 1,329) as at the end of the year.
The Group’s remuneration practices are in line with the prevailing market
practice and are determined on the basis of performance, qualification
and experience of individual employee. The Group recognises the
importance of a good relationship with the employees by providing
competitive remuneration package to the employees including salaries,
allowances, insurance, discretionary bonus, and training for human
resources upskilling. Total staff costs and related expenses (including
Directors’ remuneration) incurred by the Group were approximately
HK$253.0 million (2024: approximately HK$260.0 million) for the year
ended 30 June 2025.

Significant Investments Held, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, and Future Plans for Material
Investments or Capital Assets

There were neither significant investments held by the Group as at 30
June 2025 nor material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries made by
the Group during the year ended 30 June 2025.
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Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 30 June 2025, our capital expenditures mainly
included acquisitions of plant and equipment amounting to approximately
HK$2.6 million. These capital expenditures were funded by funds
generated from our operating activities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

Performance bond

BRI
HE_Z-_RFRAA=ZTRHILEFE  #MD

EARAXTIZERBERELRE

O]

2,600,000/ 7T » ZEE AT HKLE EBFTE

22

Guarantees on performance bonds in
respect of environmental and cleaning
service contracts

REERFELR
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ERESET -
RAEE

(a) BHRE

As at As at

30 June 30 June

2025 2024

RIEBE-HFE RZZTWOF

~A=tH ~HA=1H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

23,569

The Group had bankers’ guarantees on performance bonds issued
for due performance under several environmental and cleaning
service contracts of the Group’s environmental and cleaning
services business in Hong Kong.

As at 30 June 2025, the restricted bank fixed deposits of
approximately HK$5.8 million (2024: approximately HK$5.9 million),
the properties with carrying values of approximately HK$35.7 million
(2024: HK$38.4 million) and the corporate guarantee from the
Company and a subsidiary of the Group were pledged to banks as
security for such bankers’ guarantees on performance bonds issued.

The effective period of performance bonds is based on the service
period and the contract terms as specified in these environmental
and cleaning service contracts. The performance bonds may be
claimed by customers if services rendered by the Group fail to meet
the standards as specified in these environmental and cleaning
service contracts.

Litigations — Employees personal injuries

During the year, the Group may from time to time be involved in
litigations concerning personal injuries by its employees or third
party claimants. In the opinion of the Directors, the Group had no
any significant contingent liabilities arising from these litigations as all
potential claims made by these employees and third party claimants
are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements and
covered by insurance protection.
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DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board currently consists of five
Directors comprising two executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Shaoheng (“Mr. Yu”), aged 40, was appointed as executive
Director on 28 October 2016, the chief executive officer of the Company
on 28 November 2017 and the chairman of the Board on 2 July 2019.
He served as non-executive director of China New Energy Power
Group Limited (P EI#T6EJRE) N EE B R A A)) (now known as Lamtex
Holdings Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1041) from 14 March 2016 to 30 August 2016.
He is currently the chairman of FRFE= 2 E % BR A 7] (Shaanxi Hengze
Industrial Corporation Limited*), which is principally engaged in investment
in and development of energy, mining, environmental-preservation, real
estate, and tourism businesses. Furthermore, he is a supervisor of 5&&
E2Hm A2 R A R & T 2 7 (Uaanchab Kejie Gas Limited Liability
Company?*), a company which China National Petroleum Corporation
(P B AR RAREE R A has indirect interest in it, which principally
engaged in (i) construction and re-construction of city gas infrastructures;
(i) design and engineering of expansion work and related installation and
development management; (iii) transportation, sale, provision of after
sale service, research and development of technologies and provision of
consultancy service in relation to city gas; (iv) construction and operation
of various types of gas station; (v) sale of petroleum and natural gas
related equipment; and (vi) construction, operation management of
compressed natural gas projects. Both Mr. Yu and £ B 22 75 1 BHZ K
RAEREERF (Ulaanchab Kejie Gas Limited Liability Company*) have
been members of the China Gas Association (F Bl A ).

Mr. Lai Tin Ming (“Mr. Lai”), aged 40, was appointed as an executive
Director on 31 July 2018. He graduated from the Lingnan University,
Hong Kong with a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration in 2008.
He joined our Group in July 2010 as a sales and marketing executive
of Pollution & Protection Services Limited (“PPS”), a main operating
subsidiary of the Company engaging in the provision of environmental
and cleaning services in Hong Kong. He was promoted to the chief
executive officer of PPS in February 2018 and is primarily responsible for
our group’s environmental and cleaning services business including the
recruitment of personnel, approval of budgets, quality control of cleaning
projects, procurement of cleaning materials and equipment, workplace
safety and site supervision.
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Non-Executive Director

Ms. Chan Suet Ling (“Ms. Chan”), aged 39, was appointed as non-
executive Director on 16 December 2024. She graduated from Hong
Kong Shue Yan University in 2010, with a Bachelor Degree in Business
Administration. She joined our Group in July 2015 as the general
manager of our contracting department and is currently responsible for
the supervision of the contracting department, carrying out sales and
marketing strategies and preparing costing and pricing for tenders,
contracts and quotations of our Group’s cleaning and environmental
services in Hong Kong.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching Jack (“Mr. Kwong”), aged 42, was appointed
as independent non-executive Director of the Company and a Chairman
of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee of the Company on 25 April 2016 and 31
July 2018 respectively. He received his degree of Master of Laws in
commercial and corporate law from King’'s College London, United
Kingdom in November 2006 and his Postgraduate Certificate in Laws
and degree of Bachelor of Laws from City University of Hong Kong in July
2005 and November 2004 respectively. He was admitted to practise as
a solicitor in Hong Kong in October 2008. He is practising in Hong Kong
and is currently a vice president (investment and legal) in a family office in
Hong Kong.

Mr. Meng Enhai (“Mr. Meng”), aged 39, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and a member of each of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee of Company on 31 July 2018. He obtained a bachelor degree
in laws from Xian University of Technology (F8% 3 T AE) in July 2010.
He joined P& 75 7k 3z 1 72 B % 75 AT (Shaanxi Yong Jia Xin Law Office®)
(“Yong Jia Xin Law Office”) in 2010 and serves, at present, as a senior
practicing lawyer and a partner of Yong Jia Xin Law Office for providing
legal services to listed companies in the PRC. He was once the author of
several books relating to the commerce law proceedings and the stock
listing in the PRC.
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Mr. Ni Fuhua (“Mr. Ni”), aged 38, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director, the member of each of the audit committee, the
nomination committee and a remuneration committee of the Company
on 30 June 2024. He obtained a master of law from Emory University
School of Law (32 2t B K E 7% Z %) in 2020 and a master of law from
East China Normal University (3£ 5 A &3 X ) in 2022. He is the founding
and managing partner of Shanghai Zhenchen Law Firm ( = /& % x &
Bl = 7% BT %) for providing legal services to private and listed companies
in the PRC. He is the member of several arbitration institutes including
The Chartered Institute of Arbitrators (R B E X EFFHFEH EHE), The
Prime Dispute Arbitration and Mediation Institute (2% B I 2 5 =% {1 &
A F B 5 ), Arbitrators’ and Mediators’ Institute of New Zealand Inc
(MBI & B TR 8 1 &), California Arbitration (51 %] #& fE =5 {4
#), International Mediation Campus (B B # 7 £ [ ), International Law
Research Committee of Shanghai Bar Association (= /& 2 i 1 & Bl [5
AT 95 & 8 @), Foreign-related Expert Database of the Oriental Legal
Identification Center (R 77 AR &R LAFINE K E K E) and The
Dubai International Financial Centre (B FEBIBR & R L)).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Our senior management comprises our executive Directors and our
company secretary.

Mr. Chan Woon Wing (“Mr. Chan”), aged 44, was appointed as the
company secretary of the Company on 3 October 2016. He is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over
10 years of experience in financial reporting and auditing. Prior to joining
the Group in 2014, Mr. Chan had served at the audit department of an
international audit firm for six years. Mr. Chan joined the Group in 2014
and is mainly responsible for overseeing the company secretary work of
the Company now.

*
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The Directors present this annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2025.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of the Group are (i) the provision of environmental and cleaning services;
and (ii) the provision of money lending services in Hong Kong and PRC.

The principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
segments is set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the year ended 30 June 2025 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from pages 101 to 102 of this annual report. The Board does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 30 June
2025.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A detailed review on the Group’s business performance and the material
factors underlying its financial position, as well as the development and
likely future prospects of the Group’s business are provided throughout
this annual report and in particular shown in the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” section from pages 5 to 22 of this annual report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Directors are aware that the Group is exposed to various risks,
including some of which are specific to the Group or the industries in
which the Group operates. The Directors have established a policy to
ensure that significant risks which may adversely affect the Group, are
identified, reported, monitored, and managed on a continuous basis.
The Group has identified the following key risks that are considered to
be significant to the Group, which may adversely and/or materially affect
the Group’s businesses, financial conditions, results of operations and
growth prospects. Key risks relating to the Group’s businesses and to
the industries in which the Group operates are including but not limited
to:

Environmental and Cleaning Services
Customers

(i) A majority of the service contracts have fixed service terms that
range from one to three years and many of them are granted to
the Group by way of tendering. There is no assurance of the grant
of new contracts nor renewal of the existing contracts and these
uncertainties may have negative impact on the financial results of
the Group. Moreover, in the competitive tendering process, the
Group may have to lower the service charges in the bids in order
to increase the competitiveness of the tenders and the Group
may encounter great pressure on the profit margins if the Group is
unable to reduce the costs accordingly. In such event, the financial
results and profitability would be materially and adversely affected.

(i) Most of the service contracts of the Group are fixed-price contracts,
under which the Group provides the cleaning and related services
at a pre-determined price. If the Group fails to accurately estimate
the costs or fail to execute fixed-price contracts within the cost
estimates, the results of operation would be adversely affected. As
a result, the Group may not be able to adjust the service fees nor
recover any cost overruns, which may in turn adversely affect the
reputation, financial conditions, profitability or liquidity.
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(i)  The aggregate revenue generated from the five largest customers
of the environmental and cleaning services represented nearly
47.1% of the total revenue of the environmental and cleaning
services for the year ended 30 June 2025. The Group does not
enter into long-term service contracts with any of these customers,
which the Directors believe is in line with the market practice of the
environmental services industry. These customers may terminate
their business relationships with the Group upon expiry of the
service contracts. If any of the key customers, including these five
largest customers, substantially reduces the volume and/or value
of services procured from the Group or terminates its business
relationship with the Group, there is no assurance that the Group
would be able to find substitute customers or to secure comparable
contracts to replace any such loss of revenue. If any of the above
happens, the business and performance would be materially
adversely affected.

Customer-oriented principle is adopted across the business operation
of the Group. We places great emphasis on quality control. We have
obtained ISO 9001, ISO 14001 and the Qualification Level Certificate
of China Cleaning Industry — National 1st Level Qualification, and are
committed to delivering professional services and achieving customer
satisfaction. To understand clients’ needs, we conduct site assessments
and communicate with our clients before commencing services. We have
a comprehensive set of policies and procedures on “Quality Management
Plan”, a framework that focuses on business goals and objectives. During
the performance of our services, our employees will carry out regular
check on the service quality, including services delivered by the Group’s
own employees and third-party service providers, and record occasions
of substandard performance and any follow-up actions taken.

Budgeting is the key factor of our business operations. To formulate the
reasonable and competitive pricing, we carefully prepare, review and
discuss, among the management and operation teams, the details of
budget for every service contract based on our 20 years more experience
in the environmental and cleaning industry and latest market information.
During the performance of our services, any deviations from the budgets
are seriously investigated and monitored for, if any, remedy actions and
recorded for our reference in coming budgeting.

Service mix, service quality and competitive pricing, which are regarded as
key to good relationship with our customers, are continuously reviewed
with the aim to cater for our customers’ fast-changing needs and
enhance their satisfactions and business relationship with the Group.
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Employees

U

(i)

The Group is exposed to litigation claims including employees’
compensation claims and common law personal injury claims and
the insurance coverage may not adequately protect us against
certain risk. Employees who suffer from bodlily injuries or death as
a result of accidents or diseases occurred during the course of
their employment are entitled to claim damages and compensation
against the Group under the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance
as well as under the common law. The Group has taken out
insurance policies to cover these potential claims, including
employees’ compensation insurance and public liability insurance.
However, the outcome of any claim is subject to the relevant parties’
negotiation or the decision of the court or the relevant arbitration
authorities, and the result of any of the outstanding claims may
be unfavourable to the Group. As a result, the Group may have to
pay out of the own resources for any uninsured financial or other
losses, damages and liabilities and litigation that could materially
and adversely affect the business, financial conditions and results of
operations.

The Group has experienced high turnover rate of the operation
team and the operation could be adversely affected by difficulties
in recruiting and retaining sufficient workforce to meet the needs.
As the environmental and cleaning services industry is a labour-
intensive industry, this exacerbated after the implementation of the
SMW in Hong Kong as workers have more choices, such as security
guards, which may drive workers away from the cleaning industry.
If the Group is unable to maintain the stability of the staff or retain
sufficient number of staff members to perform the service contracts
or fill the vacancies with suitable staff or services from suitable
third party service providers, the quality of services, operation and
financial results would be adversely affected.

The fact that employees are crucial assets of the Group is of no doubt.
The Group strives to enhance employees’ loyalty and sense of belongings
to the Group through various policies and practice. It emphasises the
importance of labour diversity and equal opportunities in recruitment
process. It also provides staff with a caring, safe and healthy working
environment. In order to help cater for the continuous development of the
employees, professional trainings and self development sponsorships are
provided. The Group values any feedback from employees and hopes to
maintain open communication with the latter, which favours a good and
long-lasting relationship.
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Money Lending Business

U

Any adverse changes in macroeconomic conditions and fluctuation
of market variables such as gross domestic product, exchange
rates, equity prices and property prices in Hong Kong as well as
the PRC may generally affect market demands and the repayment
abilities of customers which may lead to adverse impact on the
Group’s revenue and liquidity. The Group would from time to time
fine-tune the Group’s business strategies, policies and procedures,
in particular the loan approval procedures, according to the market
situation.

Non-compliance with or any changes in the relevant laws and
regulations may bring various consequences to the Group, including
but not limited to the revocation or suspension of the money lenders
licence and/or the imposition of penalties resulting from the offence.
Relevant operation policies and procedures have been adopted
and in place to ensure that the daily operation of the Group is
in compliance with the relevant requirements. Internal reporting
procedures have been established and when any suspected case
of employees and customers’ misconduct and/or fraud arises, any
staff can report directly to the management. The staff handbook
has also stipulated that employees and customers’ misconduct and
fraud are prohibited.

In addition, the financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group are shown in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Company is committed to operating in a sustainable manner while
balancing the interests of various stakeholders including the Group’s
employees, customers, suppliers and the community.

Further details about the Group’s policies and relationship with its
various stakeholders are set out in the paragraph headed “Social” in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” section from pages 74
to 86 of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving natural resources.
The Group strives to minimise our environmental impact by raising
energy efficiency and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other
materials such as the adoption of paperless systems and practices in
its daily operations, the duplex printing and copying, and the recycling
of ink cartridges and toner cartridges, etc.. In addition, the Group has
adopted environmentally-friendly service procedures in providing the
environmental and cleaning services to its customers for which the Group
has obtained certificates and awards from different environmentally-
oriented organisations.

Further details of about the Group’s environmental policies are set out in
the paragraph headed “Environmental” in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” section from pages 64 to 73 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The operations of the Group are based in Hong Kong and the PRC and
the Company itself is listed on GEM. In light of this, the Group upholds
high corporate governance standards and strives to ensure that its
business practice complies with all relevant laws and regulations in the
respective jurisdictions. Reviews on regulatory compliance of its business
operation are conducted from time to time. During the year under
review and up to the date of this annual report, the Group has been in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on its listing status in Hong Kong, the environmental and cleaning
services and the money lending business which mainly include but
not limited to the GEM Listing Rules, the Employment Ordinance, the
Minimum Wage Ordinance, the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance
and the MLO.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$6,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group for the year
ended 30 June 2025 are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements in this annual report. During the year ended 30 June 2025,
the Company had not breached any terms of its loan agreements that
are significant to the Group’s operations.

DEBENTURES ISSUED

The Group did not issue any debentures during the Reporting Period.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the classes and movements in the Company’s share capital
during the year are set out in note 23(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
106 of this annual report and note 26(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2025, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to shareholders amounting to approximately HK$93.5 million (2024:
HK$95.3 million) calculated in accordance with the Companies Law
Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association of the
Company.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results and financial position for the past five
financial years is set out on page 188 of this annual report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of the Group’s revenue and subcontracting costs
attributable to the Group’s major customers, subcontractors and
suppliers respectively for the year ended 30 June 2025 is as follows:

Revenue Wz

The largest customer BEAEP

Five largest customers in aggregate AREFPAE
Subcontracting costs DERAK
The largest subcontractor EADEHE
Five largest subcontractors in aggregate hARHSBEEE

During the year, none of the Directors, their close associates or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in any of the
Group’s five largest customers, subcontractors and suppliers.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yu Shaoheng

Mr. Lai Tin Ming
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Chan Suet Ling — appointed on 16 December 2024

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack
Mr. Meng Enhai
Mr. Ni Fuhua

In accordance with the Article 83(3) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Ms. Chan Suet Ling retire by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer herself for re-election.
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In accordance with Article 84 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Yu Shaoheng and Mr. Meng Enhai retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

All newly appointed non-executive Director and the independent non-
executive directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

None of the Directors has a service contract with any member of the
Group which is not terminable by the relevant employer within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

During the year and up to date of this annual report, the executive
Directors, Yu Shaoheng and Lai Tin Ming are also directors in certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Other directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries during the year and up to the date of this annual report
include Mr. Chan Woon Wing, Mr. Chan Chok Fun, Mr. Lu Yi and Mr.
Tang Antao.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management of the
Group as at the date of this report are set out in the “Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 23 to 25 of this
annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Group was entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACT

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

Remuneration is determined with reference to the nature of job,
performance, qualifications and experience of individual employees, as
well as the result of the Group and the market trend. The Group carries
out staff performance appraisal once a year and the assessment result is
used for salary reviews and promotion decisions.

The Group recognises the importance of staff training and thus regularly
provides internal and external training for its staff to enhance their skills
and knowledge. The remuneration of the Directors is determined with
reference to the duties and level of responsibilities of each Director, the
remuneration policy of the Group and the prevailing market conditions.

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Save as disclosed below, as at 30 June 2025, none of the Directors and
the chief executive and their respective associates had or was deemed to
have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within of the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)),
which were required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); (b) pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.68
of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Percentage of
Name of the Total number total issued
company in which of ordinary  Long/short share capital
Name of Director interest is held Capacity shares  position in the Company
RESHE EARAR2H
EEpg BENAREH 4 LEREY Hr/ %A BRTRAED L
Mr. Yu Shaoheng The Company Beneficial owner (Note 1) 350,536,631  Long 64.91%
RETRE VYN Exma A HE
Note: BiE -

1. Mr. Yu Shaoheng is the son of Mr. Yu Weiye and the step-son of Ms. Mui
Fong.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed below, as at 30 June 2025, no person other than
certain Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company as recorded in the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who were directly or indirectly
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of
any member of the Group.

FERR

BRTXAEEEIN RZE_RFARA=T
B BMEEAAL(RRARETESHIRT
BABRRIN RAR R - HEBD RMEFF
hHA - WERHNARAIRIEREZF M E K
55 336 {6 M 17 & #) = B AR B R i rO(E a1
#HIRR - IRBEFBH LI EGROIEXVEEE2
K FEID VR E AR AR B ENEREE
ORE - X EE B EA EAER R
(SR EEAER TR AREERNKE AT
HIBRA S LR RAERN) M EES%HIA L1

N2
S o
T

Percentage of
Name of the Total number total issued
Name of company in which of ordinary Long/short share capital
Shareholder interest is held Capacity shares position in the Company
REHPER PN e
RREA BEEHDARERE 5t LERAH HR/ %R ERITRABDL
Mr. Yu Weiye The Company Beneficial owner 54,431,400 Long 10.08%
REERE NN BEHBAA HE
Ms. Mui Fong The Company Interests of spouse (Note 1) 54,431,400 Long 10.08%
e, ZINS BB () i
Note: Mzt -

1. Ms. Mui Fong (“Ms. Mui”) is the wife of Mr. Yu. Ms. Mui is deemed to be
interested in 54,431,400 shares owned by Mr. Yu in accordance with the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE SHARES

During the year ended 30 June 2025, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Shares.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public during the year ended
30 June 2025.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the year and up to date of this annual report, none of the
Directors, controlling shareholders and their respective associates as
defined under the GEM Listing Rules is interested in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

There are no related party transactions as set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements that falls under the definition of
“connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” under the
GEM Listing Rules during the year.

The material related party transactions are set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDEND POLICY

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board shall consider the following factors before
declaring or recommending dividends:

(@ the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;

(b) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and
each of the members of the Group;

(c) the Group’s working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future expansion plans;

(d) the Group’s liquidity position;

(e) general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business or financial performance and position of the

Group; and

() other factors that the Board may consider relevant and appropriate.
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Such declaration and payment of dividend by the Company is also
subject to any restrictions under the Cayman Islands laws, any applicable
laws, rules and regulations and the Company’s articles of association.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” section on pages 39 to 55 of this annual
report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year and up to date of this report, there was or is,
any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of the
directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or otherwise)
or any of its subsidiaries (if made by the Company).

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Baker Tilly
Hong Kong Limited (“Baker Tilly”), who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM. Having been
approved by the Board upon the Audit Committee’s recommendation, a
resolution to re-appoint Baker Tilly as the auditors of the Company and
to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration will be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Yu Shaoheng
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 September 2025
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance in order to uphold the transparency of the Group and
safeguard interests of the Shareholders.

The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report for the
year ended 30 June 2025.

The Company has applied the principles and code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the Code
for the year ended 30 June 2025 and up to the date of this annual report,
except for the deviations of the following Codes.

()  Under the Code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual. During the year under review and up to the
date of this annual report, the chairman of the Board and the chief
executive officer of the Company is performed by the executive
Director, Mr. Yu Shaoheng. The Company considered that under
the supervision of its Board and its independent non-executive
Directors, a balancing mechanism existed so that the interests
of the Shareholders were adequately and fairly represented. The
Company considered that there was no imminent need to change
the arrangement.

(i) The Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that all non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
Currently, all non-executive Directors, including the independent
non-executive Directors are not appointed for a specific term. They
are, however, subject to the retirement by rotation and re-election
of directors in the articles of association of the Company. Since their
appointment will be reviewed when they are due for re-election, the
Board considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure
that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than those set out in the Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms which are the same as the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

The Company periodically issues notices to its Directors reminding them
of the general prohibition on dealing in the Company’s listed securities
during the blackout periods before the publication of announcements of
financial results.

The Company has confirmed, having made specific enquiry of the
Directors, that all the Directors have complied with the required standards
of dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors throughout the period under review. The Company was not
aware of any non-compliance in this respect throughout the year ended
30 June 2025.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which assumes
responsibility for its leadership and control and be collectively
responsibility for promoting the Company’s success by directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs. Directors take decisions objectively in
the best interests of the Company.

The Board has a balance of skills, experience, gender, and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business
and regularly reviews the contribution required from a Director to perform
his responsibilities to the Company and whether the Director is spending
sufficient time performing them that are commensurate with their role and
the Board responsibilities. The Board includes a balanced composition of
executive directors and non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) so that there is a strong independent element on
the Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgement.
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Board Composition

The composition of the Board as at the date of this annual report is as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Shaoheng (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lai Tin Ming

Non-executive Director

Ms. Chan Suet Ling — appointed on 16 December 2024

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack
Mr. Meng Enhai
Mr. Ni Fuhua

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 23 to 25
of this report.

There are no relationships (including financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships) among other members of the Board.

On 16 December 2024, Ms. Chan Suet Ling (“Ms. Chan”) was appointed
as non-executive Director, Ms. Chan confirmed that she has obtained
the legal advise referred to the Rule 5.02D of the GEM Listing Rules on 3
December 2024, and understood her obligations as a director of a listed
issuer under the GEM Listing Rules.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year from and up to the date of this annual report, the Board
at all times met the requirements of Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of
the GEM Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent.
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BOARD INDEPENDENCE EVALUATION

The Company has established a Board Independence Evaluation
Mechanism which sets out the processes and procedures to ensure
a strong independent element on the Board, and allows the Board
effectively exercises independent judgment to better safeguard
Shareholders’ interests.

The objectives of the evaluation are to improve Board effectiveness,
maximise strengths, and identify the areas that need improvement or
further development. The evaluation process also clarifies what actions
of the Company need to be taken to maintain and improve the Board
performance, for instance, addressing individual training and development
needs of each Director.

Pursuant to the Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism, the Board
will conduct annual review on its independence.

In order to ensure that independent views and input of the independent
non-executive Directors are made available to the Board, the Nomination
Committee and the Board are committed to assess the Directors’
independence annually with regards to all relevant factors related to the
independent non-executive Directors including the following:

° required character, integrity, expertise, experience and stability to
fulfill their roles;

e time commitment and attention to the Company’s affairs;

e firm commitment to their independent roles and to the Board;

e  declaration of conflict of interest in their roles as independent non-
executive Directors;

° no involvement in the daily management of the Company nor in any
relationship or circumstances which would affect the exercise of

their independent judgement; and

e the Chairman meets with the independent non-executive Directors
regularly without the presence of the executive Directors.

During the Reporting Period, the Board had conducted the annual review

on the implementation and effectiveness of the Board Independence
Evaluation Mechanism.
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RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is accountable for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective manner.
Each Director has a duty to act in good faith and in the best interests of
the Company. Matters reserved for the Board include, but not limited to:

e approval of the Group’s long term strategy, policies and annual
budgets;

e oversight of the Group’s operations and management;

e approval of any significant changes in accounting policies or
practices;

e approval of major changes to the Group’s corporate structure,
management and control structure;

° approval of quarterly, interim and annual results;
° responsible for internal control and risk management; and

e approval of matters in relation to Board membership and Board
remuneration.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning. The independent non-executive Directors are
responsible for ensuring a high standard of regulatory reporting of the
Company and providing a balance in the Board for bringing effective
independent judgement on corporate actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for
discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held
by them.
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The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken
against Directors arising out of corporate activities. The insurance
coverage would be reviewed on an annual basis.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions specified in Code
Provision D.3.1, which include reviewing the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, the continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management, our Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements (including the GEM Listing Rules) and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Directors are aware of the requirement under the code provision
A.6.5 of the Code regarding continuous professional development. The
Company arranges and provides Continuous Professional Development
(“CPD”) training in the forms of formal training seminars, workshops,
webcasts and selected reading materials to Directors to help them to
keep abreast of current trends and issues facing the Group, including
the latest changes in the commercial (including industry-specific and
innovative changes), legal and regulatory environment in which the Group
conducts its businesses and to refresh their knowledge and skills on the
roles, functions and duties of a listed company director. In addition, CPD
may take the form of attendance at external forums or briefing sessions
on relevant topics.
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The Directors are required to provide the Company with details of CPD
training undertaken by them from time to time. Summary of the Directors’
training records for the year is set out below:

BERATHAARARREE2EFEFTED
FECNFAER - BRESFRNEIIRCE
AR

Reading
Seminars Webcasts materials Total

Directors ==} B PR ETE BEER wst

(Hours) (Hours) (Hours) (Hours)

(/)\B5) (/1\B5) (/1B (/1)
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yu Shaoeng REETEE 6 6 8 20
Mr. Lai Tin Ming NS 6 6 8 20
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Chan Suet Ling PRES 24 10 6 6 22
Independent non-executive BIYFHTES

Directors

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack BFREEE 6 4 8 18
Mr. Meng Enhai HEBEE 6 6 6 18
Mr. Ni Fuhua REERE 4 6 8 18

DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL

Each of the executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors were appointed without a specific employment tenure, but
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM pursuant to
the articles of association of the Company.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, at each
AGM one third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. Such retiring Directors may,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM. All Directors
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the
first general meeting of Shareholders after their appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting and all Directors appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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In accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
notwithstanding anything to the contrary in other clauses in the articles of
association of the Company or in any agreement between the Company
and such Directors (but without prejudice to any claim for damages under
any such agreement), the Directors can be removed from office by notice
in writing served upon him or her signed by not less than three-fourths in
number of the total number of Directors then in office (or, if that is not a
round number, the nearest lower round number) and for the avoidance
of doubt, the counting of the total number of Directors then in office shall
include such Director subject to the proposed removal.

None of the Directors has a service contract with any member of the
Group which is not determinable by the relevant employer within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”), nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
and remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. Their respective terms of
reference are set out in the Company’s website.

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee on 28 May 2013 with
terms of reference in compliance with paragraphs C3.3 and C3.7 of the
Code.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, among other things,
reviewing and supervising the financial reporting process and internal
control systems, as well as the overall risk management of the Group,
reviewing the consolidated financial statements and the quarterly, interim
and annual reports of the Group, and reviewing the terms of engagement
and scope of audit work of the external auditors. In this regard, members
of the Audit Committee will liaise with the Board, the senior management
and auditors. The Audit Committee will also consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts and give consideration to any matters that have been raised by
the accounting staff, compliance officer or auditors.
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The composition of the Audit Committee during the year and up to the
date of this annual report is as follows:

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack (Chairman)
Mr. Meng Enhai
Mr. Ni Fuhua

The members of the Audit Committee possess diversified industry
experience and the chairman of the Audit Committee has appropriate
professional qualifications and experience in accounting matters.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management of the Group
the financial and accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Group, its internal controls and financial reporting matters and the above
audited annual results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2025.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year under review.
Details of the attendance of the Audit Committee meetings are as follows:
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AC Meeting
Members attend/
Eligible to attend

EREER
REE
EERHERS
Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack (Chairman) B RREE(EE) 4/4
Mr. Meng Enhai HEBBEE 4/4
Mr. Ni Fuhua REERE 4/4
Nomination Committee REZEE
The Company has established the Nomination Committee on 28 May AARER-_ZE—=FAA -+ /\BKIIRH
2013 with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5.2 of ZE& @ EEEEHETETRIFAS.2E < 124

the Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying
and nomination of directors and making recommendations to the Board
on appointment and reappointment of Directors.

The composition of the Nomination Committee during the year and up to
the date of this annual report is as follows:

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack (Chairman)
Mr. Meng Enhai
Mr. Ni Fuhua

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance in compliance with
paragraph A.6 of the Code.
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When identifying suitable candidates for directorship, the Nomination
Committee shall carry out the selection process by making reference to
the skills, experience, education background, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed candidates,
and also the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations. Qualified candidates then be recommended to the
Board for approval.

Board Diversity Policy

The nomination committee recognises the importance and benefits of
diversity of Board members. The Board adopted the board diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) in order to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience, gender and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company’s business. In designing the Board’s
composition, board diversity has been considered from a number of
aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, qualifications, business and professional
experience, skills, knowledge, length of service, commitment, and ability
to contribute to the Board process. The nomination committee will assess
the progress made towards achieving such measurable objectives, and
will review such objectives annually to ensure their appropriateness. The
nomination committee considered the composition of the Board was in
compliance with the Board Diversity Policy.

The Board will continue to take initiatives to promote gender diversity
at all levels of the Company. The Board will strive to ensure the Board
is made up of a reasonable and justifiable proportion of women by
reference to stakeholders’ expectations and international and local
recommended best practices.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year under
review. Details of the attendance of the Nomination Committee meeting
are as follows:
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NC Meeting
Members attend/
Eligible to attend

REZES

BEHE

EERHEERE

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack (Chairman) B2 E(FE) 11
Mr. Meng Enhai HEBEE 1/1
Mr. Ni Fuhua REELE 1/1
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee on 28 May
2013 with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1.2 of the
Code.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, among
other things, formulating and making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration policy, determining the specific remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and senior management and making
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-executive
Directors.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management (other than
the Directors) whose particulars are contained in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report for the year ended 30 June 2025 by band is set out as follows:

FeEECGET)

Remuneration band (in HK$)

FMWEES

RRBER -T—=FHH =+ /\B L
ZEg HREBENATRFEBI.2EK -

FHEZEEMEIRRAERE(ETRE)FIFTR
IHHBCRMESSELERZS BT 2R
HITEELSQEEENABHIE - UK
MIEMITESNFMRAES S FhERER -

RBCEERATAEBASG  BE-_T_1F
NAZTALFESREREABZHBERA
FRIEENSREBABRE] - SRE
BAB(BEERINNFEFHZBEFIINT
X

Number of individuals

A™

Nil to 1,000,000 Z£%£1,000,000
Further particulars in relation to Directors’ remuneration and the
five highest paid individuals are set out in the notes 7 and 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The composition of the Remuneration Committee during the year and up
to the date of this annual report is as follows:

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack (Chairman)
Mr. Meng Enhai
Mr. Ni Fuhua

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year under
review. Details of the attendance of the Remuneration Committee
meetings are as follows:
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Members attend/
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Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack (Chairman) B2 E(FE) 11
Mr. Meng Enhai #=EGRE 11
Mr. Ni Fuhua REELE 1/1
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF MEETINGS

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly at least four times a year, and
Directors shall receive at least seven days prior written notice of such
meetings in compliance with paragraph A.1.1 of the Code. Agendas and
accompanying papers are sent before the Board meetings to ensure that
the Directors are given sufficient time to review the same.

When Directors or Board committee members are unable to attend a
meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given
an opportunity to make their views known to the Chairperson prior to the
meeting. Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committee meetings
will be recorded in sufficient detail to include the matters considered by
the Board and the Board committee and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and Board committee meeting will be sent to the Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is
held.

During the year under review, the Board held five board meetings and
one general meeting. The Directors attended those meetings in person,
by phone or through other electronic means of communication.

The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings during
the year under review is set out below:
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FREZER BEZEQANEEELESY
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EESZBEMERNEERPTERAVRE
BREEFRENENRE - ZEFQIRE
FEZRERR IR BRERAKRNERE
TEARZAERAAFTEGES  UHES
REBR -

REBEFER  BEFR@RTARNFTRESS
FLRBRAEG - EFHRIHF - BAERE
FEHMEFRADELEZSTEH
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Members attend/
Eligible to attend

HEEER
HERE
Board General
Meeting Meeting

EEg IR
Name of Directors EEHR =F N1
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Yu Shaoheng REAFRE 5/5 0/1
Mr. Lai Tin Ming N e 5/5 11
Non-executive Director FHITEE
Ms. Chan Suet Ling PRER LT 2/2 0/0
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHHITESE
Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack BFREE 5/5 0/1
Mr. Meng Enhai wEETE 5/5 01
Mr. Ni Fuhua REERE 5/5 0/1
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All business transacted at the Board meetings and by written resolutions
were well-documented. Minutes of the Board meetings and written
resolutions are kept by the Company Secretary and are available to all
Directors.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the Board on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2025. The
Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the accounts
and presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment for
the Group’s performance, position and prospects. The Directors are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

The Company’s auditors, Baker Tilly, acknowledge their reporting
responsibilities in the independent auditor’s report to the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2025,
which are set out in “Independent Auditors Report” section on pages 95
to 100 of this report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The fees charged by Baker Tilly in respect of audit services and non-audit
services for the year ended 30 June 2025 amounted to approximately
HK$888,000 and HK$4,000 respectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that proper and
effective risk management and internal control systems (the “RMIC
System”) of the Group are maintained. The senior management of the
Company is delegated with the responsibility to design and implement
an internal control system to manage risks. The senior management of
the whole Group, including but not limited to, the directors, executives
and super of the major operating units of the Group, maintains, monitors
and implements the risk management and internal control systems on an
ongoing basis.

The Group’s RMIC System include a defined management structure
with specified limits of authority, which are designed to achieve business
objectives and goals, safeguard assets against unauthorised use or
disposition, control over operating and capital expenditures, ensure
the maintenance of proper books and records for providing reliable
financial information used for internal or publication purposes, and ensure
compliance with relevant legislation and regulations.

EEee LUEEMRZRRBEZHAEEHCE
ERFE - ARAMECFEEFEER L
REMRZESR  WRAIHMBAERER -

LEVSE:2A

BERRECRESERHNARRBE-_S -1
FRAZTHLEFENGAEMHEHRER - EFS
EREEAEREKRA M2 AEERE R
SR ATRE) S B R 2 E S c EFALAS
MEEAAEERASEEBRSERERE
REMRENZBERERNEHHAR BN
TR EARTHAPREE -

RAFZBERBEENARRBE_T -4
FRA=ZTRLFESAMBHRRNBIZH
RS AEREENERTE - ERABEEN
AIREEIBEI00AE B L EADHRE | —66 -

1o B4 B 57 B

AEEEMBE—_E-_AF A AA=1TRHIFE
R EZ IR MIEEZ RIS WENR B A 5 B4
/5888,0007 7T &2 4,000/8 7T °

2\ B B TR I A B

EXER2HAERARESEEMARNERE
BRABEZERG([AREERARREZER
Bl) ARBSREREEREATRNE
MEARRREIE R GAE R - BESENSH
EEE(BREMNRRAEELIZLEEMN
EF THABRESR)FEGAE E5KE
TR EIE Kk AERE R RAR o

AEENRBREENAREERGREAERE
ERERMATERRE  SEERXFENOR
BiR REEERXAKEEERAREGE @ 12
HREREAFY  BRFEEENRERC
SALRHAERF S TR R FMHER -
AR MR B TR AR SR -

HBRZERARIRE Fi 2025 51



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ &A%

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to meet
the Group’s particular needs and risks to be exposed, and to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss, and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operations
systems achievement of the Group’s objectives and goals.

The Group is committed to maintaining and upholding good corporate
governance practice and RMIC System. The Group has established
controlling teams (the “Controlling Teams”) nominated by the Board and
the Audit Committee comprising the directors, executives and supervisors
of the major operating units of the Group to take up the responsibilities
of monitoring the day-to-day operational management, risk management
function, and internal control systems of all operating units of Group,
integrating with the systems of monthly and annual planning and
budgeting process, counter-approval and implementation and control
process, identifying any risk or possible failure of the operating units, and
reporting and making suggestions on how each operating unit to achieve
the objectives and goals set. The controlling teams meet regularly with
the Board and the Audit Committee and report on matters to be updated
to the Board and the Audit Committee timely.

Risk Management Approach

The Group strives to identify and assess the key risks faced by the Group
based on the following risk management approach:

(i) Risks Identification

—  The Controlling Teams are responsible for identifying potential
risks, through periodically reviewing the Group’s business and
financial data, testing the effectiveness of the Group’s existing
internal control procedures and policies; and

— All staff are required and encouraged to report any risks,
particularly those risks that are material weaknesses and
deviation in the Group’s existing internal control procedures
and policies, to the Controlling Teams or the Board and the
Audit Committee.

(i) Risks Assessment and Measurement

— Risks identified or reported are further evaluated and
scrutinised, through consolidating, filtering and prioritising
processes by the Controlling Teams;

—  Material risks that may seriously affect the business, operational
or financial aspects of the Group are immediately handled by
the Controlling Teams, the Board and the Audit Committee;
and
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Immaterial risks that are acceptable to the Group will be closely
monitored by the Controlling Teams to ensure that the level of
risk will not increase to an unacceptable level.

(iii) Risks Control and Mitigation

Considering and weighting the benefits and costs of all
available solutions and choosing the appropriate ones;

Elimination of the material risks entirely by taking immediate
remedy actions such as modifying the Group’s existing
business strategies, internal controls and operational
procedures; and

Mitigation of the material risks by reducing their impact as
much as possible such as transferring the impact of the risks
to third parties and implementing alternative procedures and
policies.

(iv) Risks Monitoring

The Board and the Audit Committee in conjunction with the
Controlling Teams closely monitor the risks identified and the
progress of the remedy actions taken to ensure that the level
of risk will not increase to an unacceptable level; and

Risk assessment report and internal control review report are
submitted by the Controlling Teams to the Board and the Audit
Committee annually for their review.

During the year, the Controlling Teams has summarized the risks
identified and reviewed the effectiveness of the RMIC System. The
findings have been summarised and submitted to the Board and the
Audit Committee for review. The Board and the Audit Committee
concluded that the RMIC System is effective and adequate and the
principal risks identified have been adequately controlled.

The principal risks identified and related control procedures are set out in
the paragraph headed “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” in the “Directors’
Report” section from pages 27 to 30 of this annual report respectively.
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PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR
THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group discloses inside information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any of the safe
harbours as stated in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to
the public, the Group ensures the information is not false or misleading
as to a material fact, nor false or misleading through the omission of a
material fact in view of presenting information in a clear and balanced
way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.
If the Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot
be maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group
would immediately disclose the information to the public.

Certain policies and procedures have been taken by the Group to
ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure
requirement in relation to the Group, which include but not limited
to (i) trainings or briefings are provided to employees who will be in
possession of inside information to ensure that they are fully conversant
with their obligations to preserve confidentiality with reasonable care;
(i) confidentiality documents are kept by the designated personnel
and placed in the designated locked areas; (i) transmission of inside
information in electronic form should be password-protected; and (iv)
access of inside information is restricted to designated employees on a
need-to-know basis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board’s process
and communications among Board members and with the Shareholders
and the management, and advising the Board and its committees on
all corporate governance matters. He reports to the Board and/or the
Managing Director and his selection, appointment or dismissal shall be a
Board decision.

The Directors have accessed to the advice and services of the company
secretary to ensure that board procedures and all applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed. The company secretary took more than 15
hours’ professional training for the year ended 30 June 2025.

54 PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2025

EEREBRAFEENEFRAIE
=

FRIFERE B BN ES BB R MER %
2EINEER BAAKESESEYER
TOBERTERARREEARHEE - EAQ
FEMBBEAREENZA  AREERRBREH
ERTERETNEAFTERSERIEER
B IR ARENFEN T X E2RER
(REEAREHEEFTERSHEMNS) MER
EXFE  BERSERLELRE - WAL
ERRBEIERVENRTREEHAHEEER
RERE  UAKEBIERARKEEHE
#t o

REEERKIE THERET - WRRFEER
ERRIEREE - ATRY I8 R SAEE G B H
BATE - BEETRN()MAEEREANREEBH
EERHIFIIHAER - MREZ T2 AFBHIA
SEZBENOFRETRENEST  (VMRE XM
HIEEABRE  WIFHAIEEN LHEY
(ifABFREAFERARECEREFHRE
RVAEBEEEAHETREERANEER
%&\o

NEAME

RENEREBHESSEE  URREES
GKE  BRNEEREZHENER  XHAE
CEEARFEAEFELEZRGRHER -
REAMEMNEFTER LEFLEERET
tF MARWENHEE  REXERAHES
BRE o

EENESQTIWENE R KR - UERE
TEESRFLAMBEBER AR ERH -
REBEZ_Z-_AFA=1THILFE ' A8
EE2XHEBIB15/ R BRER -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ & A&

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting and to put forward proposals at
Shareholders’ meeting

Any one or more Members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
by addressing them to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company by mail at Office A, 12/F, Tower A, Capital Tower, No. 38
Wai Yip Street, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The company
secretary of the Company is responsible for forwarding communications
relating to matters within the Board’s direct responsibilities to the
Board and communications relating to ordinary business matters, such
as suggestions and inquiries, to the relevant executive officer of the
Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency
and employs a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant information
to the Shareholders and the investing public. The Company’s corporate
website is www.ppsintholdings.com.

All corporate communication materials published on the website of
the Stock Exchange (http://www.hkexnews.hk) are posted on the
Company’s corporate website (http://www.ppsintholdings.com) as
soon as practicable after their release. The Company’s constitutional
documents are also available on our website. No significant changes
were made to these documents during the year ended 30 June 2025.
Information on the website shall be updated on a regular basis.

Share registration matters shall be handled for the Shareholders by the
Company’s share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far
East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong.
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PPS International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group” or “We”) are delighted to present
its Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report (the “ESG
Report”). This ESG Report herein focuses on providing an overview of
the ESG aspects of the Group and outlines how we continually improve
our operational strategy in regard to our environment and society to cope
with the global standards of sustainability.

For details on the corporate governance of the Company, please refer to
the “Corporate Governance Report” section of this Annual Report.

For details in relation to our financial performance during the financial
year, please refer to the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section
and the audited financial statements together with related notes of this
Annual Report respectively.

REPORT SCOPE AND BOUNDARY

This ESG Report has outlined the overall Group’s performance in
environmental protection, human resources, operating practice and
community involvement for the financial year ended 30 June 2025 (the
“Reporting Period” or “2025”).

Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report encompasses data from
the Group’s operating units in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) — Shanghai. It includes the money lending and
environmental cleaning services sectors. The reporting scope is defined
by the ESG materiality of each business segment under the Group’s
direct operational control.
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PREPARATION BASIS OF THE ESG REPORT

The ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (the “ESG
Reporting Guide”) as set out in Appendix C2 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

In preparing the ESG Report, the Group adhered to the reporting
principles outlined in the ESG Reporting Guide, emphasising materiality,
quantitative, and consistency. Detailed information on the application of
materiality is provided in the section titled “ESG Management — Materiality
Assessment”. The Group has utilised the international standards and
emission factors specified in the ESG guidance from the Stock Exchange
to calculate the relevant key performance indicators (“KPIs”)'. Unless
otherwise stated, the preparation approach for this ESG Report remains
consistent with the fiscal year ended 30 June 2024 (“2024”) for
comparative purposes. Any changes in calculation methodologies that
may affect comparisons with previous reports will be accompanied by
appropriate explanations for the relevant data. Additionally, the ESG
Report offers a fair representation of the Group’s performance during the
Reporting Period, avoiding any selections, omissions, or presentation
styles that could unduly influence the reader’s decisions or judgments.

! Calculation with reference to “How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2:
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange.
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ESG MANAGEMENT
Statement of the Board

As an environmental protection and cleaning services enterprise, we
value environmental sustainability and have been striving to integrate the
concept into every part of our daily business operations. The ESG Report
summarises the strategy, practice and vision of our Group with respect to
the issues related to ESG, and conveys a clear message of our Group’s
devotion to sustainability.

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) holds overarching responsibility
for supervising our Group’s ESG-related risks and opportunities. It
outlines the ESG management approach, strategy, priorities, and targets.
Additionally, the Board conducts an annual review of the Group’s
performance against established ESG-related targets. In line with our
commitment to being a responsible corporate citizen, we have established
an ESG Working Group (the “ESG Working Group”) comprising members
from middle to senior management. The ESG Working Group supports
the Board in executing ESG-related strategies and targets and promotes
the implementation of measures addressing identified ESG issues.

The Board will continue to review our Group’s progress in relation to ESG
issues in order to build a more sustainable business and bring greater
benefits to society as a whole.

The Board
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The Board is responsible for the overall decision-making process and overseeing
the formulation, administration, and assessment of the ESG system.

EX2RRREARMELEERE £ REARMARIL -

ESG Working Group
R HERERINEAE

B R -

The ESG Working Group is responsible for assisting the Board in managing and

monitoring the ESG matters on a daily basis.

R HEREATHFEAERHBHESTSERRERRE - HEREANARE

FH-

Functional Departments
BiREERPY

Functional departments are responsible for the execution of measures to achieve

the preset ESG-related strategies and targets.

BEERFIR BENTAHBE RN EREENRE HEREARBL AR -
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Our Stakeholders

As stakeholders play a crucial role in sustaining the success of
our business, we make use of various communication channels to
understand and engage our stakeholders. We believe that stakeholder
engagement helps us better understand the needs and concerns of all
our key stakeholders. The probable points of concern of the stakeholders
and the way of our communication and responses are listed below.

BRNELE

RN EEEFRAXBRYTEEEES
MEZEMNER  MRMSASEEBRENE
LRSI NE - LFEE  HHENSESR
BHRMTHEAEIESNENTERBLISE
H o FHENFTEREBIA KRR M E R K Ol
FEFIREAT ©

Stakeholders Probable Points of Concern Communication and Responses

BHE TIRERAIE B BEREE

Stock Exchange Compliance with the Listing Rules, and timely Meetings, training, workshops, programs, website
and accurate announcements. updates, and announcements.

Bk 22 P P ETARR - RFERMTEAE o 2% 18V IEY - 5HE - MUEHRRAS -

Government Compliance with laws and regulations, Interaction and visits, government inspections,

preventing tax evasion, business ethics, and
social welfare.

T BPREREO - Pyt - Rkt
BRI o

Investors and Corporate governance, business strategies and

shareholders performance, and investment returns.

HEERBRE PEES  EBRBERER - ARRERR -

Media and public Corporate governance, environmental
protection, and human rights.

HERAR PEER RERRAK -

Suppliers Corporate reputation, payment schedule, and
stable demand.

HrEm TEERE  AREHRREEERK

Customers Service quality, service delivery schedule,

reasonable prices, service value, and personal
data protection.

LSS REE X - RRISIREGE - SRER - REE
BREABURRE -

tax returns, ongoing communication with relevant
government departments, and other information.
BEIRFD - BUTRE - @R - SRR
PR EERIA R EMER -

Briefing sessions and seminars, interviews,
shareholders’ meetings, issue of financial reports
or operation reports for investors, ESG reports,
and media and analysts.

EEEmE LA - % RRARE - RE
o REROTEREVBREREERE AR
RIR - B RERTRE -

Newsletters on the Company’s website.
TEANA RIAE L B IR AR ©

Site visits.

BT -

After-sales services.

BRI -
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Stakeholders Probable Points of Concern Communication and Responses

& TTREEAE B EERERE

Employees Rights and benefits of employees, Union activities, trainings, interviews with
compensation, training and development, work  employees, internal memos, and employee
hours, occupational health and safety, and suggestion boxes.
working environment.

(== EENENREN - #E  IBIIREERE T IT&58 5 EBESHK  ABEELES
R BERRERL2ARTIERE - BERM-

Community Community environment, employment Community activities, employee voluntary
opportunities, community development, and activities, and community welfare subsidies and
social welfare. donations.

Fan HERE  ERHE HRERIEEEN - HRED EBERITEH - HRENHI LB

Materiality Assessment

To ensure prompt and proper management of key sustainability issues,
all ESG issues that may have a potential impact on our business
operation are evaluated annually. Material aspects are those that reflect
the Group’s significant economic, environmental and social impacts;
or that substantially influence the assessments and decisions of our
stakeholders. We have compiled and prioritised the material aspects with
reference to an array of factors, including our Group’s overall strategy,
development, goals and targets. In addition, we have included KPIs
in this ESG Report to provide our stakeholders and the public with a
more comprehensive and profound understanding of the effectiveness
of the implemented operational strategies in pursuing environmental
sustainability. These priorities enable us to fulfil our commitment to our
stakeholders while effectively managing our impact on society and the
environment.
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The Group identified 15 ESG topics and developed a corresponding
questionnaire. Responses were collected and analysed, with the findings
presented in a materiality matrix. This matrix was reviewed by the Board
and senior management to ensure it aligns with the Group’s strategic
objectives and accurately reflects stakeholder priorities. It will serve as
a reference for shaping future strategies, setting targets, and guiding
communications. A summary of the Group’s material ESG issues for the
Reporting Period is shown in the matrix below:

AEEBRHSHRE - LB MERHEE ¥
RETEERS - RRESNOER  BERE
BERBEMERES  HEBLEESNSNE
BEEMN  UEFRETSASEEEBEFRILAE
ERREFDEBTER - HERHIERKE
B - REBEMESRBNEZE - HEHRER
AEEBERE  H@REAZERMI TR
PR -

-
<

I

The Group’s Materiality Matrix

AEBNEEMIER
High A
=
f 7. Training Management
10. Fair and Transparent i e

Procuremenf g 6. Employee Health

N3 a Management
o 2. Waste DY BRI élfggrgéﬁii
] M}gggegent 12. Privacy
% Ed f@ =2 Pfotect'gn e——— 11. Customer
oW FBIRIE Service
© bR 13. Intellectual =t
x = P = F RS
© : roperty
% Ho 4. Climate Change s 2=
c® Mitigation Actions
O 4 RIFBLERITE
= / 9. Supply Chain
@ M Management
g- 8. Prevention of Child and {LpESE
- Forced Labour

B 1E B T ERIEEE _ _
14. Anti-corruption 5. Employment
1. Emissions Control RES Practices
HHEH \\L BB
B. Resogr;%e*bl thsat'on 15. Community Investment
Low HERE
1K >
Low Impact on business High
1= HEKHNZE =
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITION

BEARET

Our outstanding business performance has earned us various industry ~ HfIZ MM EEE R FFRERZTEER -
awards which have further reinforced our position in the market. The — #—#ZE T RPN T B - AEBEER
Group continues to be recognised for its efforts to promote corporate B AEFT R EL S E X MEBZA - TR
social responsibilities. The following table shows what we have achieved — REAFIRHE BB NESH K R (BER T D %

during the Reporting Period, in no particular order.

Organisers

EZ Y]

%) e

Awards/Certifications

®EEBE

Association of China Commercial Enterprise
Management
PEEECEERHE

Association of China Commercial Enterprise
Management

FEREXEXEERGE

Association of China Commercial Enterprise
Management

TEmEEXERHE

Association of China Commercial Enterprise
Management

TEBELCXREERE

Association of China Commercial Enterprise
Management

TEEECEEERS

Association of China Commercial Enterprise
Management

PEEBECEER RS

Environmental Protection Department

REREE

Environmental Protection Department
RIBIREE

Green Council
RRIBES

Business Environment Council

BRRRBE

Environmental Contractors Management Association

Limited
RRTIIEZHE

The Federation of Environmental And Hygienic Services

FERREERS

Qualification Level Certificate of China Cleaning Industry —
National 1st Level Qualification
PEBRBERITERSREL —EAR R

Property Cleaning Hosting Quialification

MEBRTEERE

Qualification of Stone Cleaning and Maintenance

AMBEAREERE

Quallification of High-Altitude Facades Cleaning

BEIMEESREE

Quallification of Central Air-Conditioning System Cleaning and
Maintenance

ShEARGEABEEE

Qualification of Indoor Environment Purification and Monitoring

ENRB R CEEAEE

Certificate of Commendation for joining the Carbon Footprint
Repository for Listed Companies in Hong Kong

FIBHk— B8 E A T AR E

Registered Food Waste Collector

A R ER R

Member of the Sustainable Procurement Charter
AHERBOENKE

Certificate of Membership

& 5K
eEHEE

Certificate of Membership

ils)3

e
Eui%

Certificate of Membership

T
SEXE
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Organisers

EW|A

Awards/Certifications

®E BE

Hong Kong Cleaning Association

YOI

Hong Kong Waste Disposal Industry Association

EREYREERE

BSI Pacific Limited
BSIAF ¥ HRAF

BSI Pacific Limited
BSIKFFABRAA

BSI Pacific Limited
BSIKFFABRAA

Environmental Campaign Committee
RBEBHEEE

Environmental Campaign Committee

il

BREDE e

Environmental Campaign Committee

8

RIGESEE
Occupational Safety & Health Council
BEZRERER

Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
BEMEATESHEIERR

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
BELERGHE

Certificate of Membership

& 5k
gERE

~RAz =

Certificate of Membership

T
%Euﬂ%

ISO 9001:2015
ISO 9001:2015

ISO 14001:2015
ISO 14001:2015

ISO 45001:2018
ISO 45001:2018

Hong Kong Green Organisation Certification — Energywi$e
Certificate — Basic Level

BB CHERE —HeEE - ERAR

Hong Kong Green Organisation Certification — Wastewi$e
Certificate — Excellence Level

BB ERERE —REREE -2 BAR

Environmental Initiatives and Participation — Hong Kong Awards
for Environmental Excellence

RIEBREATEIELEE W R2E -FERREWAE

Best Property Contractor in Occupational Safety and Health —
GOLD

RIEBLEYEERAPE — 1R

Good MPF Employer
BerfEE

Caring Company
EREEE
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ENVIRONMENTAL
Overview

We are an environmental protection and cleaning services enterprise.
We are committed to increasing the efficiency of resource utilisation
and enhancing our environmental performance by adopting world-class
environmental protection practices in our business dealings.

We strive to work towards a ‘green’ and sustainable working environment
by improving energy efficiency, addressing waste management,
supporting environmental education and promoting the idea of recycling
and reusing. Our Group has established an environmental management
system and relevant policies and procedures for our business that
meet the international industry-specific environmental standards and
obtained ISO 14001:2015 certification. The Operation and Administrative
Department constantly reviews our internal operational practices to
ensure that they are in line with the concept of sustainable corporate
development. Policies and measures were strengthened and improved
this year to effectively manage undesirable environmental impact.

The scale and quality of services of our Group’s environmental and
cleaning services business in the PRC, especially in Shanghai, are
expected to be stable in the following years.

To achieve the environmental goals, the Group has implemented the
following measures:

e Comply with all applicable environmental laws and regulations;

e I[dentify, assess and mitigate all potential environmental impacts
associated with the Group’s activities;

e Commit leadership and develop a strong culture of environmental
stewardship within the entire workforce; and

e Make resources and systems available, with the provision of
the necessary training to empower our employees to fulfil our
environmental responsibilities.

Compliance and Grievance

During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant environmental
laws and regulations that had a significant impact on us, including but not
limited to the Environmental Ordinance in Hong Kong. No confirmed non-
compliance incidents or grievances were noted by the Group in relation
to environmental issues.
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Emissions
Air Emissions

The Group’s air emissions are mainly generated from the consumption
of diesel and petrol by company vehicles. During the Reporting Period,
we owned company vehicles for our business operations, as well as
transporting our management team members, guests and clients.

During the Reporting Period, the Group reduced its use of vehicles
supporting daily operations. As a result, both fuel use and travel distance
declined overall, which in turn contributed to a modest reduction in air
emissions compared with 2024.

The performance of air emissions is summarised below:

2357

R GERL

AREBE BRI EBRE AR ERA RN &
FURDHFE - RIEHRA - WAIEB R RE
RAREBHEEURZARMNEEEMHKE -
BENEP

REHREA - REBER D FHF B HEZW

B
WEMR - Bt - MIERERERRERET
B BHERINER T MFRA o

FERPF PRI T -

Unit 2025 2024
Indicator EE B —EC-ERE il 1123
Nitrogen oxides (NO,) AAlLy g 1,677,834.51 2,000,240.03
Sulphur oxides (SO,) k=Rt g 2,228.96 2,362.85
Particulate matter (PM) TR g% 130,292.06 151,125.11

To mitigate air emissions, the Group actively executes the reduction
measures, please refer to the “Greenhouse Gas Emissions” sections for
details.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The major sources of greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions of the Group
are direct GHG emissions from the consumption of diesel and petrol
by company vehicles (Scope 1), energy indirect GHG emissions from
purchased electricity (Scope 2), and other indirect GHG emissions from
paper waste disposed to landfill and employee’s business travel by
air (Scope 3). In the absence of a production process, the emissions
generated from our business activities are relatively minimal, and our
services do not contribute to material impacts on the environment.
Nevertheless, we have implemented various measures to minimise
emissions, thus reducing the impact on the environment, which will be
detailed later in this section.

AR BERBER - NEEEERIURPHEE

FHEF2HDAEREBYEN ] —6f -

AEERERE(DEERB DRI ERER
BIEEER TR RN ER R TR BN
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During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a modest decline in ~ MAR&EHIM A » AEER ERES NAERE
total GHG emissions, mainly attributable to reduced use of company 4 - TERNARHEBEBLSEN QA RIER

vehicles for daily operations, which contributed to a slight improvement in
overall emissions performance.

Hy

R - BRBIRRIRERIRENE

The performance of GHG emissions is summarised below: BERBHNERRBMT
Unit 2025 2024
Indicator® 5Ee B —EC-REF —EMF
Scope 1 - Direct GHG HE1-HEEZBEE
Emissions KREHEK
Fuel consumption by company A a]EBEHFAKHEFE kg CO,e 380,880.38 389,433.98
vehicles Fr_StRE=
Scope 2 - Energy Indirect HE2 - s R
GHG Emissions BER R
Purchased electricity INEE N kg CO,e 19,925.33 20,644.44
Fr_StRE=
Scope 3 - Other Indirect GHG £33 — H th B4
Emissions BER R
Paper waste disposal [EE 4 B 12 kg CO,e 5,844.00 6,643.44
Fr_StRE=
Business travel by air RS IR kg COe - -
Fr_StREE
Total GHG Emissions BERBATEKR kg CO,e 406,649.71 416,721.86
FR-&ELREE
GHG Emissions Intensity BERBHERZE kg CO,e/ 0.81 0.85
thousand
revenue?
FR-&ELRE
2T riize

2 During the Reporting Period, the Group’s total revenue in thousand Hong 2

Kong dollars is 502,430.00 (2024: 488,074.00). This data is also used to
calculate other intensity data.

S Emission data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide equivalent and is ~ °

based on, but not limited to, “The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standards” issued by the World Resources
Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable Development,
“How to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix Il: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” issued by the HKEX, the latest released average carbon
dioxide emission factor for national electricity in China, published by the
Ministry of Ecology and Environment in December 2024 and the “2024
Sustainability Report” published by Hong Kong Electric Investments Limited.
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The Group successfully met the targets established in the previous
report. To uphold the principles of sustainable development with a view
of balancing business growth, we are trying to reducing or maintaining
the GHG emissions intensity between 95% to 120% in the next reporting
period by adopting the measures specified in the subsection headed
“Energy Usage” and also the following mitigating measures:

Fleet Management

At the end of each month, we would obtain a summary of fuel
consumption from our service provider to monitor the usage of fuel in all
our vehicles. Furthermore, regular maintenance checks are performed
for all the vehicles to enhance fuel consumption efficiency, ensure road
safety and keep air and GHG emissions at their minimum.

Air-conditioning

Employees are encouraged to set the offices’ air-conditioners at a
comfortable temperature (best at 25.5 degrees Celsius) and all the air-
conditioners that are not in use should be switched off. The Group
has also put reminder notices at prominent places to raise employees’
awareness of electricity consumption and energy conservation.

Travelling by Air

During the Reporting Period, there were no business air travels taken by
the employees, resulting in zero kg CO,e GHG emissions. Employees are
required to travel by air, when necessary, otherwise, we would arrange
telephone or video conference calls instead of face-to-face meetings to
reduce the carbon emissions that are indirectly caused by air travel.

Use of Resources

We always endeavour to promote sustainability and aim to cease
resource wastage that provokes detrimental harm to the environment.
Various measures have been implemented to attain the goal of
using resources efficiently. These measures have been effectively
communicated to all levels of staff, ensuring all staff members understand
clearly the importance of conserving energy and making full use of the
available resources at work.

REBEKNER E—HBREPRENEZ - B
FRHAUFBERRRA  BRERIEEER
335 3B ERER [ BEJR(E A | D BRFTHIFE e LA B2 T 5
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R R R D R EFFEIS%E120% ¢

BHEERE
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MREDBRERLE - BRI A B AR
RBMR © 1o - BRI EETE RS
B - AMBRITPUREFRERE - BREKZE
KRR R SR E R B E R ERIENRF

=

HPIZEEE SR A ENZEHREETENR
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Based on our operating model of the environmental and cleaning
business, most of our water, electricity and energy consumption
is directly provided by our customers or publicly sourced by the
government and such consumption quantity is not controllable by us.
Nevertheless, the Group has formulated policies and educated the
employees on the efficient use of resources including energy, water and
other raw materials in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations.
Internal environmental review has been conducted regularly to assess the
environmental impact of the group business activities so that energy and
water usage can be closely monitored. Measures that have been taken to
minimise the usage of resources are detailed below.

Water Usage

The existing water supply adequately meets our daily operational needs,
which are mainly used for cleaning and sanitation, and we have no
difficulties in sourcing water. The Group recorded a reduction in water
consumption during the Reporting Period, attributable primarily to the
implementation of effective water management measures.

RIBIRFSF R RGO EES - HAKRED
K BREFBEREZHEPRHIABRTE
RIEH - BREBBREEEHRFIES - A
- AEEERBEAERFOEABIEBER -
HERBARNARELR - KEEAMRT
ERANER - R EEHETRPRREEE
UHEREXRF RS HIRBNTE - WETL])
ERERIKNERBR - BERARE R D
BIRER - HPIFRIEERSABOT

KIREHR

BAEHKEARERMEREEERS T2
RBRRAEE - BRI RKBUKRT B &R
o AEERMEMASRSRKETR 2
BERBRKEREEEENER -

The performance of water usage is summarised below: KIRERRRBMANT -
Unit 2025 2024
Indicator BE By —EC-REF —EMEF
Total Water Consumption Ak#Es mé3 5K 134.82 160.49
Water Consumption Intensity FA/KZE md/thousand 0.0003 0.0003
revenue
YFERFr
Wz

The Group successfully met the targets established in the previous
report. To uphold the principles of sustainable development with a view of
balancing business growth, we are trying to reducing or maintaining the
water consumption intensity between 95% to 120% in the next reporting
period by adopting the following mitigating measures:

We encourage our employees at headquarters to utilise resources
judiciously and ensure that faucets are turned off securely. Additionally,
we promptly address any dripping taps and install flow restrictors and
spray nozzles wherever feasible.
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Energy Usage

The major sources of energy usage of the Group are direct energy
consumption from the usage of diesel and petrol by company vehicles
and indirect energy consumption from purchased electricity. During the
Reporting Period, the Group recorded a slight reduction in total energy
consumption, primarily attributable to lower fuel usage by company

vehicles in support of daily operations.

The performance of energy usage is summarised below:

BEREST

REE ) E B EIRE AR B A B E A
SO MU EIRBEIROBRE - A RIMNBEE DK
B EERER - RIEHE - ARENRER
HRERARY  TERARRIFFATEERE
BE AR B MRHERD o

REREMRIRBL AT

Unit 2025 2024
Indicator B B —ECEF —ETNF
Direct Energy Consumption  EiZfE5E
Fuel consumption by company 2\ 5] B84 3 #5*
vehicles*
Diesel g KWh EL 1,472,940.87 1,550,942.62
Petrol i KWhF EL 8,793.55 19,709.51
Indirect Energy Consumption R#ZaE%E
Purchased electricity SNEES N KWhF EL 5 48,908.20 48,752.60
Total Energy Consumption HEEFE kWhT FLEF 1,530,642.62 1,619,404.73
Energy Consumption Intensity #E3E%E kWh/thousand
revenue?
FTEE Tx
Uy 2 3.05 3.32

4

The unit conversion method of energy consumption data is formulated
according to the “Energy Statistics Manual” issued by the International

Energy Agency.
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The Group successfully met the targets established in the previous
report. To uphold the principles of sustainable development with a view
of balancing business growth, we are trying to reducing or maintaining
the energy consumption intensity between 95% to 120% in the next
reporting period by adopting the following mitigating measures:

e  Turn off lighting and appliances that are not in use to reduce energy
consumption;

e Turn off air conditioners and lights during non-office hours and in
idle rooms;

° Employees are required to put computers and other devices into
sleeping mode or turn them off when they are not in use (such as
during customer visits and lunchtime) during business hours;

° Regular maintenance of office equipment such as computers, lights,
etc. to ensure they are operating efficiently;

e  Printing machine in the office is set to energy-saving mode by
default, and the sleeping mode is automatically turned on, when not
in use for a certain time interval;

° Used printer cartridges at the head office are sent back to the
manufacturers for recycling; and

e Place posters “Saving electricity, turn off the light when leaving”
at prominent places to encourage employees to reduce energy
consumption.

Generation of Waste

The primary hazardous waste generated during the Group’s daily
operations consists of chemical disinfectants and pesticides. In contrast,
the main non-hazardous waste comprises waste paper, towels, gloves,
scouring cloths, and garbage bags resulting from our cleaning services.
During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a slight increase in
total hazardous waste and a marginal decrease in non-hazardous waste
compared with 2024. The Group remains committed to enhancing
waste reduction initiatives, strengthening recycling efforts, and improving
resource efficiency to minimise environmental impact.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with all relevant
laws and regulations that significantly impact our operations, including,
but not limited to, the Waste Disposal Ordinance in Hong Kong. The
Group did not encounter any confirmed incidents of material non-
compliance or grievances.
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The performance of waste generation is summarised below:

BEEYELNRRHANT

Unit 2025 2024
Indicator B B —E-hEF —E-MmE
Hazardous Waste BEEBEEY
Chemical disinfectants ek kgT 52 119,564.80 105,203.45
Pesticides 75 a7 kgT 7 921.55 874.61
Total Hazardous Waste EEREYHEE kgT = 120,486.35 106,078.06
Hazardous Waste Intensity EEBEYRE kg/thousand 0.24 0.22
revenue’
Fr/ Tz
Non-hazardous Waste BEBEZEY
Waste paper REAR kgT 7 1,380.80 1,384.05
Towels ESn kgT 7 1,782.00 2,154.35
Gloves FE kgT 7 1,820.05 2,037.00
Scouring cloth B kgT 7 108.00 204.37
Garbage bags B 5% kgF5e 4,656.92 6,559.41
Total Non-hazardous Waste BEBEZEYHLE kgT = 9,747.77 12,339.18
Non-hazardous Waste MEREYRE kg/thousand 0.02 0.03
Intensity revenue’
Fr/Frkzse

The Group successfully met the targets established in the previous
report. To uphold the principles of sustainable development while
balancing business growth, we are trying to reducing or maintaining the
hazardous and non-hazardous waste intensity between 95% and 120%
in the next reporting period, considering the uncertainties associated with
future cleaning projects.

To achieve the target of alleviating the pressure on landfills and promoting
environmental friendliness within the Group, we have implemented
various measures to encourage the recycling of office supplies and other
materials.
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Reduction of Printing and Paper Usage

We require our staff members to make full use of office paper before
its disposal and have incorporated various measures into our business
operations. For example, we implemented the policy of double-sided
printing and copying and disseminating information by electronic means
whenever possible to reduce the consumption of paper. We encourage
our employees to avoid the use of disposable and non-recyclable
products and to use refillable stationeries instead of one-off stationeries.
Recycling bins are also available to collect used products, such as waste
papers and cartridge toners, at the headquarters. We will continue to
leverage the use of technology for communication with our employees
and customers, aiming to go paperless.

Reduction of Waste Generated from the Provision of Our Services

Employees are encouraged to organise, maintain, and clean the garbage
and recycling holding areas, ensuring that recyclable waste is sorted into
appropriate receptacles. Clear signage is placed on the bins to indicate
the types of waste and recyclables that should be deposited.

Additionally, our Group policy mandates that employees return all bottles
provided to them. Employees are prohibited from disposing of empty
bottles that contain cleaning chemicals without proper authorisation.
Instead, these bottles must be collected and refilled for reuse.

Climate Change

To address the global concern of climate change, which impacts both
environmental systems and daily life, the Group have integrated climate-
related issues into our risk management framework to enhance our
resilience and adaptive capacity to potential climate impacts.

Acute physical risks may arise from extreme weather events such
as flooding and storms, while chronic physical risks can result from
sustained high temperatures. Transition risks may emerge from changes
in environmental regulations. Extreme weather events can affect our
operations and our customers’ assets, potentially leading to damage
that hampers their ability to repay loans. Our evaluation indicates that
our Group serves customers located outside high-risk areas, thereby
reducing the risk of extreme weather events impacting our operations
and assets. However, sustained high temperatures do increase the risk
of heat-related illnesses for employees working outdoors. To address
this, we have established a safety management system and provided
guidelines for employees working in such conditions. Additionally, we
continuously monitor the regulatory environment to ensure our services
align with the expectations of our customers and regulators.
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According to the reporting framework developed by IFRS S2, climate-
related risks are typically divided into physical and transition risks. The
Group has incorporated climate change-related risks into its enterprise
risk management process and has identified and mitigated potential risks.
A summary of the identified climate-related risks is provided below:

RIERERI R EEZ 2RI ENMEERE - |
ERERKR - ATERBERR - ~EE
ERRERAERRAARGRREREFIE
R AEERE o B %5 REAEE R R
T

Potential Short (current Medium (one to Long (four to
Risk Type Risks Financial Impact Reporting Period) three years) tenyears) Mitigation Strategy
RRER EEnkzE BH(REEEE)  4E(-228)  RE(BETE) HERR
Physical Risks Extreme weather Reduced revenue v/ v/ o Establish adverse weather condition policy
conditions such as from business due to o Maintain or expand the supplier base to
flooding and typhoon business and supply avoid disruption
chain disruptions
Bk BRRRBR (KL REB R RN o HEESRRERNE
LEN) BHEREH o BRRBAEEFERIESRE
Sustained elevated Increased in business / » Adopt energy and resources conservation
temperature operating costs measures to avoid overconsumption of
natural resources
KRR BiHBEENE o REBWRRERSNER 28R
BRER
Transition Risks Changes in Higher operating costs / v/« Adopt energy conservation measures to
environmental-related to adopt new practices reduce emissions
regulations or technologies ¢ Continue to monitor the regulatory
environment to ensure that the Group
complied with the environmental-related
laws and regulations
BERR RERBRIED EMEERAIRE o RERERARDER
FATERIER o BEEREERAIRRAREETER
REERER
Shift in consumer Reduced demand /o Adnere to the Group's sustainable
preference to products for cleaning development concept, strictly control the
incorporating more services, decreased cleaning process and commit to produce
environmentally- competitiveness and high-quality services and products to meet
friendly concept Create adverse impact the expectations of consumers and the
On revenue market
HEZRITEMBA RRRBRRRL o PRASENTREERED BAER
ESRRESHED FENTEREE ERRRTINNREBERE RER
ERTHYE HREEEERi5RE
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SOCIAL
Employment and Labour Practices

We value our employees and focus on building a safe and pleasant
working environment for them. We offer attractive remuneration packages
as well as provide plenty of internal and external training opportunities for
our employees, in order to attract, motivate and retain the right people.

Before the start of employment, employees are required to enter into an
employment contract, where the duties and responsibilities of his or her
role are clearly stated. Moreover, we have a set of personnel policies
and procedures as well as a Staff Handbook that sets out our standard
internal procedures relating to recruitment and promotion, working
hours, holidays, equal opportunities, compensation, dismissal, diversity
of origins, anti-discrimination and other human resources treatments and
benefits of our employees, etc.. The relevant policies for employment and
labour practices are listed as follows.

Compliance

We adhere rigorously to employment protection and benefits
requirements as stipulated by relevant laws and regulations, including but
not limited to the Employment Ordinance, the Minimum Wage Ordinance,
and the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance in Hong Kong, as well
as the Labour Law and Social Insurance Law of the PRC. During the
Reporting Period, we complied with all applicable employment laws and
regulations that significantly impact our operations. The Group did not
report any confirmed incidents of significant non-compliance.

Employment

Employees are valuable assets to the Group and the key driving force
of our sustainable performance. We welcome people with different
backgrounds to join our team to add value to our pool of professional
expertise in the industry and bring in innovative ideas.
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As at 30 June 2025, the Group had a total of 1,262 employees during R-Z_RAFENA=+H  AEERRE LB

the Reporting Period. The breakdown is shown below: NHE1,262%EE - AT
2025 2024

Breakdown of Employees EERMA —E-REF —EMmEF
Total #st 1,262 1,329
By Gender TR B2

Male S 453 457

Female pgid 809 872
By Age RFRE D

Age 35 or below 35X AT 62 84

Age 36 to 65 365% 2651, 868 921

Above 65 655 A 332 324
By Employment Category ZERERE S

Senior Management Staff SREEEET 12 10

Middle Management Staff PREREEST 52 51

General Staff —MRET 1,198 1,268
By Geographical Location Zih B B E D

PRC H 43 39

Hong Kong B 1,219 1,290

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s overall employee turnover rate R IREHIR AN - NEFEBEZBE T RELk X A
was 60%. The breakdown of employees according to gender group, age  60% ° B EIZ4E Rl - FE4E 5 M IB (I B #9808

group, and geographical location are as follows: AN -
2025 2024

Employee Turnover Rate® BE R K= —EREF —EMF
Overall e 60% 74%
By Gender BRI B2

Male Bt 62% 75%

Female gegis 59% 74%
By Age RERED

Age 35 or below 355X AT 155% 138%

Age 36 to 65 365% 2651, 58% 72%

Above 65 655 A = 48% 65%
By Geographical Location R BN EE 5

PRC H 23% 46%

Hong Kong BE 61% 75%

5 Formula for calculating the percentage of employees leaving the company: ~ ° NEBBESLLOIFTE AR - S B B
the number of employees left during the Reporting Period + total number of EEHE-RZZE-_RAFAA=-THEEHEZ
employees as at 30 June 2025 x 100% x 100%
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Anti-discrimination and Integrity

The Group strives to create a fair and impartial working environment
where all employees are treated equally and respectfully. Any kind of
discrimination or harassment based on the employee’s gender, age,
marital status, race, sexual orientation and religion at our workplace are
strongly prohibited. Employees are entitled to equal opportunity in terms
of treatment and promotion. A set of policies and procedures is in place
detailing the aim, complaint procedure, and appeal procedure on equal
opportunities. During the recruitment process, we only focus on the
capability and attitude of the interviewee, thus people with disabilities are
also welcome to be part of our Group.

We always listen and respond to the requests of our employees. It is the
goal of the Group to create a friendly and peaceful working environment.
We encourage our employees to provide feedback in relation to
any employment-related matters, especially when they encounter
any unpleasant or undesired treatments from colleagues or senior
management. Employees may report issues to his or her department
head and lodge a formal complaint. Any complaints received will be
kept confidential. If any unfair treatment and harassment are found and
confirmed, the Group will issue a warning in written form to the employee
who has done the wrongdoing and may dismiss him or her depending on
the seriousness of the incident.

By adopting the above practices, we comply with, in all material
respects, the corresponding ordinances and its respective codes of
practice, which include the Sex Discrimination Ordinance, Disability
Discrimination Ordinance, Family Status Discrimination Ordinance, and
Race Discrimination Ordinance supported by the Hong Kong Equal
Opportunities Commission (EOC).

Attract and Retain Talents

Our employees are our most valuable asset and we value their rights
and welfare. Our remuneration policies are in line with the prevailing
market practices and are determined on the basis of the competency,
qualifications and experience of the individual employees. Management
has been constantly reviewing the staff remuneration package and
employees’ promotion opportunities. Adjustments will be made
periodically, to conform with the market standard in order to retain talents
and ensure the offer is competitive as compared to our competitors in
the industry. A standard package includes a basic salary and statutory
pension benefits such as the Mandatory Provident Fund (MPF) in Hong
Kong, and the social insurance and housing provident fund in the PRC.
We also offer discretionary bonuses based on the individual performance
of the employees and our financial performance.
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Welfare and Benefits

To increase the employees’ sense of belonging, we offer various welfare
and benefits to our employees. For instance, employees are entitled to all
public holidays as well as paid leave in accordance with the Employment
Ordinance of Hong Kong and their job level. A long service award is
offered as an appreciation for the contribution and dedication of long-
serving employees. In addition, we offer discounted dental care plans to
our employees, which their spouses and children can also enjoy.

We emphasise the unity and harmony at work. Over the years, our
Human Resources Department has made efforts in organising activities
to strengthen the bonding of employees within the Group. During the
Reporting Period, the Group did not organise any gathering activities. It
is mainly due to the concern to reduce the risk of virus transmission and
employee infection. Our Group will continue to explore more opportunities
in the future.

Health and Safety

We aim to provide a safe and healthy working environment to our
employees, and encourage them to achieve a balance between
work and a healthy lifestyle. Our safety management system which is
formulated based on the requirements of the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance of Hong Kong is accredited to the leading international
standard of ISO 45001.

To ensure all accidents and injuries are properly recorded, and are
handled accordingly by the relevant employees, the Group has a
comprehensive policy for accident reporting procedures. Since the
provision of our services may expose our employees to a certain degree
of occupational hazards, all work-related health and safety performance,
including work procedures, working at height, occupational road risk,
and machinery safety, are closely monitored by the Operation and
Administrative Department of the Group. We continue to reflect on our
existing safety policies and are committed to continuously adapting and
improving its occupational safety measures as necessary. The Group’s
health and safety performance are as follows:
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2025 2024 2023

—E-EREF —EC-WEF —ED=F

Number of injuries TERE 41 59 51
Lost days BEATERH 917 2,490 2,584
Work-related fatality AT T AZ - - -
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Employees are required to receive training on how to use relevant
machines, tools and materials and must be well equipped before they
provide services to our clients. Supervisors are assigned to take the
responsibility of overseeing the operations, make immediate responses,
and notify the management if the hazards in the workplace are noted.
Furthermore, we conduct periodic risk assessments to timely identify,
evacuate and mitigate any new risks from the workplace and to ultimately
provide our employees with a healthy and safe working environment.

Employees are also required to familiarise themselves with and follow
our Occupational Health and Safety Plan, which details the safety
requirements when performing services. For instance, the use of personal
protective equipment such as proper gloves, safety goggles, masks, the
use of appropriate tools for picking up garbage, proper use of chemicals
as per standards, etc., to reduce the risk of accidental injuries.

Safety rules are translated into various languages to cater different needs
of our employees. The Operation and Administrative Department provides
updates on health and safety issues to the staff members on a regular
basis. The Group has incorporated safety management awareness
into every stage of our operations. Our safety culture and policies are
also introduced to our contractors and partners by incorporating safety
requirements into the terms of the service agreements.

Development and Training

We believe that investing in employees through training will help
promote job satisfaction, work motivation and staff loyalty. Different
types of training are provided to employees to make sure that they
are acknowledged with updated information and possess sufficient
knowledge and skills to provide quality services to our customers. For
instance, training includes but is not limited to driving safety, business
writing, operational training, orientation, as well as information technology
security.

The Group formulates the following year’s training plan at the end of
each year according to its business needs. The Group will also make
appropriate adjustments to the training courses according to the training
needs and targets.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group achieved an overall training  RARESBA - REBEEEELIE D E63%
percentage of 63% (2024: 50%), providing 35,361 hours (2024: 29,112 ZEF 1 50%) 0 HEH35,361/ N (ZF
hours) of training with an average training hour of approximately 28  —PU4E : 29,112/ N\ )3 - BRI ZHIE B F15
hours (2024: 22 hours) per employee trained. The percentage of total &I 240528/ \F (=T —P4F : 22/ \BF) o
employees who took part in training in the Group is as follows: AEBEZHEEINEEFTSLLIT ¢

Percentage of Employees 2025 2024
Received Training® ZiIlEEF A Lke —ERF —E-MEF
Overall g 63% 50%
By Gender RERE D
Male Bt 57% 154%
Female it 67% 161%
By Employment Category EEREERE S
Senior Management Staff SHREEBRET 17% 300%
Middle Management Staff RAERRE T 15% 128%
General Staff —MRET 66% 157%

The breakdown of total employees by gender and employment

categories is as follows:

RBBBUZMER RIBRERI M AT

2025 2024
Breakdown of Employee Training’ Z3|{ES84H" —ECHF —EMF
By Gender RER &S
Male S 32.46% 33.23%
Female egca 67.54% 66.77%
By Employment Category ZERERE S
Senior Management Staff SREERET 0.25% 0.15%
Middle Management Staff PAREIERE T 1.00% 1.05%
General Staff —RET 98.75% 98.80%

6 Formula for calculating the percentage of employees trained = number ~ © XIMEEBAALHEARN=XIEEEE K=
of employees trained + total number of employees on 30 June 2025 x ZRERNA=THEBRE x 100% - 15
100%. Formula for calculating the percentage of employees in the relevant HRAEE B D LAt E A=t AR HE
categories = Employees in the specified category who took part in training + HEEEE I EHRE EHEE x 100% °
total number of employees in the specified category x 100%.

7 Formula for calculating the breakdown of employees trained = number of 7 XIEERHMATFHE A= xBEBRAZIEE &
employees trained under x category + total number of employees trained on B-R T -_RAFAAA=THXIEBEE
30 June 2025 x 100%. Formula for calculating the breakdown of employees x 100% ° {HEAERIE BRAMG E AN =18 €A

in relevant categories = Employees in the specified category, who took part RIZEFIMNEESE - 2HEBFIINEBHE
in training + Employees who took part in training x 100%. x 100% -
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The average number of training hours completed per employee by #1453 MEBLERIEIH R E R 8 T e FH
gender and employment category are as follows: IR T
Average Number of 2025 2024
Training Hours (hours)® TG B R (D EF)® —EhREF —E_MEF
Overall e 28 22
By Gender B RIE D
Male B4 25 21
Female g 30 22
By Employment Category RIEEERE S
Senior Management Staff SHEEBET 0.17 0.20
Middle Management Staff hREIERE T 0.31 0.58
General Staff —MRET 29.50 23.00

Continuous education enhances the competitiveness of the employees
as well as the Group in the industry. The Group is committed to providing
our employees resources and opportunities, so that they can have clear
career goals to progress within the Group.

Labour Standards

The Group is committed to complying with the Employment Ordinance
of Hong Kong and other relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong
and the PRC in relation to employees’ protection and benefits. During
the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify any significant non-
compliance of laws and regulations related to prevention of child and
forced labour, and there were no incidents of discrimination involving
race, religion, age, disability, etc..

Every employment is subject to a stringent internal review process that
involves a well-established procedure to verify a candidate’s personal
information, to avoid misrepresentation and employment of child labour.
For instance, the staff member responsible for recruitment collects
the identity proofs from the candidates to ensure that the age of the
candidates fulfils the requirements as stipulated by the law.

8 Formula for calculating average training hours per employee = Total number
of training hours + Total number of employees. Formula for calculating
average training hours of employees in relevant categories = Total number
of training hours for employees in the specified category + Number of
employees in the specified category.
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In accordance with labour regulations, the Group monitors and manages
employees’ working hours in a fair and transparent manner, with
appropriate safeguards in place to protect employees’ legal rights, well-
being and work-life balance. If non-compliance is identified, the Group
will promptly conduct investigations and take appropriate disciplinary
actions, which may include penalties or termination of employment. If
necessary, the Group is committed to enhancing its labour mechanisms
to prevent illegal activities and ensure a fair and compliant workplace.

Operating Practices
Supply Chain Management

The Group places emphasis on supply chain management, which
is achieved by maintaining long-term relationships with credible and
reputable suppliers that offer quality products and services. Environmental
and social factors are taken into consideration when choosing our
suppliers. Suppliers with certain qualifications, such as certification of
ISO 14001 Environmental Management Systems or ISO 9001 Quality
Management System Certification or ISO 45001 Occupational Health and
Safety Management Systems or other accreditation, etc. will be given
preference.

In addition to the quality of the product or service, the suppliers’
environmental value and awareness of occupational health and safety
are considered during supplier selection. We have a guideline on
procurement of detergents, pesticides and other work-related materials,
and set out clear considerable factors when choosing suppliers’
products.

We continuously evaluate the Group’s suppliers and sub-contractors with
respect to products supplied, service quality, reliability, environmental
performance and occupational health and safety. We also consider
the principle of green procurement and constantly evaluate the use of
materials to avoid overstocking and squandering resources.

[t is our wish to collaborate with our suppliers in the development
and application of innovation, participation in production process
enhancement for the continuous optimisation of supply chain capabilities
as well as fulfilment of our responsibilities in social and environmental
protection.

Currently, we have a total of 44 major suppliers, among them, 30
suppliers are in Hong Kong and 14 suppliers are in the PRC, and has
implemented relevant practices relating to engaging all suppliers within
the reporting scope.
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Product and Service Responsibility

At the Group, our primary focus is to provide high quality services to our
customers. We value the importance of confidentiality of our customers
by protecting their personal information. For advertising, we strictly
comply with all relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong and in the
PRC to avoid conveying any incorrect messages to the public.

During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant laws and
regulations, and no complaints were received in relation to our services
provided. No non-compliance issues or grievances were noted by the
Group.

Customer Management

For the environmental protection business, the Group places great
emphasis on quality control. We have obtained ISO 9001:2015, ISO
14001:2015 and ISO 45001:2018, and are committed to delivering
professional services and achieving customer satisfaction. To understand
clients’ needs, we conduct site assessments and communicate with our
clients before commencing services.

We have a comprehensive set of policies and procedures on the Quality
Management Plan, a framework that focuses on business goals and
objectives. During the performance of our services, our employees
will carry out regular checks on the service quality, including services
delivered by the Group’s own employees and third-party service
providers, and record occasions of substandard performance and any
follow-up actions taken.

Moreover, management members would hold regular meetings with
on-site employees to review and discuss various aspects of operations
to ensure that the services provided meet clients’ expectations. We
continuously collect feedback from clients about service quality,
environmental and workplace safety performance, and application of
materials and tools. To enhance clients’ confidence in the Group, we
promptly investigate the root cause of unsatisfying services, provide
corrective solutions and carry out immediate remedial and preventive
actions in response to the complaints received from our clients.

For the money lending business, we provide one-on-one service to
our customers and design loan repayment schedule that best suits the
needs of our customers. Service features, terms and conditions, and any
associated risks are clearly communicated to the intending borrowers by
the Group’s employees. We understand that good customer service is
essential in maintaining long-term relationships with our customers.

The mission of our customer service emphasises the provision of quality

services, effective communication and responsive solutions. The interests
of our customers are placed at top priority.
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Business Ethics

In order to build customer trust and loyalty, we have set out rules
to reduce the risk of employees leaking confidential information. For
instance, every employee is required to enter into a confidentiality
agreement that forbids him/her to disclose confidential or proprietary
information to parties outside the Group, either during or after
employment, without the Group’s authorisation.

The confidentiality agreement specifies the content and scope of
confidentiality, obligations of the employees, and liability for the breach
of agreement. Disclosing or copying any of the Group’s trade secrets
without the consent of management is strictly prohibited. If there are any
employees discovered of misappropriating customers’ private data, the
Group will dismiss the employees concerned and reserve the right to
legal proceedings.

We endeavor to protect the information system, prevent virus attacks
and the leakage of clients’ information. Training relating to cyber security
and relevant risk management is provided to our employees to enhance
the employees’ awareness of cyber security.

Given that our employees have access to customers’ personal data, it is
essential for us to safeguard the privacy of this information. The Group
is committed to continuously monitoring, reviewing, and updating its
privacy principles and policies to ensure compliance with all relevant laws
and regulations. During the Reporting Period, the Group adhered to all
applicable data protection laws, including but not limited to the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance and the Intellectual Property (Miscellaneous
Amendments) Ordinance of Hong Kong. We are pleased to report that
there were no confirmed incidents of non-compliance or grievances
noted by the Group.

Advertising

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements. During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on us, including, but
not limited to the Trade Description Ordinance in Hong Kong, which
constitutes a significant influence on the Group’s business.

The Group strictly complies with the advertising requirements. All kinds
of advertisements, such as leaflets or websites, are carefully drafted and
avoid the use of false descriptions to mislead customers. All final drafts
of the advertisement must be approved by our management before bulk
printing.
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Moreover, we have designated employees to monitor notices, news
and information in the media in connection with tenders relating to
environmental hygiene services and airline catering support services work
to ensure that we strictly comply with local laws and regulations regarding
advertising and labelling.

During the Reporting Period, no confirmed non-compliance incidents or
grievances were noted by the Group.

Trademark Management

We have registered trademarks that are important to our business. We
regularly monitor whether our trademarks are being infringed. We are
committed to protecting intellectual property rights which we handle with
great care during our daily operations.

Anti-corruption

We clearly understand that financial crime can have significant
consequences to our customers and us. Moreover, the community
and the economies in which we operate can also be greatly impacted.
Therefore, we are committed to making efforts to address the issues of
corruption, bribery and money laundering.

We maintain and implement our own anti-bribery, anti-corruption and
anti-fraud practices and procedures. We do not support, nor tolerate,
any corrupt practices and making or receiving of bribery payments. We
have established a clear policy to guide our employees in this regard.
In addition, the employment contracts of our employees include a code
of conduct for them to follow. All employees are expected to discharge
their duties with integrity and self-discipline, and they should abstain from
engaging in bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering activities or
any activities which might exploit the Group’s or client’s interests.

Directors of the Company are obligated to declare in writing any direct
or indirect financial interests in businesses that compete with the Group
or have business dealings with the Group. The Group is committed to
upholding high standards of integrity and will implement disciplinary
actions against employees who breach these guidelines, which may
include termination of employment. In instances where criminal activity is
suspected, the Group will ensure that appropriate reports are made to
the relevant regulatory or law enforcement authorities.
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Whistle-blowers are encouraged to report any suspicious activities,
including requests for, or acceptance of, benefits from individuals,
companies, or organisations that may create a conflict of interest with
the Group, as well as misconduct related to bribery, extortion, fraud,
and money laundering. Reports can be made verbally or in writing to an
immediate supervisor or to members of the Audit Committee. The identity
of the whistle-blower will remain confidential and protected throughout
the investigation, and the whistle-blower will not face any adverse
consequences regarding their employment as a result of making a report.

In relation to our money lending operations, we have implemented a
comprehensive Anti-Money Laundering (“AML”) Policy, which mandates
due diligence and Know-Your-Customer Procedures for all clients
prior to accepting loan applications. We require documentation such
as identification (ID/passport) and proof of address before establishing
business relationships. Our Group strictly adheres to the AML and
Counter-Terrorist Financing guidelines issued by the Licensed
Money Lenders Association Limited in Hong Kong to verify customer
backgrounds, identify suspicious money laundering activities, and report
any questionable transactions. Currently, if employees suspect that
a customer may be involved in money laundering, they are required
to report the case to a member of senior management, who will then
determine whether the matter should be referred to the Joint Financial
Intelligence Unit in Hong Kong. During the Reporting Period, we provided
4 classroom training to employees involved in the provision of money-
lending services, including the directors. The trainings were held by our
compliance officer and each training session lasted for 3 hours.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with all relevant
laws and regulations that have had a significant impact on us, including,
but not limited to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong.
There was no corruption or bribery incident reported within the Group.
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Community Investment

We believe that corporate social responsibility is the backbone of
corporate values, and continue to dedicate time and effort to give back
to the local community. For the thirteenth consecutive year, we have
been recognised as a “Caring Company” by The Hong Kong Council of
Social Service. This accolade acknowledges our ongoing contributions
to community development, environmental conservation, and the
advancement of people within our society.

During the Reporting Period, our Group made donations of HK$5,000
and provided support to the Fu Hong Society, reflecting our commitment
to social responsibility and community engagement. We recognise the
importance of supporting organisations that contribute to the well-being
of society, and we are proud to partner with the Fu Hong Society in their
efforts.

Looking ahead, our Group is dedicated to exploring and implementing a
wider range of public welfare activities. We aim to identify opportunities
that align with our values and contribute positively to the communities
we serve. By fostering these initiatives, we strive to make a meaningful
impact and promote sustainable development within our society.
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B HERERRE

THE STOCK EXCHANGE ESG REPORTING GUIDE HXFRE -t @REARBEESIR
CONTENT INDEX AEL|
Aspect Description Chapter/Section Remarks
=g it =68 st
A. Environmental
A B
A1: Emissions
1 BER
General Information on: Environmental
Disclosure (@ the policies; and RIE
—RR iR EE (b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
BRABERIOREREIN - MKkt
BEET - BERBEEEVNEESH
(@ BER: &
(o) BBFEHBTABERAZLENMABE
SR
BIERL o
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective Air Emissions
RARIE K emissions data. BERBERY)
FEITA1 1 PERiesE AR HE I EUE -
KPI'A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect Greenhouse Gas Emissions
RIRAE (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in | JAZ=E FASHEN
FEIEAT.2 tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
E%(%ﬁﬁﬂ& REE(BE2)RER
BN E (LAMERT & )&(Zzuajﬁ)ﬂ*(lzu
Mté%ﬁu HIERETE
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in Generation of Waste
RASRIA N tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity | E 4 EEZEY)
FEIZA1.3 (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
FEEAEEEYEE (UEE) k()
BR)BE(WMAGESEN - BIERE
FTE) -
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Aspect Description Chapter/Section Remarks
EE it E=x:0] o
KPI'A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in | Generation of Waste
RASRIE K tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity | ZE 4 EEEY)
FEIZA1 .4 (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).
FELEREEEDES (UBEE) R
BR)ZE(WMABESEMN - BIERE
5 o
KPI A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and | Greenhouse Gas Emissions
RASRAE steps taken to achieve them. BEREBIER
FE1ZA15 FFTEI YN E B R R AEDE
B IZFTERER A AP o
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- Generation of Waste
RASRAE hazardous wastes are handled, and a EEAEREEY)
FEIZA1.6 description of reduction target(s) set and

steps taken to achieve them.
HREBEEEREEEEYN AL &
FIFTET L HVRREE B IR R R ESE LB
TEFTERE A 8 o

A2: Use of Resources

A2 - BIR(ER
General Policies on the efficient use of resources, | Use of Resources
Disclosure | including energy, water and other raw ERE A
—RR IR ER materials.

BERERER(BIEEIR - KREMERM

B BIER o
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy Energy Usage
RASRAE consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas | 8&JR{E A
FEIZEA2.1 or oil) in total (kWh in ’000s) and intensity

(e.g. per unit of production volume, per

facility).

REAESOHEER HHEEER(N

B foh) BREE (UTETRREE)

REE(WMLEGESEN - BEKZER

&) o
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity | Water Usage
RASRIA K (e.g. per unit of production volume, per KR A
$5IZA2.2 facility).

WIRIKERZE(NAGESSEN - 818

RiEETHE) -
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency Energy Usage
BRI target(s) set and steps taken to achieve | AEJR{FEF
1812A2.3 them.

T R] M BEIRE e B IR R s
B35 L B RPTEREREY 20 8] o
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Aspect Description Chapter/Section Remarks
=] it =6 faa
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue | Water Usage
RASRIE K in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, KRR A
FEIZA2.4 water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.
Ha SR BUGE A KR Z R B A REE - BA
NPT S K B iR R miE S iE i
BIRATERER A AP ER
KPI'A2.5 Total packaging material used for Not applicable As we provide cleaning services
BIRAEN finished products (in tonnes) and, if i and financing services, the
FEIRA2.5 applicable, with reference to per unit Group does not produce any

produced.
K MATHBEEM BN E S (AT E
R(nER) BEESMEE -

tangible products that require
packaging.

BN EFIREBIRRE KR E
BRTS MU SR B 0 A A 2 ]
: OBV EM

A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
A3 IRIERRAER

General Policies on minimising the issuer’s Environmental
Disclosure significant impact on the environment IRIR
—AR and natural resources.
BEBFETAHRBERAAREREKER
FEHER
KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of Environmental
RASRIE K activities on the environment and natural | ¥&3%
FEIZAB.1 resources and the actions taken to

manage them.
R R B EHEHRERRAERNER
FERCDENEREHEZENTY -

A4: Climate Change

A4 IR

@

General Policies on identification and mitigation of | Climate Change
Disclosure | significant climate-related issues which | S&fE& 1L
— IR have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer.
BRI REEHEE R %‘E;\.%ﬁ%ﬁ/\ﬁi
FENEAREEBESEENEBR
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate- Climate Change
RASEAE R related issues which have impacted, and | R&iEE1t
FEIZEAA A those which may impact, the issuer, and

the actions taken to manage them.
MO RS HETAEERTEN
BERRIEBEER - MELHTTE -
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Aspect Description Chapter/Section Remarks
EmE i pud E=3-0] o
B. Social
B. #&
B1: Employment
B1: [Ef®
General Information on: Employment and
Disclosure (@ the policies; and Labour Practices
— R IR (b) compliance with relevant laws and | BfE R4 TE#HR
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.
BRH SRR - BEERE - TIER
B BE - FEHKE  Zalt RER
DA B B A A58 S AR Y
(@ BE: &
b) BEFHEITABERZENHEBE
ESFT]
BEH -
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment | Employment
RASRIE K type (for example, full- or part-time), age | &%
512811 group and geographical region.
IR - EREE (N2 BEGER) - F
B AR Bl R b [ Bl ) Y B B AR R -
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age Employment
RASRIE K group and geographical region. EfE
E1EB1.2 RIER - FEAR KR EI S EER
KELE o
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Aspect
=]

Description
i pud

Chapter/Section
=x:0]

Remarks

ik

B2: Health and Safety
B2 : f@EEL S

General Information on: Health and Safety
Disclosure | (a) the policies; and fEEREZ 2
—AH R (b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.
FHARELZ TIERERREREE#HE
BB E
@ BE: K
b) BFHBITABERZENHEBE
R
BV o
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities | Health and Safety
RASRIA N occurred in each of the past three years | {EEEHE%Z &
FE1EB2.1 including the reporting year.
BE=F(BEERFE)BFEITK
BIABR R o
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety
RBEAE RN ETEEATIERE - fEEET S
FE1EB2.2
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and Health and Safety
RASRIE K safety measures adopted, how they are | f2FEEZ &
51ZB2.3 implemented and monitored.

Bl P ER B R B R L 21856 - JA
NARRRNTT REEER O -

B3: Development and Training
B3 : & S tE3l

General Policies on improving employees’ Development and Training
Disclosure | knowledge and skills for discharging R RIE
—MRIREE duties at work.
ERRAIREBEIT TIEBE M A Rk
BERIIR ©
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained Development and Training
RASRIA N by gender and employee category PR EE
F51EB3.1 (e.g. senior management, middle
management).
ZMRIRESHEN(IEREERE - A&
BERE)ENZIEEBA -
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed Development and Training
RASRIE K per employee by gender and employee | & K3
f51EB3.2 category.

RERIMEBERED - BREETK
Sy F L o
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Aspect Description Chapter/Section Remarks
EE it E=x:0] o
B4: Labour Standards
B4 : &5 TR
General Information on: Labour Standards
Disclosure | (a) the policies; and A T %R
—RH R (o) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced
labour.
BRI IEET 854 TH) -
@@ BEK: &
b) BEFHBITABERZEMNEBE
R
HYERY -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review Labour Standards
RASRIA K employment practices to avoid child and | £ T#E]]
181ZB4.1 forced labour.
it R E PR EE AR RET R
SRS T -
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate Labour Standards
BRI K such practices when discovered. BT AR
1E1EB4.2 IR RB R HR A BB

REXE AR -

B5: Supply Chain Management
B5 : g E IR

General Policies on managing environmental and | Supply Chain Management
Disclosure | social risks of the supply chain. HEGEE TR
— MR ERHEENIRIR R S RREE
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical Supply Chain Management
RSRAE region. HpESBSTE
¥E17B5.1 i@ DB HEEEE -
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating Supply Chain Management
RASRAE to engaging suppliers, number of HpEsEE R
$81ZB5.2 suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented
and monitored.
A RS AR IE] - mEBTT
BRABOINHEREE - A RBEHRT
RERFE o
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify Supply Chain Management
RASRIE K environmental and social risks along HEmEEE
F51ZB5.3 the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
A RAER R EREEREAGHIRER
tERRrERN - A RBEBITRER
T o
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Aspect Description Chapter/Section Remarks
EE i pud =x:0] o

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote | Supply Chain Management

RASRIE K environmentally preferable products HrEgEEe

$81ZB5.4 | and services when selecting suppliers,

and how they are implemented and
monitored.

HERERERREESZ BRRER
NRISRIED] - A RABRARIT RERT
% o

B6: Product and Service Responsibility
B6 : Em MR EE

General Information on: Product and Service
Disclosure (@ the policies; and Responsibility
— R R (b) compliance with relevant laws and | E & &R S E
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided and
methods of redress.
FRAMEHERNREHRERREZ S -
BE - RERALEEE A RAEROTES
@ BE: K
b) BEFHEITABERAZENHEBE
ESF]
BEH -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or Not applicable As we provide cleaning services
RASRIE K shipped subject to recalls for safety and | i and financing services, there
151ZB6.1 health reasons. were no products subject to
EENDEREMEHTEL D EER recall.
BlHmARKE AL BN EMIREMBRIRY LRt E
RR 75 - B P9 M 78 B ) B
o
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related Product and Service
RASRRAE K complaints received and how they are Responsibility — Customer
¥515B6.2 dealt with. Management
BEEMRERLBRBHRFHREURE | EmABREEE-—FPE
% - B
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to Product and Service
RSRAE observing and protecting intellectual Responsibility — Trademark
¥E1£B6.3 property rights. Management
S S0 E B2 & E mBIAE T Em&RBEE
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process | Product and Service
RASRAE and recall procedures. Responsibility
151%2B6.4 S S 10 TE R K E m BT Em&RIBEE
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection | Product and Service
RARIE K and privacy policies, how they are Responsibility — Business
#512B6.5 implemented and monitored. Ethics

BB EERRERLEBRE - AR
MRRRATT REEER TR o
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=
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Aspect
BT

Description
i pud

Chapter/Section
E=x:0]

Remarks

ik

B7: Anti-corruption

General Information on: Anti-corruption
Disclosure | (a) the policies; and RES
—RH R (o) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.
BENIEFERE - $1FR - BEFROERE
@@ BEK: &
b) BFHBITABERZEMNEBE
eSS
HYERY -
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases Anti-corruption
RSRAE regarding corrupt practices brought k&S
FE1ZB7.1 against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERPAANHETAIHEERLETE
FBENESHARMREE RFAER -
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures, how | Anti-corruption
RASRIE K they are implemented and monitored. RE5
FE1EBT.2 P e b S R EmAR T - A RAEEH
TREEERITE -
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training Anti-corruption
RASRIE K provided to directors and staff. RES
#E1EB7.3 HmESERE TRENRESEI -

B8: Community Investment

B8 : (@i E

General Policies on community engagement Community Investment
Disclosure | to understand the needs of the
—AH R communities where the issuer operates
and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.
BRANRSERTREEMELRT
ENEREEBEZDSEBLRNRN
SR o
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. Community Investment
RASRIE K education, environmental concerns,
}E1ZB8.1 labour needs, health, culture, sport).
ErERER(IHE - BREE ST
TR R - b - BE) °
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or Community Investment
RS AR time) to the focus area.
¥51EB8.2 EHTHREMEAER(NE EERE)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

PPS International (Holdings) Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of PPS
International (Holdings) Limited and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
set out on pages 101 to 187, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 30 June 2025, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 June
2025 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with HKFRS
Accounting Standards as issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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REBRFPNERHAE  TERAFTEAZRFY
AERAMBREBFIREZNER - ZFF
HRAERMESAMBHRRETEITNRER
MTRE - WRESEER - MERAL A%
FREBUEHER -

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

TEEHEE AEREEZENS L
EhEHRASHEEREE
BREGEGBEFANR28) 2.10 14R24()

BEEERGAMBRE AMELTENERFERE

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
Valuation and existence of loans and interest receivables
Refer to notes 2.8(i), 2.10, 14 and 24(a) of the consolidated financial statements

The Group recognised loans and interest  Our audit procedures in this area included:

receivables recorded initially at fair value PEBNIULTE ‘
and subsequently at amortised cost inthe ¢ obtaining and reviewing a sample of loan T ERERZEHKA o  BRREFEERHEOE
consolidated statement of financial position. agreements (including supplemental s £ 2 EWRE X KT (BERRG® RERERD

As at 30 June 2025, the carrying amount of
the loans receivable and interest receivables
were HK$28,923,000 and HK$1,596,000
respectively.

The measurement of expected credit losses
(“ECL”) requires the application of significant
judgements which include the identification
of exposures with a significant deterioration
in credit quality, and assumptions used in
the ECL model such as the probabilities of
default, loss given default, expected future
cash flows, fair value of any collaterals and
forward-looking macroeconomic factors.

Due to the significance of the aggregated
amount of loans and interest receivables
(representing approximately 10% of total
assets) and inherent uncertainty in such
estimates, we considered this as a key audit
matter.

agreements and loan extension
agreements, if any) and agreeing the
principal amounts, interest rates, maturity
dates and other information to the
Group's accounting records;

testing of controls designed and
applied in the process of approving and
granting loans, subsequent monitoring
of repayment status and of any loan
extensions;

assessing the effectiveness of key controls
over the application of the impairment
methodology and the governance for the
ECL models, inputs and assumptions
used by the Group in calculating the ECL;

assessing the reasonableness of the
Group’s ECL models, inputs, assumptions
and the Group’s criteria for assessing
if there has been a significant increase
in credit risk, default or credit-impaired,
in which allowances for financial assets
should be measured on a lifetime ECL
basis and the qualitative assessment;

inspecting the loans and mortgage
agreements entered into between the
Group and the borrowers, and other
relevant information relating to value of
underlying properties;

recalculation of loan interest income
recognised on a sample basis;

obtaining direct confirmations of loan
balances from the borrowers on a sample
basis; and

reviewing subsequent settlement records
and corroborating enquiries with the
management about the reasons for
not considering a provision against any
unsettled past-due balances.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRS
Accounting Standards as issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B R E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

— ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

—  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

J(FZ%lEﬂT%\T Fi R A M BHRRNER
&)

(CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed for
purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B R E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Sau Yi Teresa.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 September 2025
Chan Sau Yi Teresa

Practising certificate number P08292
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

meEBEER

For the year ended 30 June 2025 BE - —HFNA=THILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TE5117R )

2025
—EB-REF
Notes HK$’000
BaE FET
Revenue Wz 3
— Service income from environmental —RIBRBRZ RBEBA
and cleaning 497,523
— Interest income from money lending — BEZER 2 AL BWA 4,907
502,430
Cost of services ARG A (466,461)
Gross profit EF 35,969
Other income, other gains and other EA A~ Efthlas &
losses and impairments HAbEE A RRE 4 (13,059)
Selling and marketing expenses HE REHAX (2,682)
Administrative expenses THAX (25,644)
Finance costs BhE KA 5(a) (666)
Loss before taxation BB AT R 5 (6,082)
Income tax expense e 6 (1,219)
Loss for the year FREE (7,301)
Attributable to: BT ALES:
— owners of the Company —ARRREEA (6,851)
— non-controlling interests — FEIE AR RS (450)
(7,301)
HK cents
AL
Loss per share SRER 9
— Basic and diluted —EAXREE (1.27)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

«w ¥

2024

ZE Y
HK$’000
FAET

485,387
2,687

488,074
(454,486)

(4,396)
(364)

(4,760)
HK cents

eyl

(0.81)

BEF Y E AU AR B SRR — & -

EHHERBRAT Gk 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
neRRERAMEEKRGER

For the year ended 30 June 2025 BHEZE —ZT —HFNA=THILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 251K )

2025 2024
—EC-RE —E_NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss for the year FAEE (4,760)
Other comprehensive income/(loss), Hip2mElE, (5i8)
net of nil tax HBREHIE
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently HigngesoEsBan AR ¢
to profit or loss:
- Exchange differences on translation of —REBINEBIBRE 2
financial statements of foreign operations PE 3 =58 1,126 (1,064)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREMEEBELE (6,175) (5,824)
Attributable to: BT ALE:
— owners of the Company —ARRRIEAA (5,725) (5,460)
— non-controlling interests — IR (450) (364)
(6,175) (5,824)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated — BEFIFI sH B L S 4R A IR RER A —EL 5 -
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e PRI R

As at 30 June 2025 R=E=HFA=1+H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TE5117R )

Notes
BaE

Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB MEE 10
Right-of-use assets CREEE 11
Loans receivables FEUE TR 14
Restricted bank deposits ZIR BRI TFK 16
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE
Trade receivables 2 5 W ERIA 12
Deposits, prepayments and other e FENRIEREARER

receivables FRIE 13
Loans and interest receivables JENE R R F B 14
Financial assets at fair value through WA EFABZZEMEE

profit or loss 15
Restricted bank deposits ZIRBIERITIFEK 16
Cash and cash equivalents ReFReEEY 16
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables B S B FIR 17
Accruals, deposits received and other st ER - olig e REMER

payables RIE 18
Bank loans RITEN 19
Lease liabilities HE&E 20
Current tax payable FETRNERTRIE 21(a)
Net current assets REEEFE
Total assets less current liabilities BREERRBERE
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 20
Deferred tax liabilities EERIERE 21(b)
NET ASSETS BEEFE

EHHERBRAT Gk 2025

2025
—EZHEF
HK$’000
FExT

41,338
2,310
13,104

56,752

562

99,966

7,667
17,415

548
5,760
110,793

242,711

28,233

58,491
18,315
1,292
833

107,164

135,547

192,299

1,031

634

1,665

190,634

«w ¥

2024
—EPUF
HK$'000
FiBT

47,290
1,637
11,782
5,889
66,498

513
94,366

8,011
24,822

405

103,174

231,291

35,707

42,331
19,366
1,441
1,461
100,306
130,985
197,483
134
540

674

196,809
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e PRI R

As at 30 June 2025 R=E=HFA=1H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 251K )

2025
—E-HEF
Notes HK$°000
BfaE FHET

Capital and reserves EXR#E 23
Share capital N 5,400
Reserves 1 182,713

Total equity attributable to owners of AR THEE AE(LERLE

the Company 188,113
Non-controlling interests TR 2,521
TOTAL EQUITY AR 190,634

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29

September 2025.

Yu Shaoheng
Director

Lai Tin Ming
Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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2024

ZEZ Y4
HK$’000
FET

5,400
188,438

193,838
2,971

196,809
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERBER

For the year ended 30 June 2025 HZ =L - AFA=+HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TE5117R )

Attributable to owners of the Gompany

KRR AEL
The PRC Non-
Share Share Other  Conbuon ~ Exchange  statutory  Accumuleted controling
captal  premium esene Supls resene resene losses Totdl  interests Total
hEiEE Hil:
Re ROEE AbBE  HARR  EXBG e ZHER a3t i &t
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
Thn TR Thr TR TER  TER TR TR TR TER
(note (note (note (note (note
200 2300 280 2300 230)
i (M (st (Hiat i
20000 2800 2800 280 230w
At1July 2023 RZEZ=%tA-A 5400 198524 1,000 21,400 (4679) 791 (2313 19998 33% 20263
Changes in equity for 2024: R-E-MERREE.
Loss for the year ErElE - - - - - - %8 (439 (364 (4760
Bxchange diferences on ransaton ~~ BEENEREBRR 2
o financial statements of foreign EXZE MESHE
Operations, net of nil tax - - - - (1,064) - - (1,064) - (1,064)
Total comprefense loss for theyear ARG ABIEAE - - - - 084 - {438 (5460 (364 (58
Appropriation to the PRC statutory AEERELTRE
reserve - - - - - 87 @1 - - -
At30 June 2024 R-B-mERAZTA 5400 198524 1,000 21,400 (5,743) 878 [7621) 193838 29711 196,809
EHZERBERAT  Fik 2025 105



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERBER

For the year ended 30 June 2025 BHEZE —ZT —HFNA=THILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TEF1I7R)

Attributable to owners of the Company

LGN
The PRC Non-
Share Share Other Confribuion ~ Exchange  statutory Accumulated controlling
capital  premium  reserve suplus  reserve  reserve losses Total interests Total
TEEE ¥R

Bx  ROEE HbRE  HAR&  ENGE BE  ZHER &3t B a3t
HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
T T ThEn TAn TAn T T T THEn TAn

(note (note (note (note (note

28000 230 2300 230l 23b)W)

(M (M (hia (hiat (M

200 28b)) )i 28p)i)  23b))

At1 July 2024 R-Z-mELA-A 198,524 (5,749) (27621) 193,838 196,809
Changes in equity for 2025: R-E-RERREE:
Loss for the year EMEE (6851)  (6851) (7,301)
Exchange diferences on translein ~~ BEGS EBEHBRE 2

of financialstatements of foreign EREE HBEHR

operations, net of nil tax 1,126 1,126
Total comprefensive loss fortheyear AR ABIEAE (6851) (5729 (6,175

Appropriation to the PRC statutory AEFRELTRE
reserve (174)

At30 June 2025 R-B-RERAZTR 198,524 (4617 (34,646) 190,634

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated  F&FT i sE SRR I 47 A BI RS RAR N — 265 ©
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

" _\éiﬁﬁﬁiﬁ

For the year ended 30 June 2025 BE - —HFNA=THILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TE5117R )

2025
—E-RE
Notes HK$’000
B sE TR
Operating activities REEE
Loss before taxation BrELRIEE (6,082)
Adjustments for: ABATEIE
— Interest income from money lending —EERFBBA 3 (4,907)
- Bank interest income —RITHIEHA 4 (238)
- Dividend income from listed equity securities — TR ANEE % 2 B U 4
— Loss on disposal of property, plant and —HEYE  BEMREERE
equipment 4
— Loss on early termination on right-of-use —RPRIHEREEE 2 BE
assets
— Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment loss) — FEUE B 2 RAEEE,
on loans and interest receivables (REEBERR) 4
— Net unrealised gain on financial assets at fair  — IR A FEFABRZEREEY
value through profit or loss RER W FHE 4 (143)
— Revaluation loss on property, plant and W% BERSEEGER
equipment 4 5,704
- Finance costs —BERA 5(a) 666
- Depreciation of property, plant and —-WE  BERSENE
equipment 5(c) 2,835
- Depreciation of right-of-use assets —(ERREEENE 5(c) 1,782
— Write-off of property, plant and equipment ~ —#1% « [BE R 5 &5 5(c) 1
— Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) —SNEEE, (Wam) FEE 2,328
Operating profit before changes in EEESHE A 2 LE RN
working capital 9,773
Increase in inventories FEEm (49)
Increase in trade receivables B 5 e WGRIAE N (5,674)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, prepayments 14 « BB R H i ELK
and other receivables FIERL,(38m) 269

(Increase)/decrease in loans and interest
receivables

(Decrease)/increase in trade payables

Increase in accruals, deposits received and
other payables

FENCE R R AE (2 00), W

BHEMAFIRORD),/1Em
EEtER  BliRE R EM
FERTRIRIE N

(1,214)
(7,474)

16,227

11,858
3,823
5
(1,646)
(109)

Net cash generated from operations SEMELHSFE
Interest received from money lending BURHREEBZFIE
Dividend received BB

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BREEFIEE

PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BRI SR

Net cash generated from operating RETBRELRSTE

activities

13,931

EHHERBRAT Gk 2025
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2024
ZZZMF
HK$'000
FEL

10,7562
818

3,064
1,851

36
(699)

7,955
(49)
(7,648)
(531)

3,470
11,725

8,010

22,932
2,285

(1,926)
(49)

23,246
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n _\éiﬁrﬁﬁ%%

For the year ended 30 June 2025 BHEZE —ZT —HFNA=THILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 251K )

2025
—E-RE
Notes HK$’000
BsE THER
Investing activities RETEE
Interest received BUFE 238
Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank deposits B #1381 7172052/ (4E10) 129
Payment for purchase of property, plantand BB %% - MR R R EXNRIE
equipment (2,603)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plantand ~ HEWE - MR &R EMSHIE
equipment 12
Net cash used in investing activities RETEFAREFE (2,224)
Financing activities MEEE
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEERSNERT D 16(0) (1,810)
Interest element of lease rentals paid ENEERSNFELS 16(0) (80)
Interest paid BERFIE 16(b) (586)
Repayment of bank loans BERITEN 16(b) (1,051)
Net cash used in financing activities METHFMARSTFE (3,527)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RERBELEEYLINEE 8,180
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning REANNBELERREZEY
of the year 103,174
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  MEERSEH L (561)
Cash and cash equivalents atend of the RERNRERBELEEY
year 110,793

2024
ZEZMF
HK$'000
FEL

140
(65,611)
(1,133)

28

90,313
(159)

103,174

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated  F&FT i sE SRR I 47 A BI RS RAR N — 265 ©

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

COMPANY INFORMATION

PPS International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) is an
exempted company with limited liability incorporated and domiciled
in the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 17 June 2013.

The Company has its registered office and principal place of
business at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and Office A, 12/F., Tower A,
Capital Tower, No. 38 Wai Yip Street, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong
Kong, respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 27.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2025 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$'000") unless otherwise stated.
Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) is the Company’s functional currency
and the Group’s presentation currency.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards, which
collective term includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
as issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period of the Group.
Note 2.3 provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
accounting period reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

The material accounting policies adopted by the Group are set
out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAZE 727117 )

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2 FES:BER(E)
22 RBGEEHBRREE

2.2 Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial

110

statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVPL”) and the interests in leasehold land and
buildings are stated at their fair values (see notes 2.5 and 2.6
respectively).

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS Accounting Standards requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRS Accounting Standards that have significant effect on
the consolidated financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 29.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3

24

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards that are first effective in the current
accounting period of the Group:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements

and HKFRS 7

None of these developments have had a material impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial positions and performance
for current or prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new and amendments to the
HKFRS Accounting Standards that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period (see note 30).

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised
income and expenses (except for foreign currency transaction
gains or losses) arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAZE 727117 )

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4

2.5

112

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2.8(ii)).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVPL are recognised/derecognised on
the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the investment
and are initially stated at fair value while transaction costs are
recognised directly in profit or loss. The explanation of how the
Group determines the fair value of financial assets is set out in
note 24(g).

Changes in the fair value of the financial assets at FVPL are
subsequently recognised in profit or loss if the investments do
not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or
fair value through other comprehensive income (recycling).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2 FE&:BER(E)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment 2.6 Y% BEKRRE

Interests in leasehold land and buildings, where the Group
is the registered owner of the property interest, held for own
use are stated at its revalued amount, being their fair value at
the date of the revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to ensure
that the carrying amount of these assets does not differ
materially from that which would be determined using fair
values at the end of the reporting period.

Other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2.8(ii)).

Changes arising on the revaluation of leasehold land and
buildings held for own use are generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated separately in
equity in the property revaluation reserve. The only exceptions
are as follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be charged to
profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the amount held
in the reserve in respect of that same asset immediately
prior to the revaluation; and

— when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be credited to
profit or loss to the extent that a deficit on revaluation in
respect of that same asset had previously been charged
to profit or loss.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on
the date of retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation
surplus is transferred from the property revaluation reserve to
accumulated losses and is not reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAZE 727117 )

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6

2.7

114

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Land and buildings Over the term of lease

Furniture and fixtures 3to 7 years
Equipment and machinery 3to 7 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Computer equipment 3 years

Leasehold improvements 3 years or over the
unexpired period of
lease, whichever is

shorter

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset
and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. This is the case if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to direct the
use of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-
lease component(s), the Group has separated non-lease
components and non-lease components are accounted for by
applying other applicable standards.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for leases that
have a short lease term of 12 months or less, and leases
of low-value assets. When the Group enters into a lease in
respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides whether
to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a systematic
basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2 FE&:BER(E)
2.7 HEEE(E)

2.7 Leased assets (continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments payable
over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, using
a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount
of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, plus initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.
The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note
2.84(ii)). Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of right-
of-use assets using the straight line method over the lease
term or, where it was likely the Group would obtain ownership
of the assets, the life of the asset as set out in note 2.6.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, if there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if
the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment
is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a lease
modification, which means a change in the scope of a lease or
the consideration for a lease that is not originally provided for
in the lease contract, if such modification that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case, the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and lease
term using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the current
portion of long-term lease liabilities is determined as the
present value of contractual payments that are due to be
settled within twelve months after the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAZE 727117 )

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Credit losses and impairment of assets

116

0]

Credit losses from financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs”) on financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including trade and other receivables,
loans and interest receivables, restricted bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents).

Financial assets measured at FVPL are not subject to the
ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between
the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive), discounted at the original effective interest rate,
where the effect of discounting is material.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk. In measuring ECLs, the
Group takes into account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
This includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs which
result from all possible default events over the expected
lives of these financial assets. ECLs on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the end of the reporting period.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2025

2 FESHEERE)
28 FEFEREERE

M)

THEEZEERRE

AEE IR EIEK A EZ
BMEE(RRE S REMEYR
B BREREFE - LR
RITERALRE MRS EE
%)E@a@i‘fﬁﬂﬁ%%)&ﬁa(ﬁﬁ,ﬁﬂ%
BER]ZERES -

AT EFABEFTEZS
B EHAEREEEEN
1o

FEEHEEER

BEEEBEEREEEBNE
EINEME - FEEERAME
TEER @ = (AR E AN
AEENReREEAEETE
FHEEIR S R ERE5E) MR
B2 - WMEARFESEK - 8
RIFERFRRLE -

B EREEEREE RN
REHME %$%IE£ET
R REAHHE - NEE

%%ﬁ%ﬁf%ﬁh'@%%

EFMHBZRALE HAR]

ESMAaEREEN BB

EEHF - RERORERREE

AORFERI B EHY

BHRMEZBEEGE &
BERRKATRREEERD
THFE  KATRHMEEER
AzETmEERPFHARM
BRAIREBAEMEBENSHME
o RBmERK  ZFERE
ENEREEBERIBRERNE
EBAEEEBRERERARAE
FEREETTRAE - WHLES AR
ERERHE R RIER —RE
AR FHEE LR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial assets (continued)
Measurement of ECLs (continued)

For all other financial assets measured at amortised cost,
the Group recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk of the financial asset since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs. The 12-month ECLs are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events within the
12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on the
financial asset assessed at the end of the reporting period
with that assessed at the date of initial recognition. In
making this reassessment, the Group considers that
a default event occurs when the debtor or borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in
full, without recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held). The Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial asset’s external or internal credit rating (if
available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

—  existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAZE 727117 )

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2 FES:BER(E)

2.8 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued) 28 FEBBEREEREE)

(i) Credit losses from financial assets (continued) () ZHEEZSEEEE)
Significant increases in credit risk (continued) 1EEREBEEIE (E)
Depending on the nature of the financial assets, the HFTe@MmEEsHEEMmME B
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is AEERRELBEL I
performed on either an individual basis or a collective & TR BRI sk H R B A AT -
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective R AREEETR - &
basis, the financial assets are grouped based on shared BEEZREREER RS (H
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status and i BB R RIE E R TR ) &
credit risk ratings. TP °
ECLs are remeasured at the end of each reporting period FEHEEBERSmEHRE
to reflect changes in the financial asset’s credit risk since EE URMemEERY
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is FTHRARBZEERRES - 78
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. HEEBESE 2 ANETHR
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all Ba P ERARBEWRRNE
financial assets with a corresponding adjustment to their B AEEBRESHREE
carrying amount through a loss allowance account. ZBENRESEE - WiERE

BRGBRYEFEREELAE

Credit-impaired financial assets EERES 2MEE

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses RERSHER  2EBFEHE

whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial MEERGLBAEERE - &

asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that HeMEEZEERKBEEM

have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash EETNPE s —HLZIASE

flows of the financial assets have occurred. HHERE  SREENDRE

ERE -

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes THMEEFEREBEZEERE

the following observable events: LAURATER S =44

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor; — ERABBREVHEE

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due — EREX - WEL
event; =

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into — ERATRERESETE
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; I TEEAR

- significant changes in the technological, market, - B W5 BBEIORE
economic or legal environment that have an adverse RIBEERNWE MEES
effect on the debtor; or ANETRIFE 3%

- the disappearance of an active market for a security — REEITALRE A
because of financial difficulties of the issuer. BRI ARRERTS ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

0]

(i)

Credit losses from financial assets (continued)
Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written
off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

—  right-of-use assets; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAZE 727117 )

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2 FES:BER(E)
28 CEFEREEREE)
(i) BB S (4F)

2.8 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)

120

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit). A portion of the carrying amount of
a corporate asset is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if the allocation can be done on a
reasonable and consistent basis, or to the smallest
group of cash-generating units if otherwise.

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2 FE&:BER(E)
28 CEFEREEREE)

2.8 Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)
—  Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

2.9 Inventories

Inventories, which represent consumable goods, are carried at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are consumed, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised.

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAZE 727117 )

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Loans and interest receivables

211

Loans receivable are loans granted to customers in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of loans receivable
is expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets or, if not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Interest receivables are interests derived from loans granted to
borrowers in the ordinary course of business.

Loans and interest receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for credit losses (see
note 2.8())).

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration and only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component are initially measured at their transaction price. Al
receivables are subsequently stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less allowance for credit losses
(see note 2.8()).

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

122

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand and demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECLs
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2.8(j).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.13 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at invoice amounts.

2.14 Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value
less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy for borrowing costs (see
note 2.21).

2.15 Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

Retirement and other post-employment benefits
The Group offers the following retirement and other post-
employment benefits to its employees:

- MPF scheme in Hong Kong;

—  defined contribution government pension schemes
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”); and

- Long service payment (“LSP”) under Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance for employees in Hong
Kong.

The assets of retirement schemes are generally held in
separate trustee-administered funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAZE 727117 )

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.15 Employee benefits (continued)

124

(i) Retirement and other post-employment benefits

(continued)
For Hong Kong employees

Contributions to MPF, as required under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss as incurred.

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit
plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating
the amount of future benefit that employees have earned
in the current and prior periods and discounting that
amount. For LSP obligations, the estimated amount
of future benefit is determined after deducting the
negative service cost arising from the accrued benefits
derived from the Group’s MPF contributions that have
been vested with employees, which are deemed to be
contributions from the relevant employees.

Current service cost is measured as the increase in the
present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting
from employee service in the current period. Net interest
expense for the period is determined by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of the reporting period to
the then net defined benefit liability, taking into account
any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the
period. Current service cost and net interest expense on
the net defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or
loss.

For PRC employees

The employees in the PRC are members of the retirement
benefit scheme organised by the government in the PRC.
The Group is required to contribute, based on a certain
percentage of payroll, to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme. Contributions
to this retirement benefit scheme are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss as incurred at the end of the
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.16 Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to
a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity
or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax comprises the estimated tax payable or receivable
on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustments
to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years.
The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best
estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received
that reflects any uncertainty related to income taxes. It is
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria
are met.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

—  temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences;

- temporary differences related to investment in subsidiaries
to the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

—  taxable temporary differences arising on the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAZE 727117 )

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2 FES:BER(E)
2.16 FTi5%i (&)

2.16 Income tax (continued)

126

The Group recognised deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities separately in relation to its lease liabilities and right-of-
use assets.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which they can be used. Future taxable
profits are determined based on the reversal of relevant taxable
temporary differences. If the amount of taxable temporary
differences is insufficient to recognise a deferred tax asset in
full, then future taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of existing
temporary differences, are considered, based on the business
plans for individual subsidiaries in the Group. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the
probability of future taxable profits improves.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain
criteria are met.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2 FE&:BER(E)
217 B R HIKER

2.17 Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees issued are initially stated at fair value
(being the transaction price, unless the fair value can otherwise
be reliably estimated) as deferred income. Thereafter, the
amount of the guarantee is amortised in profit or loss over the
term of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees
issued. Where consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is recognised
in accordance with the Group’s policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration is received
or receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group monitors the risk that the specified debtor will
default on the contract and recognises a provision when
ECLs on the financial guarantees are determined to be
higher than the amount carried in deferred income in respect
of the guarantees (i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation).

To determine ECLs, the Group considers changes in the risk
of default of the specified debtor since the issuance of the
guarantee. A 12-month ECL is measured unless the risk that
the specified debtor will default has increased significantly
since the guarantee is issued, in which case a lifetime ECL
is measured. The same definition of default and the same
assessment of significant increase in credit risk as described in
note 2.8(i) apply.

RATSHERTIERET A (BMER A B
ERZSAHEADEFEEBHA
REERIRER T AR B HIR
RMRZIEKR - TS EFE AN
MEFBEANEL -

EHLMBERNGRAFEEIR
SERE - BRIFRFER STTH S
AHRISVER®) DI BR BB » H
% BREB|ERXECHELYHE
REVEARFERF AR Bt B -
i A4 B R 2 A (B B W B sk AT
B RERIREASEERR LR
BEZBRER W EUK R E
WHE - BIEBRaER R -

AEEEEREEFAZONEAR -

& BEROEREEBEERETE R
BRERNETEWRATIRANSER
(BNVNEETER S B R 81 ) Ay a7
YR

RETEREEER  ~AfEeEZE
EEBEBABBELERURNELDR
REH  YaFtE12@ANEHRE
BER - EREEHSABELER
VABR H32 #0 Bl AR 18 ANRO 5 T Bk
Sh - FEUERT - AIEFTEXKATER
EEBE - MiE2.8()Pritt 0 FEEZ 4
EELEERBRARE AR
REBRARULL -

HBRZERARIRE Fi 2025 127
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAZE 727117 )

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2 FE&HBE (&)
217 ERHIMKER(E)

2.17 Financial guarantees issued (continued)

As the Group is required to make payments only in the
event of a default by the specified debtor in accordance with
the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, an ECL is
estimated based on the expected payments to reimburse the
holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amount that the
Group expects to receive from the holder of the guarantee,
the specified debtor or any other party. The amount is then
discounted using the current risk-free rate adjusted for risks
specific to the cash flows.

2.18 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

2.19 Revenue and other income

128

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the provision of services and money lending in the
ordinary course of the Group’s business.

The Group is the principal for its revenue transactions and
recognises revenue on a gross basis. In determining whether
the Group acts as a principal or as an agent, it considers
whether it obtains control of the services before they are
rendered to the customers. Control refers to the Group’s ability
to direct the use of and obtain substantially all of the remaining
benefits from the services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19 Revenue and other income (continued)

Revenue from provision of services is recognised when control
over a service is transferred to the customer at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after the deduction of any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Provision of environmental and cleaning services

Service income received or receivable from customers
when the environment and cleaning service contracts,
which relate to routine environmental and cleaning
services, are entered into, is recognised over time as
the customers simultaneously receives and consumes
benefits as the Group performs. The Group bills a
predetermined rate for services provided on a regular
basis and recognises as revenue in the amount to which
the Group has a right to invoice and that corresponds
directly with the value of performance completed.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost
(i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see note 2.8(i)).

Dividend income

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

2 FESHEEE)
219 R HMUA (&)

RAARTS < W s RS 2 42 I EE S
ERPRRASEIAR AT A
REZB(TEBERRE=TTRIZ
SRR - kR T BRgERKE
fIHER - XHRERE ST -

AR S R AN R 2
—SHEIT

()

(i)

(iii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAZE 727117 )

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Translation of foreign currencies

2.21

130

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the Group
initially recognises such non-monetary assets and liabilities.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill arising
on consolidation of foreign operations acquired, are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign exchange rates
at the end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 2 FE&:BER(E)

2.22 Segment reporting 2.22 B E/E

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of services, the type or class of customers, the methods
used to provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a) Revenue

Revenue represents the service income from the provision
of environmental and cleaning services and interest income
earned from the money lending business as follows:

REDBRFEEVBEREAREES D
MEBZE®E  DRERAEEETE
BRTHREEEERRH2HMEE
o B ERAARESIERS RIS
&R - WRHHERE -

ERERZEED MBI ERMERE
BRmast - BRIFARD BARRAL
RBEE  YHEFRUZRBE
B BRPEASER - BHRRS S
% UREERIRME - ERIFFEX
ZREDEMEAT A LR 2 SRR

Bt

Ws K o B R
(@) Wz

W te e R IE KB R RIS TS HO AR
AR B BB R S U
o

2025 2024
—E-RE —EUE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Revenue within the scope of BB HREERE155
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from [BEFE&WE EERNZ
Contracts with Customers” g

Service income from environmental and &3 K52 RIEWA
cleaning

Revenue from other sources Hib iRz W

PRAEF B A

Interest income from money lending

497,523 485,387

4,907 2,687

502,430 488,074

For the environmental and cleaning services contracts, the
Group recognises revenue in the amount that equals to the
right to invoice which corresponds directly with the value to the
customer of the Group’s performance to date, on a monthly
basis. The Group has elected the practical expedient for not to
disclose the remaining performance obligations for these type
of contracts.

RRBLBRRBANME - AKHE
HARRWS  SRENERMAAR
ENEE - AERUEARELZSH
BROHEFNER AREDEEE
BREEME  UWHERBHEANZ
BTIBEHERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAZE 727117 )

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting

132

The Group determines its operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by directors, being the chief operating
decision maker, which are used to make strategic decisions
including resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance.

The segments are managed separately as each business offers
different products and services and requires different business
strategies. No operating segments identified by the chief
operating decision maker have been aggregated in arriving at
the reportable segments of the Group. The following summary
describes the operations in each of the Group’s reportable
segments:

Environmental and Provision of environmental and

cleaning cleaning services in Hong Kong
and the PRC

Money lending Provision of money lending
business in Hong Kong and
the PRC

Investments Investments in financial assets

The chief operating decision maker assesses the performance

of the operating segments based on a measure of reportable

segment results. This measurement basis excludes certain

other income, other gains and other losses and impairments,

central administrative expenses (including certain portion of

directors’ emoluments) and finance costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

wh

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

Wz ke o B E ()

(b) 7 EBERE ()
DHEETENERETEENAT]
BE W% BERREBEARRE R

Segment assets mainly exclude corporate assets, property,
plant and equipment and cash and cash equivalents that are
managed on a central basis.

Segment liabilities mainly exclude corporate liabilities and bank SNEEETEREIEATIBERET
loans. s
N

\

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities

() ZDEFE BEREE

2025
ZECRE
Environmental Money
and cleaning  Investments lending  Unallocated Total
BHEREZ RE M AR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEn Tén
Reportable segment revenue from EREEBRINRANIEF
external customers recognised by THEAPUE
over time 497,523 4,907 502,430
Reportable segment profit/{loss) HEEA/ (BE) 10,023 (4,081) 6,001
Unallocated corporate expense FARCERR
Other income, other gains and other losses ~ EfpMA ~ EfAEREREEL T
and impairments A (5,698)
Oentral administrative costs RAATHEA (5,889)
Finance costs BERK (586)
Loss hefore taxation REAIEE (6,082)
Other segment information A iER
Impairment loss on loans and interest BYEZ LA HESE

receivables

Net unrealised gain on financial assets
at FVPL

Revaluation loss on property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of iER

— property, plant and equipment -z BERERE
- right-of-use assets -RREEE
Interest on lease liahilties HEBEHE

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Loss on early termination on right-of-use assets 2R |- HELE /B

Write-off of property, plant and equipment

BAVE A\ RE 2RARL
RERNEEE
n%  BERREEERR

HENR  BERREZER

UER TG

EHHERBRAT Gk 2025
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAZE 727117 )

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

134

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

Wz ke o B S ()

(b) &P E (4])

() DEFEE BEEREMEH)

2024
“EomE
Environmental Money
andcleaning  Investments lending ~ Unallocated Total
REREEZ e i Ny st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T Th T
Reportable segment revenue from RERBEREINRENDEFZ
external customers recognised by AREIPhE
over time 485,387 - 2,687 - 488,074
Reportable segment profit AREL PR 8577 39 1,704 - 10,320
Unallocated corporate expense FOMOER
Other income, other gains and other losses — EHMA - EREREHERINE
and impaiments el (10733
Central administrative costs RATHAA 2.463)
Finance costs BERKE (689
Loss before taxation RERAEE (3,569)
Other segment information EthAHER
Reversal of impaiment lossonloansand ~~~ EWE I RFIE RESEAD
interest recevables - - (1471) - (1471)
Net unrealised gain on financial assets at FVPL AT E;F ABRZ 4 BEE Y
AERNEE - @37 - - 37)
Revaluation loss on property, plant and VER T ECEL
equipment - - - 10,762 10,752
Depreciation of; ik
- property, plant and equipment -0% BEREE 1445 - 7 1612 3064
- right-of-use assets -fFREEE 1,800 - 51 - 1,851
Interest on lease liabilties HEBENE 199 - - _ 129
Loss on dlisposal of property, plant and HENE  BRE R ESE
equipment 37 - - - 37
Write-off of property, plant and equipment 12 - BiE k& 3% - - - 3%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS , \
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 ) ) \

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 Wa&EkosH®E(E)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) 2EBHE (&)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) () HEbFE#E BEREBEE)
2025 2024
-t 13 3
Environmental Money Environmental Money
and cleaning  Investments lending Total  and cleaning Investments lending Total
RERAR K& i &t ez 73 HifE ey

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
TERL TiEn TR TiEn TEn T TiEL TEL

Assets BE
Segment assets PHEE 186,136 261,573 178,726 13712 67,992 248,090
Unallocated corporate AOELEEE
assets 37,890 49,699
299,463 297,789
Liabilities &R
Seqmen fabltes AHaE (19510 (10280) 80,176) 19 628) 8082
Unallocated corporate FOELEEE
Tebiltes 20,159
(100.980)
Other segment information E {5 &4
Addtions to segment non-  FEH TG E
current assets E 2,407 - - 2407
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7TFI7R)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

136

3 WmkoHE®E(HE)

(b) &P E (4])

(i) Geographical information and major customers (i) MWEEHRETEEF

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
external customers and (ii) the Group’s property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets (“specified non-
current assets”). The geographical location of customers is
based on the location at which the services or loans were
provided. The geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is based on the physical location of the

assets.
Revenue from
external customers
REIIMBEF 2
2025 2024
—E-RE 4
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FERT FHET
Hong Kong 'S 480,568 468,208
The PRC s 21,862 19,866

502,430 488,074

Revenue from major customers arising from provision of
environmental and cleaning services which accounted for
10% or more of the total revenue is set out below:

Customer A =PA
Customer B =FB
Customer C ®FC
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RSB A EERE SN
BP 2 W R\ A =B 2
BELEEREREEE(E
EHRRBEE]) AEMEZE
o BP P R R HIRTS
KERZPAEMEE S - B
FRDEEMEMRIZEEE
XPTEHEREI S o

Specified non-current

assets

EBEFRBEE
2025 2024
—EHRF —EOF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
48,414
413
48,827

RERBERBERRBHAFRA
TEEPHYE(HBYKE10%
A B)EINAT

2025 2024
—EERF —EUF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FiBT
54,266

55,302

49,057



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

4 OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS AND OTHER 4 H{ilgA - Hittlhsm R HEtEEH

LOSSES AND IMPAIRMENTS LR R{E
2025 2024
—E-REF —E4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FET
Other income Hnlr A
Bank interest income HRITHFEHA 140
Dividend income from listed equity securities &SN ZE 5 2 i B A 4
Sundry income TR A 114
258
Other gains Higlh g
Net unrealised gain on financial assets at BATHEF ARG ¢REEY
FVPL RNER W TR 37
Reversal of impairment loss on loans and FEWE SR A SR E R R R E
interest receivables 1,471
1,508
Other losses and impairments HitEsiE RmE
Impairment loss on loans and interest JEWE R F B EEE
receivables (& 7%)) -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYE - BE MR EEE
equipment (6) (87)
Loss on early termination on right-of-use RERILEREEE 2 EE
assets ()] -
Revaluation loss on property, plant and Y - BREMEEBEGHSE
equipment (5,704) (10,752)
(13,536) (10,789)
(13,059) (9,023)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7TFI7R)

5 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 5

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(a) Finance costs

Interest on bank loans

RITERZF B
Interest on lease liabilities S

HEREZFE

RRFAIET 18
BEAIEEEE,(GEA) THISE
(a) BMERAK
2025 2024
—E-EE —EOF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
689
129
818

(b) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments
(note 7))

(b) ETRK(BIFEEHM (KT
7))

2025 2024
—E-RHEF —EpUE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TERHMET 244,553 250,458

Contributions to defined contribution TE R TR KT B H R
retirement plan 7,631 8,549
Provision for long service payments REIRG S RHE 778 919
252,962 259,926

(c) Otheritems (c) HfwEE
2025 2024
—E-RHEF —E_NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Auditors’ remuneration % B AN M 863
Cost of consumable goods SEFESRA AR 8,315
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% - BEMERETE

equipment 3,064
Depreciation of right-of-use assets REEENE 1,851
Expense relating to short-term leases AR E MR 924
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss SNE (Mzs), /518 F 5 13
Write-off of property, plant and equipment 1% - Bi= & 3% @ 36
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 #HR&EZBERTHFIEB
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or (a) ZREBERTPNBIERE !
loss represents:

2025 2024
—E-RHF —E 4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax  BEIfi%i 18 — &8 F|8H
Provision for the year FNEE 1,196
Over-provision in respect of prior years BRBAEFENBEEE -
1,196
Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income  BIfi#i 8 — S Z S8
Tax
Provision for the year FREE 70
Over-provision in respect of prior years BRBAFENBEEE @)
68
Deferred tax charge/(credit) FEERENR,(KR)
(note 21(b)) (MfzE21(0))
Origination and reversal of temporary TR ZE R AR K B
differences (69)
Income tax expense FriSFif = 1,195
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBFEH
The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ended BEZT-A%~A EfEJJ:EE%E
30 June 2025 is calculated at 16.5% (2024: 16.5%) of the BRI HRE TREWEWEE%’WE
estimated assessable profits for the year, except for one F#916.5% (= F Z 4 : 16.5% )&t
subsidiary which is a qualifying corporation under the two- B B A RRI - EZWETA
tiered Profits Tax rate regime. AIRMEHMAREHEE TEE
AR o
For this subsidiary, the first HK$2,000,000 of assessable % Mt B8 2~ & #9 & 2,000,000 7 7T fE
profits are taxed at 8.25% (2024: 8.25%) and the remaining R Bt i F £28.25% ( —F M4 -
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2024: 16.5%). 8.25% ) M) Bt AL R - 1 &k T ) fE
FB R FIE165% (=T ZMEF -
16.5% ) BOFE BT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAZE 727117 )

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or

140

loss represents: (continued)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax

The subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC are subject to the
PRC Enterprise Income Tax of 25% (2024: 25%) for the year.

Under the PRC tax law, profits of the Group’s subsidiaries
in the PRC (the “PRC subsidiaries”) derived since 1 January
2008 is subject to withholding income tax at rates of 5% or
10% upon the distribution of such profits to foreign investors
or companies incorporated in Hong Kong or for other foreign
investors, respectively.

At 30 June 2025 and 2024, no deferred tax liabilities have
been recognised in respect of tax that would be payable on
the unremitted profits of the PRC subsidiaries derived since 1
January 2008 as the Company is in a position to control the
dividend policies of the PRC subsidiaries and no distribution
of such profits is expected to be declared from the PRC
subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.

Income tax from other tax jurisdictions

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in respective tax jurisdictions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 #HR&BE:mRPHFEHE)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense and (b) HEABRITEHNESHERHE
accounting loss at applicable tax rates: BRI

2025 2024

—E-hF —ZE_mEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Loss before taxation BB AT 18 (6,082) (3,565)

Notional tax credit on loss before taxation FRFiFIE B ZETHIEE R

at Hong Kong statutory tax rate BEBEEREANHE (1,003) (588)
Tax effect of non-taxable income AR A R TR S 5 & (113) (1,141)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TAHE A MR 2 1,342 3,218
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERRBBRIBEER

recognised Dihi32 - 1,510 280
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ~ HB A &N EIF R 572 (337) (407)
Over-provision in respect of prior years, B RBEFEHBEERE T8

net (15) @)
Tax concession MIEER (165) (165)
Income tax expense TSR 1,219 1,195
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RAR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7TFI7R)

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7 EEXEMS
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of RIEE B R EMEHIZE383(1) K - AR (KRR
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Part 2 of the Companies EEZFZER) RO F 25 RGEM LT
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation Al EEEHEENT :

and the GEM Listing Rules are as follows:

Contributions to
Salaries, allowance and Discretionary defined contribution
Fees benefits in kind bonuses retirement plan Total
ik #e BERENER Mgt EREHRIGAB LR @t

2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024 2025 2024

ZECEE -E-MF CECEE -T-MF CECREE CT-MF CECREE CECNF ZEBCREE CEONE

Note HK$000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$'000
i3 Tin Tén Tin Fitr Tén T Tén T T T

Present directors RBiEES
Executive directors #iEE
Mr. Yu Shaoheng (Chaiman 48354 (T %

and Chief Executive Officer) TR, 1950 668 2,759
Mr. Lai Tin Ming N e 120 1,086 2,19
Non-executive director FHnER
Ms. Chan Suet Ling ZRUT 1 - - -
Independent non-executive  BUHLTEZ
directors
Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack B Fiest e 120 - 120
M. Meng Enhai REERE 120 - 120
M Wang Cui T 2 120 . 120
Mr. Ni Fuhua REELE 3 - - -
2430 1,754 5314
During the years ended 30 June 2025 and 2024, no director waived REE-_TE-_AFA-_T-_NF A=+
or agreed to waive any emoluments. No emoluments were paid by BIEFE  WESEWREXRERETM
the Group to the directors of the Company as an inducement to join e - AEBMERARREE I EM
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. & - ERIMASRIIAR S B &K 52E
SVE B -
Notes: Mz -
1. The Group announced that with effective from 16 December 2024, Ms. 1. AKESEHE-ZT-WF+=A+~AH
Chan Suet Ling has been appointed as non-executive directors. B RERLLTERZTAIENTES -
2. Mr. Wang Cui resigned on 30 June 2024. 2. IBAERZT-NFANA=ZTHBHE-
3. The Group announced that with effective from 30 June 2024, Mr. Ni 3. AEEEME-_T-NFA=+HIE "
Fuhua had been appointed as an independent non-executive director. REELAECEZTABYIENTES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2024:
two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other two (2024:
three) individuals are as follows:

REHFAL

hE&ReEHFALH  =R(ZFT_0F:
M) RESR  EHMNHETRE - B
HmE (2 -F : =8) ALaH B
fERmT

Salaries, wages and other benefits e TERHMET
Discretionary bonuses @4] BIEAL
Contributions to defined contribution BER SGRIRET IR 5K

retirement plan

2025 2024

— —EolF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TAT
1,607

321

60

1,888

The emoluments of the other two (2024: three) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following band:

ﬁf‘aﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ%(:?:lﬂi FZR)REH
ATHEFHBR N T E

2025 2024
—ECHF e s es
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

A AEK

HK$NIl — HK$1,000,000 T T £ 1,000,000 7T

____- [N

During the years ended 30 June 2025 and 2024, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to any of the individuals with highest
emoluments of the Group as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

9 LOSS PER SHARE
(a) Basic loss per share

The calculation is based on the loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$6,851,000 (2024:
HK$4,396,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 540,000,000 (2024: 540,000,000) ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

(b) Diluted loss per share

The diluted loss per share for the years ended 30 June 2025
and 2024 is the same as the basic loss per share as the
Company does not have any potential dilutive ordinary shares
during the respective years.

REE-_TE-_AFA_FT-_WNF A=t

BIEFE  AEEBERAER T MRS

FATZNEHW - (BB AR IMALRE

BN SRS e R BRI (E o

BREE

(a) BREXREE
HENBEEREFERNARES AR
{EE N EE6,851,000/ T (=ZF =@M
F 1 4,396,000/8 C) KB BT E R

HN#E 19 £0540,000,0000% (= Z =P
F 1 540,000,0000% ) L @AAEL ©

(b) BRE#EEEHE

ARARRREBE_Z_AFR_-F
ZWFEANA=TRHIEFEWESAE
RS LB - NS FE SRS
SEERRGREREEER -

HBRZERARIRE Fi 2025 143
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAZE 727117 )

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 Y% - BRERZE
Equipment
Land and Furniture and Motor Computer Leasehold
buildings ~ and fixtures machinery vehicles equipment  improvements Total
1HEEF  BAREE  RERES AE - HERE st

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAT TAT

Cost or valuation HAGEE
At1 July 2023 R-B_=FtA-A 54,400 903 14,005 13,036 253 2,096 84,783
Addtions K - 63 1,100 - - - 1133
Revaluationloss L (10,752) - - - - - (10,752)
Less: elmination of accumulated ) : 2 EHE
depreciation (1,248 - - - - - (1248
Written off s - (1) (231) - - - (232)
Disposals HE - (29 (107) - - - (136)
Exchange realignment B A% - - (17) ] - - (20)
£t 30 June 2024 R-E-MF
~A=tA 42,400 906 14,840 13,083 253 2,096 73,508
Representing b
Cost i - 906 14,840 13,083 253 2,096 31,128
Valuation {4 42,400 - - - - - 42,400
42,400 906 14,840 13,083 253 2,096 73,508
At 1 July 2024 WB-MELA-F 42,400 906 14,840 13,083 253 2,096 73,508
Addtions KE - 18 1426 1,151 8 - 2,603
Revaluationloss L (5,704) - - - - - (5,704)
Less: elimination of accumulated B - 25HiT &L
depreciation (976) - - - - - (976)
Witten off s - @ 0 - - - (1)
Disposals e - {4 (32 - - - 39)
Exchange realignment S - - 5 13 1 - 19
£ 30 June 2025 ik
~A=1A 3,720 918 16,230 14,197 %62 2,096 69,423
Representing b
Cost i - 918 16,230 14,197 %62 2,096 33,703
Valuation 1hE 3,720 - - - - - 35,720
3,720 918 16,230 14,197 %62 2,096 69,423
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 ¥¥ -  BMERRE(E)

(CONTINUED)
Equipment
Land and Furniture and Motor Computer Leasehold
buildings  and fixtures machinery vehicles equipment  improvements Total
1HREE  GAREE  RERES AE ElEE BEEE @t
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn TEnL TEL TERL TEL
Accumulated depreciation ZithE
At 1 July 2023 bl - 801 10,085 12,083 24 1,581 24,691
Charge for the year EEXH 1,248 % 1,063 38 8 31 3,064
Elimination on revaluation S (1,248) - - - - - (1,248)
Witten off ik - (1) (195) - - - (196)
Disposals e - 2 (49 - - - )
Exchange realignment 3 - - - @2 - - 2
At30June 2024 and 1July 2024 R -E-MERA
StRR-E-ME
tA-H - 804 10,854 12,389 249 1,942 26,238
Charge for the year EEH 976 2 1,132 546 5 154 283
Fimination on revaluation EftHH (976) - - - - - (976)
Witten off ik - (1) 0 - - - (10)
Disposals e - (1) {17 - - - 18)
Exchange realignment 3 - - 6 9 1 - 16
At30 June 2025 R-E_1%
~A=TH - 824 11,966 12,944 25 2,0% 28,085
Carrying amount FEE
At 30 June 2025 R-E-RE
~AZTH 35,720 % 4264 1,253 7 - 41,338
At 30 June 2024 RZZ-RmE
~A=tH 42,400 102 3,986 644 4 154 47,90

The land and buildings are situated in Hong Kong and are held
under a medium-term lease.

The fair value of the Group’s land and buildings, measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, is categorised
into Level 3 fair value measurement within the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”.

The fair value of the Group’s land and buildings as at 30 June 2025
and 2024 is a Level 3 recurring fair value measurement, which uses
significant unobservable inputs (i.e. inputs not derived from market
data).

During the years ended 30 June 2025 and 2024, there were no
transfers into or out of Level 3 or any other level. The Group’s policy is
to recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the
end of the reporting period in which they occur.

THMEFURES  WREPHEER
5o

AEET I RET 2 A TFERREHREZ
REMEESE WO RERABMBRE
HRIFEABR A FEFEIFMREZ=ZAR
FEERAZE=RATVEFE -

WEYER T -_RAFR-_ZT_MFA
Z+HNAFEBRE=REEEQNTFE
e HEAEART TSRS A S (A
WIER BB BB AZIE)

BE_ZE_hER_ZT_MFA=1H
WEFE B E R EEA
B o ARNEEE 2 BUR TR S BRI
EHBRENATFEERME 2 ER -

HBRZERARIRE Fi 2025 145
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAZE 727117 )

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 ¥¥ - BENKRXE(E)

(CONTINUED)

The fair values of the Group’s land and buildings at 30 June 2025
and 2024 have been arrived at on the basis of valuation by Royson
Valuation Advisory Limited, an independent qualified professional
valuer not connected with the Group, and are determined using the
market approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable
properties on a price per square foot basis using market data which
is publicly available and have been adjusted for the comparable
properties such as properties size, characteristics and location.

The range of adjustments made by valuer in assessing the fair value
of the Group’s land and buildings is -1% to 14% (2024: -2% to
16%).

AEELWEEFR-F_RAFR-F
“OERNA=ZTRZAFEERBEAS
B ERE 2 B A BRERMGENER
FHERABERARMEZEESE - XL
SERRFABHSBREREASF IR
BIfREEZ A BB FRTHEER
BEAMSEETE - YEHATELBYE
(RN~ BRIRAIE)EH AR -

fEEMETARNBERFEAREK
THRBFZ AFER1%E14%(ZF
ZPOF 1 2% E16%) °

Relationship of
Range of unobservable inputs unobservable
Significant TUBEGABENEE inputs to fair value
Valuation technique unobservable inputs 2025 2024 ABEGAGEH
hERH EVRIGIE LN ¢ S —— 2 b Sl 1 E:2 NYENEE
Office premises Direct comparison Estimated unit rates per Range from approximately Range from approximately - Increase in the estimated
approach square feet, taking into HK$12,000 to HK$9,000 to unit rates per square
account the location of HK$13,000 per sa.ft. HK$15,000 per sa.ft. feet would increase the
the property fair value of the office
premises, and vice
versa.
N ES EENEE GEFROETECER . FEARNTH12000 BEARNTFH000  SFEAREHEMERD
BERAMENLE AT E13,00087T T E15,00087T EMEE M AE
WATE - RZTA -
Car parking spaces Direct comparison Estimated unit rates, taking ~ Range from approximately Range from approximately - Increase in the transaction
approach into account the location HK$1,600,000 to HK$1,922,000 to price would increase
of the property HK$1,760,000 HK$2,000,000 the fair value of the car
parking spaces uni,
and vice versa.
fFEE EENRA fEEt BB BEZRZW NTA16000008TE  NTH19220008TE RHERMENERRE
ROME 1,760,000% 7 2,000,000/ BEMATE R
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Had they been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation,
the carrying amount would have been HK$58,324,000 (2024
HK$59,666,000).

At 30 June 2025, the Group had pledged its land and buildings
with carrying amount of HK$35,720,000 (2024: HK$42,400,000)
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (note 19) and
performance bonds issued (note 28(a)).
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EERABREAIER  EEE
# 558,324,000 7L ( =T — /1 £
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

11 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 11 ERREEE
HK$’000
FAT

Cost 2%
At 1 July 2023 R-ZE-=F+AF—H 4,290
Additions NE 1,274
Written off J 58 (1,769)
Exchange adjustment P H % (5)
At 30 June 2024 and 1 July 2024 RZEZMERA=THEER=ZZE_NFE+A—H 3,790
Additions NE 2,573
Written off b (2,308)
Adjustment as a result early termination of leases FEFEE IR A4 I FRE A FIEE 219
Exchange adjustment PE H % 20
At 30 June 2025 RZE-RFA=TH 3,856
Accumulated depreciation Hitine
At 1 July 2023 R-ZE-_=F+H—H 2,175
Charge for the year FEZH 1,851
Written off HigH (1,769)
Exchange adjustments EH 4
At 30 June 2024 and 1 July 2024 RZE-WNFEAA=THA-Z-NF+H—H 2,253
Charge for the year FEZH 1,782
Written off 6! (2,308)
Adjustment as a result early termination of leases FEFHEIR IR IFFTE AR FIE (192)
Exchange adjustments b 5, B 11
At 30 June 2025 RZZT-RFA=1+H 1,546
Carrying amount BREE
At 30 June 2025 RZZE-RHFAA=FH 2,310
At 30 June 2024 RZEZMEA=+H 1,637

The Group has obtained the right to use certain properties as its
office premises and warehouse through tenancy agreements.
The leases run for a period of 2 to 4 years (2024 2 to 4 years), at
the end of period, all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases
includes variable lease payments.

Amounts included in the consolidated statement of cash flows
comprise cash outflow for leases of HK$263,000 and HK$1,890,000
(2024: HK$924,000 and HK$1,974,000) in operating and financing
activities respectively.

AEBEEBRZBEHERZREGEETY
XBEERAEMEREENEF - 2%
HEAHEAFE (T -JUF : 2544) -
BRI RENER - ZSHET R
BIEREHENR -

FTAEH S RERNFTEBRIELE KM
B)EEHEERS M D R /E263,0008 7T
121,890,000 7T ( — & — PO 4E : 924,000
T N1,974,00087T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RAR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7TFI7R)

12 TRADE RECEIVABLES 12 EZEWFRIE
2025 2024
—E-HF TETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FBT
Trade receivables, net of nil loss allowance B SEWFRIE © MG ZEIEEE 99,966 94,366
(a) Ageing analysis (a) BRERD AT
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis RERE BIR - 1R E A A (S e iE
of trade receivables, based on the invoice date (or date of REH  UREEAEE)RIINES
revenue recognition, if earlier), is as follows: JEWFIERRES AT AT -
2025 2024
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FAET
0-30 days 0%30H 68,660
31-60 days 31£260H 16,993
61-90 days 61290H 7,696
Over 90 days B0 H 1,017
94,366
Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note BHETEBEEEBR ZE—FFEH
24(a). HHIEE24(a)
13 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 13 %%  E{RERHEMEKKE
RECEIVABLES
2025 2024
—E-RE —ENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Deposits (note (a)) % (@) 3,030
Prepayments TERRIE 1,145
Other receivables E At EUGRIA 3,836
8,011
All of the Group’s deposits, prepayments and other receivables, A TFH£41,0008L( —F —F :
apart from certain deposits of HK$41,000 (2024: HK$1,879,000), 1,879,000 7C) 5 - AEE 2 EIES - 78
are expected to be recovered or recognised as expense within one NI R EmERKIETERSERN —F A
year. W Bl sk iR M o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

13 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 13 & B RERHEMEWKNIE

RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) (&)

(a) Deposits (a) #&®
The Group has tendered for certain environmental services RZE-RFERA=TH xEEE
contracts and deposited sums of HK$1,881,000 (2024: HIEAE TRARRBEY - WX Hik
HK$2,082,000) as tender deposits at 30 June 2025. The £ 48%81,881,000/8 7C( —F Z 04 -
tender deposits are interest-free and recoverable at the end of 2,082,000/ L ) 1E BIZIZIZS © 1%1Z
the tender. Be TR - BERBIZAREEATK

@ -
14 LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 14 BRERKRRE

The Group’s loans and interest receivables arise from the money REE 2z BKEREMNBETIARRRZEM

lending business of providing loans in Hong Kong and the PRC by BARRESRFREBHER 2 HESE

the wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. The Group seeks EEREAE - NEBIKEREERKER

to maintain strict control over its outstanding loans and interest RFBERFERES - UEERDEER

receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed Bz o BEARRRER B IE[E E B -

regularly by management.

2025 2024
ZECRE e 113
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
ERHD FEDS @ BREn MEHH @it

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TAT TR TAL

Secured loans by mortgage  SAIRIE(ELEZ

HHER 6,500 43 6,543 7,500 105 7,605
Personal guaranteed loans A ZRE 44,200 1,844 46,044 44,200 1,844 46,044
Unsecured loans BERER 34,656 2,805 37,461 32,907 1,624 34,531

85,356 4,602 90,048 84,607 3573 88,180
Less: Loss alowance W BERE (56,433) (3,096) (59,529) (49,478) (2,098) (51,576)

28,928 1,596 30,519 35,129 1,475 36,604

Less: current portion included & : ENERZEDFT A

under current assets MBAE (15,819) (1,596) (17,415) (23,347) (1,475) (24,822)
Amounts due after 1 year —EH BT
or above included under SEATERD
non-current assets BE 11,782 - 11,782
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e M RAR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7TFI7R)

14 LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 14 EBWERKIIE (&)

(CONTINUED)
The net exposure of the Group’s loans and interest receivables to AEBHEKREZR R AR FERE
their contractual maturity dates are as follows: KHEEARAT -
2025 2024
—EBCRE —T-MF
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
EREs S @t EREHS FEHD @5t
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn Tix Ti#gn FHT T FHT
Within 1 year —%R 15,819 23,347 1475 24,820
More than 1 year but —FRERER
within 2 years 13,104 - - -
More than 2 years but MEFRERER
within 5 years 11,782 - 11,782
28,923 35,129 1,475 36,604
Loans receivable are interest-bearing at rates ranging from 6.00% JE W B % F 7 FE 97 T 6.00% = 24.00%
to 24.00% (2024: 6.00% to 24.00%) per annum and repayable on (ZZ 4% : 6.00%222.00%)5HE I
maturity under the terms of contractual agreements or on demand RS BIRE S 15 G500 B EL B gz
in writing by the Group. EMEREE -
(a) Ageing analysis (a) BRERD AT
Ageing analysis is prepared based on contractual due dates: BRI D IMIRIEAOEI AR
2025 2024
—E-FHE i
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
ExEs S @t ER#HH MEFS it
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TiEx Tix T FET FHT
Current (not past due) SIER (RgH) 19,647 1,598 21,245 35,423 1479 36,902
Less than 1 month past due BE#IR—EA 5,476 316 5,792 - - -
1to12monthspastdue ~~ BH—E+=1EA 10,952 679 11,631 4,983 249 5,230
More than 12 months akirel ey )
past due 49,281 2,099 51,380 44,201 1,845 46,046
Less: Loss allowance B BERE (56,433) (3,096) (59,529) (49,478) (2,008) (51,576)

28,923 1,596 30,519 35,129 1,475 36,604
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e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

14 LOANS AND

(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Ageing analysis (continued)

INTEREST RECEIVABLES

The credit quality of loans and interest receivables has
been assessed by reference to historical information about
counterparty default rates. Further details on the Group’s credit

policy are set out in note 24(a).

Analysed by credit quality

14 BERERKFE(E)

(a) FRER7 4T (4R)
RUWER LN ENEEER2ERH
RPTTRHLE ZBEERHEFNM o
BRAKBEEBR 2 E—TFHIEH

FAMiEE24(a) °

(b) BEEEZDHT

2025 2024
—BCRE e~ 1
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
ERda FEH2 @ EFES HEEHD @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FET TEL FHL TAT
Loans receivables thatare EEEREZ
not credit-impaired EWE
Current (not past due) EE S i) 35,423 1479 36,902
Less than 1 month past due ~ EE D —{E A - - -
1t0 12 months past due wE-=+=fA - - -
Less: Loss allowance W BERE (294) @) (298)
35,129 1,475 36,604
Loans receivables thatare =& R{E 2 EW
credit-impaired EX
Current (not past due) BIER (k@A) - - -
Less than 1 month past due  BE PR —1{EA 5,476 316 5,792 - - -
1 to 12 months past due BE-=+-fA 10,952 679 11,631 4,983 249 5,232
More than 12 months past BB+ @A
due 49,281 2,099 51,380 44,201 1,845 46,046
Less: Loss allowance W BiERE () (3,094) (59,494) (49,184) (2,004) (51,278)
9,309 9,309 - - -
28,923 30,519 35,129 1,475 36,604
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VI RRM

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JAZE 727117 )

15 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FVPL 15 RAFEFABRZEREE
2025 2024
—EC-EHF il 118 = =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Listed equity securities at fair value BATEFEZ BB EHRAE
in Hong Kong FS 405
The fair values of listed equity securities are determined based on ETRAE S 2 A ERR SRS BIREA
the quoted market closing price available on the Stock Exchange at FrErRm BN mEEE -

the end of the reporting period.

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED 16 B&RBEEZEY - ZRHIBRIT

BANK DEPOSITS AND OTHER CASH FLOW ERREMREREER
INFORMATION
(@) Cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank deposits @ BeMRSZFEVRZRHBITTER
comprise cash at banks and on hand: BRERITRFERS
2025 2024
—E-RE —EpUF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET BT
Deposits with banks RITHER 5,760 5,889
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHERS 110,793 103,174
116,553 109,063
Restricted bank deposits (note) PR HIERTTIE (K FE) (5,760) (5,889)
Cash and cash equivalents in the REMBMRRAKR ZHE R
consolidated statement of financial REEEY
position 110,793 103,174
Note: The restricted bank deposits represent cash held at banks as MisE : ZRFIRITFRIENIRITRBN
security for performance bonds issued for due performance BRE ERZRBBTETERRRK
under several environmental and cleaning service contracts BRBREAHNDBLNBLORE
(see note 28(a)). As at 30 June 2024, the restricted bank HER(BH E28(a) - R ==
deposits of HK$5,889,000 that related to environmental ZHFERNA=TH  BRERE
service contracts with expiry date over one year after the end EHAA BB A R RS ERE
of the reporting period are presented as non-current assets. B—FRXRERITER - &8
735,889,000/ 7T + FIRAIERE
BE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e U RR M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED
BANK DEPOSITS AND OTHER CASH FLOW
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows

from financing activities.

16 RERRELEY - RHIBIT
FREEMRESREER (F)

()

TEARAREREEDHRELNHE
FEY  ERERERLED - B
SEBFEENAEARRE RN
ARBSREERALEEARER
ERNDFEAMEEDFELRS R
ETOUR

Bank Lease
loans liabilities Total
RITER HEAE et
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FAT FHET FAET
(note 19) (note 20)
(M45E19) (M45E20)
At 1 July 2023 R-ZB-=F+A—H 20,353 2,146 22,499
Changes from financing cash BMEESRESSH
flows:
Capital element of lease rentals paid B IHAERSHERL D - (1,845) (1,845)
Interest element of lease rentals paid T ATHERSHF 2D - (129) (129)
Interest paid ERFE (689) - (689)
Repayment of bank loans BEIBITER (987) - (987)
(1,676) (1,974) (3,650)
Other changes: Hih# g :
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) FLEFZ (Fi5E5@) 689 129 818
New lease entered MEIME - 1,274 1,274
689 1,403 2,092
At 30 June 2024 and 1 July 2024 HR-ZT_WFEXA=+H
EZE-_MELHA—H 19,366 1,575 20,941
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16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED 16 BRE&RERESZEEY - ZRHIMRIT

BANK DEPOSITS AND OTHER CASH FLOW ERREMESHREBLEN (E)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
(o) (continued) o) (&)
Bank Lease
loans liabilities Total
RITER HEEE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET FET
(note 19) (note 20)

(FizE19) (F¥EE20)

Changes from financing cash REEESREEE .
flows:

Capital element of lease rentals paid E SRS HERL D - (1,810) (1,810)

Interest element of lease rentals paid 2 HER G HF B EED - (:10)) (1))

Interest paid BRFE (586) - (586)

Repayment of bank loans BEIBITER (1,051) - (1,051)
(1,637) (1,890) (3,527)

Exchange adjustments b H % 9 9

Other changes: Hih# g :

Interest expenses (note 5(a)) B X (KI7E5()

Adjustment as a result early EiR SRR

termination of leases FTEE & B2
New lease entered ETHEE
At 30 June 2025 R=ZB-RFXA=1+AH
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e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T517R)

17 TRADE PAYABLES 17 BESENFRIE

2025 2024

—E-RE —TomE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

Trade payables B S BN 5RIA -!ggl 35,707
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade HEREHR  KFEZAH2NNESE

payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows: RFIBRER ST -

2025 2024

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FERT FAT

0-30 days 0%30H 30,751

31-60 days 31260H 853

61-90 days 61290H 2,849

Over 90 days B0 H 1,254

35,707

18 ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND OTHER 18 EFfEHR - S Wi R EMEN

PAYABLES MIE
2025 2024
—E-RF —ZE_mEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT FAET
Accrued salaries IERE = 21,622
Provision for gratuity A B 2,304
Provision for LSP (note 22(b)) REIRFG S #E (R 22(0) 4,432
Provision for untaken leave RIBEUE Hr R BB 4,705
Provision for claims (note 28(b)) REEE(RKEE28(0)) 6,205
Other accruals HAbfEET & A 2,425
Deposits received BlES 182
Other payables H A FERTFRIE 456
42,331
Included in other payables of HK$9,681,000 (2024: HK$Nil) H i & 1 50 159,681,000/ 7T (= F = M
represents the amount due to Yu Shaoheng, a director of the FEBILBREZHIAE - DEFTE
Company, which is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on RAEBRBT LA ZREBER
demand. 1B RERBEREKEE -
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18 ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND OTHER
PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

All other accruals, deposits received and other payables are
expected to be settled or recognised as income within one year or
repayable on demand.

19 BANK LOANS

The bank loans are repayable on demand and the maturity of bank
loans, based on the schedule payment dates set out in the loan
agreements, is as follows:

18

19

EEtER  CBhZERHEMEM
MR (%)

FiBETER BBiEE R EMENFRIE
TEHIR — F SR AW - B
ZREE -

BITEN

RITEFAREREE - REERGE
BRI AR - RITERCEIEE W
T

2025 2024
—E-RF —EpUF
HK$’000 HK$000
FHET F#T

Within 1 year —FRX

After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFR
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBERFNR
More than 5 years AFENUE

1,023
1,059
3,409
13,875

19,366

Details on the interest rate profile of the Group are set out in note
24(c).

The bank loans were secured by the Group’s land and buildings
with a carrying amount of HK$35,720,000 (2024: HK$42,400,000)
and corporate guarantees from the Company and a subsidiary.

20 LEASE LIABILITIES

At 30 June 2025, the lease liabilities were repayable as follows:

20

ARER B 2 MR R F BRI RE24(c)

RITE AR E B R (E A35,72,00078
JT(ZZ V04 : 42,400,00058 7T ) 2 13
MEFURRARR—MEHBAGFEZ
NAEIERIEEA -

HERE

R-Z-_RFA=+AH " EEEHEa
(EPORNE

Within 1 year —&FR
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFR
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBRFA

2025 2024
—E-RE —EOF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHBT
1,441

97

37

1,575
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21 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 21 GR&EUBMRRERAMNAEHR
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of

financial position presents:

(a) FEMBARRAVEIBIELE

2025
—EEF
HK$°000
FET

Hong Kong Profits Tax

Provision for the year (note 6(a))

Balance of profits tax provision relating to
prior years

EBNEB
F R (FiaE6(@)
BEFEFERAEEERS

(1,040)

231

(809)

(100)
76

(24)

(833)

PRC Enterprise Income Tax PEIEMEH
Provision for the year (note 6(a)) F B (F7E6()
Provisional tax paid BATE R
Represented by: 15

Current tax payable P BN EATR IR

- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BBNEB

- PRC Enterprise Income Tax — R EEFTEHE

EHHERBRAT Gk 2025

2024

—E U4
HK$’000
FHET

(1,430)
(1)

(1,461)
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21

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised

(c)

158

The component of deferred tax liabilities recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position and the
movements during the year are as follows:

21 ZEMBRRERAKEH (E)

(b) ERPBELEHREARS

FARERS VR K T ERNET
BIBBEERE D REEHT

Depreciation

allowance
in excess of
the related
depreciation
of property, Other
plant and temporary
equipment differences Total
itk E
BERRE
AEBATEN H{th
wERE =58 et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT
At 1 July 2023 RZZEZ=F+H—H 498 112 610
Credited to profit or loss (note 6(a)) st ABZE(H5E6()) 1) (48) 69)
Exchange realignment M 5,8 B - (1) 1)
At 30 June 2024 and 1 July 2024 R-E_MFA=1H
R_ZE_mMFE+A—H 477 63 540
Charged to profit or loss (note 6(a)) AR IEZE (M 5E6(a)) 94 - 94
At 30 June 2025 RZEBE-RFA=1+H 571 63 634

Deferred tax assets/liabilities not recognised

At 30 June 2025, the Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of approximately
HK$11,656,000 (2024: HK$5,742,000) as it is not probable
that future taxable profits, against which the assets can be
utilised, will be available in any relevant tax jurisdiction or entity.
Of the total tax losses, HK$7,696,000 (2024: HK$1,286,000)
will expire within 5 years under the current tax legislation. Other
unrecognised temporary differences are not material.
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22 POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

(@) Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates the MPF Scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under
the MPF Scheme, certain subsidiaries of the Group and
the eligible employees are each required to make monthly
mandatory contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$30,000. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately,
there is no forfeited contributions. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement schemes is to pay the
ongoing contributions required by the schemes.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in
defined contribution retirement schemes covering its full-
time PRC employees. The schemes are administered by the
relevant government authorities in the PRC. The Group and
the PRC employees are required to make contributions based
on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs as
stipulated under the requirements in the PRC and the relevant
government authorities undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and future retired employees
of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss of HK$7,631,000 (2024: HK$8,549,000) for the
year ended 30 June 2025 represents contributions payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
plans.

22 BBRER
(a) EAKBFRIZHE

AEERBELRHINEAESF G
BIRRIER B RE D RDEE BRI
RZzRERIBEDE - @A
EIRHBY XA EIE 2 ERHIUR
REHEl - RIFRTEEFE - NEBE
THEBARKREEREESAARKS
BN EE EIREITR T AR EZ B
BHEBUWA Z5%MEEIVEHR G50
HefH R LR A% A #ERA U4 A30,00078
7T ° [T B Z AN R - A
SERER W - REEFURIKGT
M — B IR EIMT &

K -

REERTEZHBARTREPE
2REB2EEBRHICRAGE - %
FEr 2T EEMBUTHEERE - K
SELTEEBBIETBEBRTEME
ZBRAFERRNZETBED LR
o MR EERAGE A EA S
BB AR 28R A R AREK
BR ZRIKBHEE -

WEE-_E-_RAFA=+AH1t
FE REAEBZRERNAR
% 7,631,0008 0 (==& — 0 F :
8,549,000/ 7L ) AA S EiLFr &R Al
FTPARI L R EN TR ST B ERR -
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22 BEERETERI(E)
(b) RERKESRE

22 POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
(b) Provision for LSP

160

Hong Kong employees that have been employed continuously
for at least five years are entitled to long service payments
in accordance with the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
under certain circumstances. These circumstances include
where an employee is dismissed for reasons other than serious
misconduct or redundancy, that employee resigns at the age
of 65 or above, or the employment contract is of fixed term
and expires without renewal. The amount of LSP payable
is determined with reference to the employee’s final salary
(capped at HK$22,500) and the years of service, reduced by
the amount of any accrued benefits derived from the Group’s
contributions to MPF scheme (see note 22(a)), with an overall
cap of HK$390,000 per employee. Currently, the Group does
not have any separate funding arrangement in place to meet its
LSP obligation.

In June 2022, the Government gazetted the Amendment
Ordinance, which would eventually abolish the statutory
right of an employer to reduce its long service payment and
severance payment payable to a Hong Kong employee by
drawing on its MPF scheme (also known as the “offsetting
mechanism”). The Government has subsequently announced
that the Amendment Ordinance was come into effect from the
Transition Date, i.e. 1 May 2025. Separately, the Government
also introduced a subsidy scheme to assist employers after the
abolition.

Among other things, once the abolition of the offsetting
mechanism takes effect, an employer can no longer use any of
the accrued benefits derived from its mandatory contributions
under MPF scheme (irrespective of the contributions made
before, on or after the Transition Date) to reduce the LSP in
respect of an employee’s service from the Transition Date.
However, where an employee’s employment commenced
before the Transition Date, the employer can continue to use
the above accrued benefits to reduce the LSP in respect
of the employee’s service up to that date; in addition, the
LSP in respect of the service before the Transition Date
will be calculated based on the employee’s monthly salary
immediately before the Transition Date and the years of service
up to that date.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2025

RIEBBEBIEY @ BEZEZD
FHEERETETERATEREA
REfRS© - 2 BARIERE EE
BNEITAE B DN R E 1 iR
1B - % 1B B A 655% 8k LA - HYF #e Bt
T SEEENEEEFHEERE
ITEE - - RERGSENZKIEN
CREN2ERENEETS(LRA
22,5007 70) MR FSFEIEEE ¢ B2
NEERPRIESF S (R E22())
HAEENEAETEMNSE &
B2 FBR A& EE390,000%87T - B
BT ANEBWETABLHE S THE
DETTERBRESEME -

N-ZZE-—FXA  BRRERAM
UBETIER) - BEREEUEETBG
FIFRRESTEREEREBES
Stz REREE RERB 2 A THE
F(ITBAMEEES ) - BTEER
EMUERTEIEBERBREIZE
“HERA—B)RBER - BN B
IR ERRT S - BB EEEEE
MEUH T BB o

AN - —BEUBH I AR - B
AR BEAR AR RESETEI T’
HIEHR RE RS (TRRBER
HiZ Al - B HRZEREHE) - A
ORUE B B8R A B AR < KR
BE o A - fiEEIER B HIATR
B BErAEER Lt 28 #mIA
REBNEEZE L2 R =H
RIS - Mo - BLEE B BRTZ RS
meE » RERGEHZRESNEE
BEBEHBAZ AR REEZALEZR
BERAE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

22 POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)
(b) Provision for LSP (continued)

The Group has determined that the Amendment Ordinance
primarily impacts the Group’s LSP liability with respect to Hong
Kong employees that participate in the Group’s MPF scheme.

The present value of unfunded obligations and its movements
are as follows:

22 BERRER(E)
(b) REAREEEE(E)

AEEEEE(ETRIDERZE
SE2EAEEREDFENEE
BEZHBARBRGSEE -

BEDETNRENEESHUT

HK$'000
Fi&T
At 1 July 2023 R-_E-_=%—H—H 3,513
Expenses recognised in profit or loss: RiEZFER AT
Current service cost IR RS A AR 919
At 30 June 2024 and 1 July 2024 RZZEZMFERA=TEK
—EFE+HA—H 4,432
Expenses recognised in profit or loss: RERPER X -
Current service cost IR RS A AR 778
At 30 June 2025 RZZE-_RFNA=+H 5,210

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation
is 9.19 years (2024: 10.27 years). The above expense is
recognised in administrative expense.

Significant actuarial assumptions (expressed as weighted
averages) and sensitivity analysis are as follows:

AERABEZINEFHFEA9.19
FE(ZEBMF - 10.274F) o Lt
SRTIRFA S AR o

T2REMRR(CANEFHEET) K&
UMD

Discount rate ARIR &
Future salary increases RRFE LR

2025 2024
—2-RF ZENF
3.75%

2.50%
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22 POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED) 22 BEREER(E)
(b) Provision for LSP (continued) (b) RHIBRIEEHE(E)
The below analysis shows how the defined benefit obligation THIDTER T REEHEEKWMA
would have increased/decreased as a result of 1% change in EEZBREBR1%EEN LM, Ol
the significant actuarial assumptions: )
2025 2024
—E-RF —EmEF

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

in1% in1% in 1% in 1%

1% HW21% EAN1% 1%

HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000
TR TR TAET TAET

Discount rate ARIR & (197) 193 (170) 167
Future salary increases RERFTSILE 209 (205) 113 (111)
The above sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption P RE DT IR EE R E
that changes in actuarial assumptions are not correlated EAEREME - Bt RET RIBEREZ M
and therefore it does not take into account the correlations KB -

between the actuarial assumptions.

23 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 23 EXRKHE
(a) Share capital (a) K&
(i) Authorised and issued share capital () ZEREZRITRA
Number of
shares Amount
BOEE ok
‘000 HK$’000
T FHT
Authorised: SEE
Ordinary shares T
At 1 July 2023, 30 June 2024, 1 July ﬁf:%:_i’tﬂ —H-
2024 and 30 June 2025 of HK$0.01 —EZWFERA=TA -
each _?_Eitﬂ =P54
—E-RFANA=1H
FIREE.OTE T 10,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHE
Ordinary shares LB
At 1 July 2023, 30 June 2024, 1 July F:E:*Etﬂ —A-
2024 and 30 June 2025 of HK$0.01 —E-FERA=+H -
each _q_lllitﬂ =I5
“E-RFNA=TH
FREE0.01ETT 540,000 5,400
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23 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of the
Company are distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall in the ordinary course of business.

Other reserve

The amount represents the difference between the
nominal amount of shares issued by the Company and
the aggregate amount of share capital of subsidiaries
acquired under common control pursuant to the
group reorganisation in preparation of the listing of the
Company’s shares on GEM of the Stock Exchange on 17
June 2018.

Contribution surplus

The amount represents the amounts due to shareholders
capitalised before the listing of the Company’s shares on
GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with accounting policy set out in note 2.20.

The PRC statutory reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing the PRC
enterprises, PRC subsidiaries of the Group are required
to allocate at least 10% of its after-tax profit but before
dividend distribution to the statutory reserve until the
reserve has reached 50% of their registered capital. The
statutory reserve can only be used, upon approval by
the relevant authority, to offset accumulated losses or
increase capital. The appropriation for the year ended 30
June 2025 amounted to HK$174,000 (2024: HK$87,000).

23 BEXKfHE(E)
(b) REZMEERRAE

(M)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(7
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K7 aE

RIEREREADIF2FE QT
& ARAWERMEERNE
EAHDIRTARBBE
EREEENKKREZARK K
NEBRABEATELBIRE

REIZIEIERS

HitttE e

ZEBERARBDETRMNE
[EREREY Yk T RN §n)
R-FE-—=FR AttBEH
ZAAGEM Em METTHREE
AR W B L TR 22 I PR B 12 B A
RAEFA 2 M ZERR -

BB

% BN AR R R R R
PTGEM LT Al & B 5t & N H) 8
AR °

EL#E

R RRRERERINEB
BHREAMEEZMABERZE
B e B RIEME220ME 2
BRTBRERE

B A E e

RIBHRE PR ERNERRE
B ASEMTEKBARZA
BB EEN (EMNBRKRE S
KA =2 10% 90 B 205 F
#H HEEzHEEREHGFMRE
A50% o AL B B HE 1R
ETEREBETRARIEEZE
BRIEMER - BHEZFT_H
FRA=-THIEFEZEIR A
174,000 70 (= Z IO 4
87,0007 7T) °
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23 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

164

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access
to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by
a sound capital position, and makes adjustments as to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The capital structure of the Group mainly consists of net debt,
which include bank loans, and lease liabilities, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company. The Group considers
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital to monitor its capital structure on the basis of a gearing
ratio. The ratio is expressed by as a percentage of total debts
over the total equity. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged during the years ended 30 June 2025 and 2024.

The gearing ratios at 30 June 2025 and 2024 are as follows:

23 EXKf#fE (&)

(c)

BEXERE
REBETERNEENEEBRAR
[EAEEEEFELENES BB
RIREBR K F R IRTE EBIARIAS
RAESRE - HE R RS R B R
R R E A FIas AR RE & R AR o

AEEESEHEAREREANG
B ERSKRREOM(TEHEERS
EFRKF ) R AFE AR SR A2
P RREMRRTTE - WIRIBEES
NBCHBE ARG

AEENEAEEFERERSFEAE
K BIRRITEREEEAE UKk
RATRHBAEEER - AEEEE
BN % BA 5 SR A A HE R R R DA
LB R EEE B AR - %It
RABEBBERAESRENE DT
A o REHEZZE-_RAFR T
FRA=ZTRHIEFE  AEENEE
RESHFF D o

RIBE-_RAFEN T _NFE A=
HeyaFEEmT

Total debts B 458
Equity attributable to owners of the RARIEE AEEER
Company

Gearing ratio afEx

2025 2024
—E_RF —E PO
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
20,638 20,941
188,113 193,838
10.97% 10.80%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.
Distributability of reserves

At 30 June 2025, the aggregate amount of reserves available
for distribution to owners of the Company was HK$93,527,000
(2024: HK$95,315,000).
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency risks and equity
price risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
The Group’s exposure to risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

(a) Creditrisk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on
its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the
Group.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash and
cash equivalents, restricted bank deposits, trade and other
receivables and loans and interest receivables. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The Group does not provide any guarantees
which would expose the Group to credit risk. Management has
a credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents and restricted bank deposits is limited because the
counterparties are financial institutions that have sound credit
ratings.

(i) Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group had a certain
concentration of credit risk as 18% (2024: 17%) and
45% (2024: 41%) of the total trade receivables was due
from the largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
take into account the customer’s past payment history
of making payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in
which the customer operates. Trade receivables are
usually due on presentation of billing. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers.

24 ¢WMIACSRRAREERAYE
&

AEBEEFEGBIETELREE - RY
BEx - ME - BRERLKRERR - A%
B2 R AERERARERANEERR 2
TRAREEBOR RERIF AT

(a) FERER

EERBRIERSF I RERBITEELN
BEMERAKESREHEERZR

LA
oo
AR

o

AEEZEERBREIERERE MR
EEY  XROIBITER - BEHR
Ho Aty FEURIA DA K FEUE SRR FIS, ©
HEERBZGRAEEASESRE
EREAFBHINAR CREE - A&
B SRS S BN R B E R
ERBEMER BEEERAFEER
R UKEERZSEERRAE
Ll

AEEEERE LREFENRER
HRITERAEENEERBRAR -
REF 7 RARRREEFRNEE
W -

() EZE|ZE

AEBZEFERBETEXE
EPZEREEEE - NRE
IR BRESERFIBRE
FEI8%(ZZT-MF : 17%)
N4s% (ZEZF : 41%) 5
FERGEAEFRARER
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

)

166

Trade receivables (continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments, the
loss allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer
bases.

The Group rebutted the presumption of significant
increase in credit risk and default under ECL model for
trade receivables over 30 days and 90 days past due
respectively and set the criteria for significant increase
in credit risk and default as over 180 days and 360 days
past due respectively based on good repayment records
for those trade debtors having a continuous business
with the Group and the historical settlement pattern for
cleaning service sector in Hong Kong and the PRC. Trade
receivables over 360 days past due, which is considered
to be credit-impaired are assessed for their lifetime
ECLs based on their loss given default with reference to
historical debt collection experience, adjusted by current
and forward-looking factors.

The directors have considered the credit risk of trade
receivables and noted that there was no actual loss nor
significant past due experience over the past 5 years,
including periods of unfavourable economic conditions.
The directors consider the aggregate risks arising from
the possibility of credit loss on trade receivables are not
significant and no loss allowance for credit losses were
recognised as at 30 June 2025 and 2024.
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 ¢RI EZz4REREERAF
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

()

(ii)

Trade receivables (continued)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

B (&)

(@) EERER(E)

(M)

0-30 days past due #IHI0Z=30H
31-60 days past due #HEI31Z60H
61-90 days past due #HI61290H
Over 90 days past due 1 HAE @O0 B

Loans and interest receivables

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as
at the end of the reporting period with the risk of default
as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forward looking information.
Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

- internal credit rating;

—  external credit rating (as far as available); and

— actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions that

are expected to cause a significant change to the
counterparties’ ability to meet its obligations.

(i)

ESEYSE (&)
B BRI Z R DT T

2025
—EC-RE
HK$’000
FET

2024
—EopE
HK$'000
TAT

68,660
16,993
7,696
1,017

94,366

EREFRFIL

AEBZEEEEH XERRH
B RS IRESBMOE
ERRELSRHEREEM-
T EEERREEEEIE N
B NEEBEERREBR
BB R REHXERH

M E AR EIT R - B
ERAEGHEERIIFMA
EER FRIREEUTIEE

PR EEEPAR
— SMEBEEFR(INE)

- X BBHILENRRE
PR RS AN EATT
it AHMERHFIE
TEEMNENHREAE
& e
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(@) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Loans and interest receivables (continued)

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the Group’s
ECL model is as follows:

Category
il

Definition of category

EHRIzER

24 ¢MIACSRRAREERQAYE

B (&)

(@) EEER(E)
(i) MEREFFRFIE (&)
AEEBEREEBRENKE
BRI T -

Basis for recognition of ECL provision

BARBEEERRECEE

Stage 1

E =B

Exposures where there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition and that are not credit-impaired
upon origination.

BB REREEER jfﬁ?@%iﬂuﬂfﬁé
BRI IR ERENER

Exposures where there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but are not credit-impaired.
BIRHER ;Uzgﬂﬁ FREIE NN - M A
REERENRER

Exposures are assessed as credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that asset have occurred.

HEESHEENEARACR S REENK
THFEN AL ZEEN - BIAERR
WERHBREERE

168 PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2025

Portion of the lifetime ECL associated with
the probability of default events occurring
within the next 12 months is recognised.

FER BRI+ — 8 A AR O EFH A
BEMEARRH K ATREE ERE R, -

Lifetime expected losses (i.e. reflecting the
remaining lifetime of the financial asset) is
recognised.
HRKATERE R (B R & B & ERIGRE
H) -

Lifetime expected losses is recognised and
interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost (net of provision) rather than the gross
carrying amount.

HEROK ATEEAESIE - WiE B bR
EOEE SR AN (M FERRE 4R 1E ) FE R BRE R &
STEFBHA °
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (continued)
(i) Loans and interest receivables (continued)

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from loans and interest
receivables are set out in note 14.

Loans to the top borrower and top five borrowers
constituted 25% and 80% (2024: 26% and 83%) of the
Group’s loans and interest receivables respectively as at
30 June 2025.

The directors consider that the credit risk arising from the
loans receivable is significantly mitigated by the collaterals
held i.e. properties, if required.

The Group rebutted the presumption of default under
ECL model for loans and interest receivables over 90
days past due based on good repayment records for
those loan borrowers having a continuous business with
the Group. They are assessed individually based on
their probability of default and exposure of default with
reference to historical credit loss experience, adjusted by
current and forward-looking factors.

24 ¢WMIACSRRAREERAYE

(a) FERR(E)
(i) MEREFFRFIE(E)

BRANRE R ERE R E
FMELXEERRIE-TEE
WERENHIE14

RZZE_REXA=1+H" R
BERERARARERAZE
fﬁﬁ%\ﬁ%}ﬂxglréu&szx
B HI25% K 80% (—F =M
F : 26%M83%) °

E=RA - BREFMEEZ
=& E A E R @ (A
%)(ﬁﬂm%)ﬂlmﬁ 1K -

EREREEFEETERZ

ERERNERRHERT - &K
EIET’&@@E@;E@QOEIZF&‘
WEFREMERTEREEER
BEATEBENZRR  MRE
BROFREREORR &2
ZRECEEEELR IR
BRAEERZRBERIELE
BIEHE -
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 2R T EZzSREREERAF

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EERB(E)

(i) MEREFFRFIE (&)
JEU & SR e ) B AR R 2 BB I

(i) Loans and interest receivables (continued)

Movements in the gross amount of loans and interest

receivables are as follows: ™
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E-IEE EREER E=REER et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
At 1 July 2023 WZE-_=F+HA—H 29,040 18,387 46,046 93,473
New loans originated HMELXER 15,526 - - 15,526
Transfer B (5,232) - 5,232 -
Repaid during the year FNER (2,285) (16,335) - (18,620)
Written-off HsH - (2,052) - (2,052)
Exchange realignment B i, S EE (147) - - (147)
At 30 June 2024 and RZEZNFA=1H
1 July 2024 k=Z-mF+A—H 36,902 - 51,278 88,180
New loans originated MEEER 5,043 - - 5,043
Transfer e (17,423) - 17,423 -
Repaid during the year FAERE (3,676) - - (3,676)
Exchange realignment M H S 398 - 103 501
At 30 June 2025 RNZE-HFSA=1H 21,244 - 68,804 90,048
Byclass at30June 2025 R-ZE_HFA=1+H
RERIE D
- Loans receivable —ERER 19,647 - 65,709 85,356
— Interest receivables —FEUFE 1,597 - 3,095 4,692
21,244 - 68,804 90,048
By class at 30 June 2024 R=-T-MEASA=1+H
RERIE S
— Loans receivable —ERER 35,423 - 49,184 84,607
— Interest receivables — FEUF B, 1,479 - 2,094 3,573
36,902 - 51,278 88,180
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 2R T EHEZz4REREERAF
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Loans and interest receivables (continued)

An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL

E(&)

(a) FERERE)

(i) FEREFRFIE(E)

*BFE%EHHETEE?EI%QEZMEJJ

allowances is as follows: DHTEE -
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
B EIRE E=RE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FAT FAT FHT
At 1 July 2023 NZEZ itﬁ H 234 8,832 46,046 55,112
Changes due to financial N\_BZ=F+H— E
instruments recognised as Eﬁ@u CERMIAME
at 1 July 2023: EE
~ Impairment loss —BERRREEE
recognised 82 - - 82
— Impairment loss reversed  — 2 B BIREE 1R @) (6,780) - (6,782)
— Transfer — B (55) - 55 -
~ Impact of year ended —FRERERZHE
ECLs of exposure Bl )
transferred between FREHEE
stages during the year BENTE - - 5,193 5,193
— Written-off — s - (2,052) - (2,052)
New loans originated HELER 36 - - 36
Exchange realignment MEH R 3 - (16) (13)
At30 June 2024 and 1 July AT -MFA=+H
2024 RZZE_MF+A—H 298 - 51,278 51,576
Changes due to financial AR_—Z_MF+A—A
instruments recognised as  ERERZ Bt LA
at 1 July 2024: g3
— Impairment loss reversed  — & B BIREE 1B - - (90) (90)
— Transfer — BB (266) - 266 -
— Impact of year ended —FREREHE
ECLs of exposure P8 7% [ e
transferred between FRIEHEE
stages during the year BEOTE - - 7,913 7,913
Exchange realignment bEE 54 R 2 - 128 130
At 30 June 2025 RZE-RFA=1H 34 - 59,495 59,529
By class at 30 June 2025 R-ZE-HFEXHA=1+H
RERE S
— Loans receivable — M E 33 - 56,400 56,433
~ Interest receivables — FEURIE 1 - 3,095 3,096
34 - 59,495 59,529
By class at 30 June 2024 R=-ZE-IEXA=1+H
®RERE D
- Loans receivable —RIER 294 - 49,184 49,478
— Interest receivables — JEIF B 4 - 2,094 2,098
298 - 51,278 51,576
EHHERBRAT Gk 2025 171
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 2R T EZzSREREERAF

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EERB: (&)
(i) Loans and interest receivables (continued) (i) EREFHRFIE ()

(iii)

No significant changes to estimation techniques or
assumptions were made during the reporting period.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include cash and
cash equivalents, restricted bank deposits, deposits and
other receivables. The Group accounts for its credit risk
by appropriately providing for ECLs on a timely basis. In
calculating the ECL rates, the Group considers historical
loss rates for each category of receivables and adjusts for
forward looking macroeconomic data.

At 30 June 2025 and 2024, the Group has assessed
that the ECL rate for those receivables is immaterial
under 12 months expected losses method. Thus, no loss
allowance for other financial assets at amortised costs
was recognised.

No significant changes to estimation techniques or
assumptions were made during the reporting period.

(b) Liquidity risk

172

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2025
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 eRITACSREKREERAF

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS E(&)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBEE R ()
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities TREMASESHMBENRERR
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial ZHTAEHIER  HEHKRMIRE
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash enE(BREFEAEGLOF =L (MZ
flows (including interest payments computed using contractual IR MERR BTN ETE 2
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the FEMFORER

reporting period):

2025 2004
okt 3 it .3
Total Morethan  More than Totdl More than More than
contractual Within -~ fyearbut  2years but contractugl Within Tyearbut  2yearsbut
Camying  undiscounted 1 year or less than lessthan  More than Camying  undiscounted Tyearor Jess then Jess than More than
amount ~ cashflow  ondemand 2years 5years 5years amount cashfow  ondemand 2years 5years 5years
aHREE 1Fh 1ENEE 2EMER AHRER 15 1FIEHE 2R

BEE RONESE  dEER 2R SENR SERE FEE FeRsEE  IEEX pEl SEA SEIE
HKS000  HKSO0D  HKS000  HKSO0D  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSODO  HKSOOD  HKSODD  HKSOO
i Tirn Tin Tin T T T TEL T L Tin T

Trade payables BRRNTE 2283 B07 07 307 - - -
Financil abities included in M
acoruals, depostts received and
ofher payables i} 35,107 24,685 24,685 24,685 - - -
Bank oans* BT 1615 19,366 21842 1684 1684 5,061 16,423
Lease fabiltes 8F 1,382 1578 1827 1489 100 % -

66,987 14132 81,333 86,861 63,565 1784 5080 16428

#  The above information reflects the repayment schedules in * FHllEMREBEARERBE
accordance with the relevant loan agreements. However, bank BRE AW BITERNEEH
loans are classified as current liabilities in the consolidated BHRARDEAREEE - ThER
statement of financial position as they will be repaid upon HEegRBEERBZEZEEKKIRE
demand, according to the demand clause set out in the kEE RZTE_RFNA=T
loan agreements. As at 30 June 2025, the aggregated B BRERZRFAHRBERESR
contractual undiscounted cash flow on demand amounted to £ /418,360,000 0 ( =T /4 :
HK$18,360,000 (2024: HK$19,422,000). 19,422,000/ 7T) °
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 eRiTACSREKREERAF

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS E(&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FIZREBS
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from restricted REE M EREREEREZRHIER
bank deposits, loans receivables, bank loans and lease 1TE - EWER - SRITERNEE
liabilities. Deposits placed and borrowings issued at fixed rates BB -REERFEFEZ FRNE
and variable rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate B2 BERD RIS AREEEZAFET
risk and cash flow interest rate risk respectively. The Group’s KR RIBEREFERR - KNEE
interest rate profile as monitored by management is set out XEREER 2 AR EN T »
below.
(i) Interest rate profile () FIEEX
The following table details the interest rate profile of the TRAMAEBRBREHR
Group’s net deposits at the end of the reporting period: FRFE 2N ER
2025 2024
—E-RE —T-NF
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BRAIE ERF=
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
Tix TAT
Fixed rate deposits/(borrowings)  EEBZ/(£)
Restricted bank deposits RRHRTER 0.94%-100% NN 0.64%-4.65% 5,889
Loans receivables el e 6.00%-24.00% PEEPEN 6,00%-24.00% 35,129

Lease liabilties MEBR 5.00%-5.88% [PEPEN  5.00%-5.88% (1,575)
32,360 39,443
Variable rate deposits/(borrowings) FEFH,/ (f£5)
Bank deposits and cash at bank ROEARFETRE 0.16% 110,793 0.11% 103,174
Bank loans BRITER 2.85%-3.88% ((EEIBN  2.98%-3.50% (19,366)

92,478 83,808

Net exposure RRFE 124,838 123,251
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Interest rate risk (continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis

At 30 June 2025, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have no significant impact
to the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated losses.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated
losses assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to re-measure those financial instruments
held by the Group which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk for at the end of the reporting period.
The 50 basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until the end of the
next annual reporting period. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2024.

Currency risk

The Group’s business activities and its assets and liabilities
were denominated in HK$ and Renminbi (“‘RMB”). The
management considers the Group is not exposed to significant
foreign currency risk as most sales, income, purchases and
expenses are denominated in the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

Equity price risk

The Group is not exposed to significant equity price risk
through its investments in financial assets classified at FVTPL.

24 ¢WMIACSRRAREERAYE
B (&)

(c)

(d)

(e)

HBRZERARIRE Fi 2025

MRk (&)
(i) SBEDH

R-ZZE_RFANA=+TH {4
AR IR I T ERG0MEE
HMAMEEMBERIE  HA
SEEHREBERRFTERL
BEATE -

R SRE S T RN AN R B
MEBEREMRFTERZERE
B BRANETEHORRED
RARELERERRERRARE
et BB ATHEA M8 H &
ERFENREROZES R
TH -S0EEETTHKIEEEE
8T — {5 Z el B R AT 2
METREABEEF 27 - =
T MFEZAREEETON

B ER

REBEEERHLEEERABNE
TTRARE (AR DEHE - IR
MAOHE - WA - BERFAXIAGH
Xzt EETHE - MEEERA
AREBEWBEAZEAGERAR - A&
BRI EINE LR - AT - F
BEeLSIINEAR  TEEENE
EREIPEAINE R o

R (B mL B

AEETRRGERHBAEATE
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A -
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 eRiTACSREKREERAF

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(f) Categories of financial instruments

176

B(&E)
Hh &€MIEDE
2025
—EC-RE
HK$’000
FET

Financial assets
Financial assets at FVPL

THMEE
BAFEFABRRZERERE

Financial assets at amortised cost:
— Trade receivables

— Deposits and other receivables
— Loans and interest receivables

— Restricted bank deposits

RESHRAS IR 2 S REE ¢
—E5REIA

— 1R K E AL YRR
—ERE RN E

— R FIRITIFHK

99,966
6,365
30,519
5,760
110,793

253,403

253,951

— Cash and cash equivalents - BeMReEEY

Financial liabilities SRIBE

Financial liabilities measured at amortised  IZHEE A EZ SR AE -
cost:

— Trade payables —E S ENFRIA

— Financial liabilities included in accruals,
deposits received and other payables

— Bank loans

— Lease liabilities

—FTAERTER - 2liRE R
HiENFREz &mA s

—RITER

—HEAE
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2024

—E 4
HK$’000
FHIT

405

94,366
6,866
36,604
5,889
103,174

246,899

247,304

35,707

24,685
19,366
1,575

81,333
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e MR MEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 725117 )

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(g) Fair value measurement

(i) Financial instruments measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial instruments
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period
on a recurring basis shall be categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair
value measurement”. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

—  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

—  Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

The listed equity securities are stated at their fair values
and are determined based on the quoted market closing
price available on the Stock Exchange at the end of the
reporting period, which is categorised as Level 1.

During the years ended 30 June 2025 and 2024, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3.

24 ¢WMIACSRRAREERAYE

B (&)

(9)

AF{E B

(M)

BAFEIAEZZMTA

AEERATVEFEZEHT
AZEHERREMRRER
WEEFE YN BREEEH
B EERIFE135 A FER
BIREZ=MNTFERBR
NV EFEZEREDE2EM
BERMERANEABE 2 AE
RUEREEE - BRABRMR
WS

- FAMhE:EERE—
R ABBFENRQF
8 BNRETE A HER A
FAEEXBEREEMS
MR ERE -

- FE_QHE:ERE-R
BABUBTEMAFE
IR BEE AR - B
BEmEFR —AMENR - B
HTBREANTNABEE
ABE - TAIBERE AR
BRYEMSEIEIELE
ZBEABIE -

— ESRME  EREAT
TERH AR ENA
i -

EHBEAESEAFENE
3% 70 R 5 B R B X PR PR ¥R Th
BRHE(DERE —FIETE

HEZ-_AFRER-_ZT_NF
NAZTHIEFE  F—H0E
B zmTEERE TES
BB AREL -
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(g) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i) Financial instruments carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially
different from their fair values at 30 June 2025 and 2024.

25 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

AND BALANCES

(@) Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as
disclosed in note 7 and senior management, is as follows:

24 ¢MIACSRRAREERQAYE

B (&)

(9) AFEFEGE)
(i) FHEZELFEIEZEMTA
7 B [ 42 A 7 S SE K AR 1) BR
e T ARAEHEENR -
“THERZZE-_NEASA=T
Az AFEITESERESR o

25 EXBEBARIRER

(a) *EETIEEEASHMBECNA
NEER(MME7AHE) RSRE
BABKIE - FEOT

2025 2024
—E-REF TN
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T

Directors

Fees

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind

Discretionary bonuses

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan

B=

#E o EMEEYET
Ef]'&-&- ZI

TE RS FUR IR BIR R

2,430
1,754
1,070

60

5,314

Senior management

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind

Discretionary bonuses

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan

BREEAR

e R REYER
BB TEAL

FEBRBFURRE BB R

148
11

10

169

5,483
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25 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 25 EAXBBAIRZ RER(E)
AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(b) Other related party transactions (b) HttBEEARS
Except as disclosed elsewhere in the notes to these FA - BREEEMTBIRERM T EAM T
consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into the Fr# &Sl - AREBEIATEKREA
following material related party transactions during the year: KRG
2025 2024
—E-REF —E_NF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BfaE FHET FAT
Expenses relating to a short-term lease  E2RFEE A R EIFE
to related companies el ok e
HongKong HTX Trading Limited ABBREESER 0]
NG 740
PPC Environment Limited FRERZAMRBRAT 0] 80
820
Note: BT
() A director, Mr. Yu Shaoheng has beneficial interests in this () EERBFRERZBEBMARESR
related company. BEaiEm
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26 AREHBER
(a) FAEMRRE

26 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position

2025 2024
—E-REF —E PO
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB NS -
Investments in subsidiaries RETBRARMIEE 198
198
Current assets REEE
Deposits, prepayments and other e FENRIEREMER
receivables B 324 285
Amounts due from subsidiaries R NGIE Q] 158,013 163,365
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEED 782 816
159,119 164,466
Current liabilities RBAE
Accruals FEETE R 733
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTH B A Al E 63,216
63,949
Net current assets REEEFE 100,517
NET ASSETS EEFE 100,715
Capital and reserves EARRHE
Share capital &N 5,400
Reserves ] 95,315
TOTAL EQUITY R 100,715
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26 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY 26 AQRBBER(E)

(CONTINUED)
(b) Movements in components of equity (b) R 2B E
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual components RAFEARNG 2 (E7 e E05 &E)
of equity during the year are as follows: LB
Share Share Accumulated
capital premium losses Total
[LE R RE iR st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TAT FHET FET
(note 23(b)(i))
(FHEF23(b)())
At 1 July 2023 R-ZE-=%+A—H 5,400 198,524 (101,311) 102,613
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FRABEREEEERE
loss for the year - - (1,898) (1,898)
At 30 June 2024 and R-ZE-MEAA=TAHK
1 July 2024 —Z-_MELA-A 5,400 198,524 (103,209) 100,715
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FREIEREEEIEEE
loss for the year - - (1,788) (1,788)
At 30 June 2025 R-ZZE-REAA=1H 5,400 198,524 (104,997) 98,927
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27 SUBSIDIARIES’ INFORMATION
Details of the subsidiaries as at 30 June 2025 and 2024

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The

27 MBARIZESR
RIBEZHFR-E-NFASA=TH
B AT
HBARSE TEEHE T By e eE
¥15  AESBENHBARZES - B

class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. SHAERIN - FERMDHERE SR -
2025 2024
—E-RF —E-mE
Proportion of Proportion of
effective ownership  effective ownership
interest interest
BERERE ERERE
Place of Particulars of Rt fl alth]
Name of company operations issued capital Direct Indirect Direct  Indirect Principal activity
DRER BEMEL BRITRAFE B R E# AE TEEE
Incorporated in the BVI:
REBERRRBEMAL :
Silver Marker Limited Hong Kong USS1 100% - Investment holding
&R %7 RERR
Bransfield Assets Limited Hong Kong US$3 and HK$1,000,001 - 100%  Investment holding
B 37T %1,000,0017T RAER
Incorporated in Hong Kong:
REBEMAL
Pollution & Protection Services Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$18,557,800 - 100% Provision of environmental
and cleaning services
ERREREARAA Eh 18,557,800/ RERE RERRH
PPS Success Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Trading of securities and
property holding
ERRHERAT &R 10,0007 BERFLANE
Union Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Provision of money lending
services
EMEBERRA Bl 10,000%7T AR
Incorporated in the PRC:
B :
Shanghai PPS Sheng Mao Environmental - The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 51% Provision of environmental
Services Limited (notes (i) and i) and cleaning services
HEENRBRZRSERLA HE AR 10,000,007 REGREREZRHE
GEO)
Shenzhen Environmental Cleaning The PRC RMB10,600,000 - 100% Provision of money lending
Services Limited (notes (i) and (i) services
RYBRFRZIRBBRA R (EH() Ri) AE#10,600,0007T AR
Shenzhen Yonghao Infrastructure The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100% Provision of money lending
Investment Limited (notes (i) and (i) services
AT EERREBRAR e AR10,000,0007T RAHRIRART
GEOD)
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27

28

SUBSIDIARIES’ INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 27

Details of the subsidiaries as at 30 June 2025 and 2024
(continued)

Notes:

(i)  The subsidiary is registered in the form of Chinese-foreign equity joint
ventures.

(i)  The subsidiary is registered in the form of wholly foreign owned
enterprises.

(i) ~ The English translation of the name is for reference only. The official
name of the entity is in Chinese.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 28

(a) Performance bonds

Ff B 2 E R ()

RIB-RER-ZE-NEAA=1H
M A TS ()
BsE -

) BHBLRARFIAREEDEL HRE
G

(i) FZMBRARAINGBERCEZFAER

(i) FEBWORXBREHRSE - ZEBBNE
FERERRI

HAREE
(a) BRRE

2025 2024
—ZE_REF —E - PUE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Guarantees on performance bonds in MIRE B 2R E DEL
respect of environmental and cleaning REBEWER

service contracts

23,569

The Group had bankers’ guarantees on performance bonds
issued for due performance under several environmental
and cleaning service contracts. The bank facilities of
HK$26,264,000 (2024: HK$23,569,000) granted to the Group
and bankers’ guarantees on performance bonds issued were
pledged by:

) land and buildings of HK$35,720,000 (2024:
HK$42,400,000);

(i) restricted bank deposits of HK$5,760,000 (2024
HK$5,889,000); and

(i) corporate guarantees of the Company and PPS Success
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary.

The effective period of performance bond is based on the
service period and the contract terms as specified in these
environmental and cleaning service contracts. The performance
bonds may be claimed by customers if services rendered
by the Group fail to meet the standards as specified in these
environmental and cleaning service contracts.

REEREZAEBETHE TREREZ
R & 4B 8% EMNENREREHE
MITER R TFTAEBEHRITH
& 26,264,000/8 L ( —Z & — Q4 :
23,569,000/8 7T ) & B % 1 B # R &
ZIRITER A TS HEERR

() L KAEF35,720,0005 (=
T P04 : 42,400,000/ 7T)

(i) 5 BRI 9R 77 17 5% 5,760,000
JT(=ZF U4 : 5,889,000/%
JT) &

(i) ANABRE2EMNERREHK
HEERABZ RAIER °

B AR RE 2 B AR T AR AR 75 A K%
ETRELBEZRREADRTRNAL
HAME - i AR E A RIS RBEZ
ERFRBNBERB A LRTHRR
% AIRF A BRRENRE
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28 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 28 HAEE(E)

(b) Litigations - Injury compensations

During the years ended 30 June 2025 and 2024, the Group
may from time to time be involved in litigations concerning
personal injuries by its employees or third party claimants.
In the opinion of the directors, the Group does not have any
significant contingent liabilities arising from these litigations.
All potential claims made by these employees and third
party claimants have been accounted for in the balance of
“provision for claims” under accruals, deposits received and
other payables (see note 18) in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

29 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and
other uncertainties affecting application of those policies and
the sensitivity of reported results to changes in conditions and
assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing the
consolidated financial statements. The material accounting policies
are set forth in note 2. The Group believes the following critical
accounting policies involve the most significant judgements and
estimates used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

(a) Loss allowances on financial assets measured at
amortised cost

The Group estimates the loss allowances for trade and
other receivables and loans and interest receivables by
assessing the ECLs. This requires the use of estimates and
judgements. ECLs are based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, and an assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the end of the reporting period.
Where the estimation is different from the previous estimate,
such difference will affect the carrying amounts of trade and
other receivables and loans and interest receivables and thus
the impairment loss in the period in which such estimate is
changed.

184 PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2025

(b) FHEA—EEREE

REBEEZZE-_RAF R T NF XA
=T RHIEFE - NEBRRETEED
ABHEEEXE=FTRRAELEH
BAZBGHFHL - EERE - A5H
W EBZEFDPEETMEARNRIA
BE - ZEEERBE-FHRZEARE
AT BIERREARGA PR
RIEFTER - BEYuRe REMEN R
H(RWFE18) R RIEEE | 2 8% -

20 BET{AET R M

Et RAE S AT - LABEL
ﬁ&ﬁ@l%(&%&%%%ﬂTﬂ%X
=R IETER) RIKE

EERGaMBHREE FEZETES
STHERER R REERSEEY
%%&ﬁMTﬁmI% AR P23 ELE
ERSGZEANBREHTE - TET
ﬁﬁ REUNPTEE2 - AREEEE - T3E
ZEFTER Y KRBT A M IR
R EZ b5 R FIE -

(a) REBEHLFTENSHEESE
BiE
AEBFE BRI EEBRGEAE
5 N EL A W SR TR A B M & 5K N )
B BERERE - EFBERGT R
i - RHEEERENASE 2B
EEERER  mNHRERRYES
NFE 2 AEREE B LI BB
BRI FHAEITHRE - fbFT AR
RERGR  ARERGFEEI N
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29 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 29 =iH{&stRE HIH (&)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Income taxes (b) FTEH

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions and interpretation
of tax rules. The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly. The tax
treatment of transactions is assessed periodically to the effect
of all changes in tax legislation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not yet used
and temporary deduction differences. As those deferred tax
assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future profit will be available against which the unused tax
credit can be utilised, management’s judgement is required to
assess the probability of future taxable profits.

Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed and
additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

EEMEHEABIREETRHZR
HE IR SRR R A 2 e R
HAE - NEBBEF GRS 2B
FE UHEFEVNERE X5
Wi ERIE 7 S\ E ML A A DI 2
B HEEITIHE -

EIEIR B ERRE A REE MY
IR E BBHER - AN FEERIA
BEE Al e A AR R B F A F{E
REABIAE R 2 150 THER -
BEEERHERKERR BN ZA]
BEMERS B 1R H T -

BEEEE R - HARAR
PR PR RR A g B (IR SEFR IR A AT R
@ - BEREEINEERREE -
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30 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 30 BZ-—E_R&XA=1+AL#E

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2025

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of new or amended standards,
which are not yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2025 and
which have not been adopted in these consolidated financial
statements. These amendments include the following which may be
relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability’

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to the Classification
and Measurement of Financial
Instruments?

Amendments to HKFRS
Accounting Standards

Annual Improvements to HKFRS
Accounting Standards — Volume
112

Contracts Referencing Nature-
dependent Electricity?

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in
Financial Statements®

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026.
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027.

N Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. Except for the new standard mentioned below,
so far it has concluded that the adoption of them will not have a
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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30 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 30 BZ-—Z_-_Ff®AXA=1+HLHE

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2025 (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 18, Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements

HKFRS 18 “Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements”,
which sets out requirements on presentation and disclosures in
financial statements, will replace HKAS 1 “Presentation of Financial
Statements”. This new standard, while carrying forward many of the
requirements in HKAS 1, introduces new requirements to present
specified categories and defined subtotals in the statement of profit
or loss; provide disclosures on management-defined performance
measures in the notes to the financial statements and improve
aggregation and disaggregation of information to be disclosed in the
financial statements. In addition, some HKAS 1 paragraphs have
been moved to HKAS 8 and HKFRS 7. Minor amendments to HKAS
7 “Statement of Cash Flows” and HKAS 33 “Earnings per Share”
are also made.

HKFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will be effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with
early application permitted. The application of the new standard is
expected to affect the presentation of the statement of profit or loss
and disclosures in the future financial statements. The Group is in
the process of assessing the detailed impact of HKFRS 18 on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

ECBEMERRERZIERTAE
HMEARZDEARELEZY
(&)

BEM KR EERFE185 - BBHRE
HEFRKE

RV REERFE18R M BHRRNE
P R FE B R 2B R
iE o BERREB G ERE 1R MHERER
2W] - ZFREANTEERT LS ER
FURZHARENRKSIAFRE - 2K
REBHEKRZIETERI RERTE NG - R©
B mRMEPREEEEACENEE
MEE - WAEMBHRERT 2T ER K
DEER o WS - B ERTERAF RS
TEREEBEFE ST EAFSHLER
MIEHMELRNETH - BESERIETH
[REeREXRIRBBGEAFEBRIE
@ IMBER] °
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFUBRE

RESULTS ES

Revenue g

(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER),&F)

Attributable to: AT AL FE(G -
Owners of the Company RAREBA
Non-controlling interests FEIE R AE R

Dividends paid ERE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAE

Total assets BEE

Total liabilities BEE

Net assets BERE

2025
—E-HEF
HK$’000
FET

502,430

(7,301)

(6,851)
(450)

(7,301)

299,463
(108,829)

190,634
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2024 2023 2022 2021
—EoNFE ZEBo=F B _F —ET-—F
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET T FHT FAT
488,074 395,405 370,336 354,775
(4,760) (5,299) 10,913 20,680
(4,396) (4,997) 10,677 19,192
(364) (302) 236 1,488
(4,760) (5,299) 10,913 20,680
297,789 286,230 291,768 294,359
(100,980) (83,597) (78,430) (91,619)
196,809 202,633 213,338 202,740
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PPS International (Holdings) Limited

www.hkpps.com.hk
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